CoMMON COUNCIL

CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO

MONDAY, AUGUST 25, 2025, 5:30 PM
115 E. PINE STREET, BELLEVUE, IDAHO 83313

AGENDA

Agendas may be amended

JOIN Zoom MEETING:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6273122357 ?pwd=ekFEckpSQUF6RNVFUFpGYWN|jd297dz09&0omn=89974714320

MEETING ID: 627 312 2357
PAsscoDE: 606XKf

ONE TAP MOBILE
+1-253-215-8782 US (Tacoma)
+1-346-248-7799 US (Houston)

PLEASE MUTE YOUR CALL: PLEASE TURN OFF ALL CELL PHONES EXCEPT FOR EMERGENCY PERSONNEL.
CALL TO ORDER
RoLL CALL

1. Nortice oF AGENDA COMPLIANCE (PER IDAHO CODE §74-204): ACTION ITEM
Finding that the regular meeting notice and agenda were posted in accordance with Idaho Code §74-204
within forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting at: The City of Bellevue City Hall, Post Office, and on the
City’s website on August 21, 2025. Suggested Motion: Move that the notice for the August 25, 2025,
meeting was completed in accordance with Idaho Code, Section §74-204.)

CALL FOR CONFLICT (AS OUTLINED IN IDAHO CoDE §74-404): ACTION ITEM

IMAYOR AND COUNCIL REPORT
PuBLIC COMMENT: FOR ITEMS OF CONCERN NOT ON THE AGENDA — (COMMENTS ARE LIMITED TO 3 MINUTES)

CONSENT AGENDA: ACTION ITEMS
a. Approval of Claims August 12, through August 25, 2025: Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer

a M DN

b. Approval of Annual Retail Alcoholic Beverage Applications: Kirtus Gaston, Bellevue Marshal
c. Adoption of the updated 2025 Idaho Policing Policy

WASTEWATER PLANT PROJECT UPDATE: Andrew Kimmel, Great West Engineering

PRESENTATION: Swearing in Ceremony: New Deputy Marshal, Emanuel Marin: Kirtus Gaston, Bellevue
Marshal

8. PuBLIC HEARING: FISCAL YEAR 2026 BUDGET

a. Consideration and approval of Ordinance No. 2025-12 an Ordinance of The City of Bellevue, Idaho,
entitled the Annual Appropriation Ordinance for the Fiscal Year 2026 beginning on October 1, 2025,
appropriating funds deemed necessary to defray all necessary expenses and liabilities for the ensuing
fiscal year, authorizing a levy of sufficient tax upon the taxable property and specifying the objects and
purposes for which said appropriation is made, and providing an effective date: Shelly Shoemaker,
Treasurer | ACTION ITEM

**In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should notify the City Bellevue, 115 East
Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, or phone number 208-788-2128 ext. 4, at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.

**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunidn deben notificar a la
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.

1


https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6273122357?pwd=ekFEckpSQUF6RnVFUFpGYWNjd29Zdz09&omn=89974714320

i Motion to approve the 1 reading of Ordinance No. 2025-12 OR Motion to dispense three
readings and read by title only Pursuant to Idaho Code § 50-902 | ACTION ITEM

b. Consideration and approval of Resolution No. 25-21 declaring the intent to collect $8,863 in
foregone property taxes for fiscal year 2026 and declaring the purpose for which the foregone taxes
are being budgeted. | ACTION ITEM

c. Consideration and approval of Resolution No. 25-22 declaring the intent to collect $1,723.07, plus
interest of $403.23, which amounts were previously paid by the City of Bellevue for a Judgment
Levy, in the real property taxes for fiscal year 2026. | ACTION ITEM

9. NEw BUSINESS

a.

Consideration of Resolution No. 25-23 authorizing the Mayor, on Behalf of The City of Bellevue, to
enter into an agreement for operations services as of the September 01, 2025, by and between Gray
Area Consulting LLC, an Idaho corporation, and the City of Bellevue, an Idaho Municipality: Chris
Johnson, Public Works Director | ACTION ITEM

Approval of Resolution No. 25-24 confirming appointment of lan Blacker to the Bellevue Urban
Renewal Agency (BURA) Board of Commissioners with a term expiring August 2027: Christina Giordani,
Mayor| ACTION ITEM

Consideration of a fee waiver request for a Special Event Application for the Bellevue Historical Society
for an event on September 1%, at the Museum Park on Main Street for a Lemonade Stand, World War
I memorial service and Antique sale: Jan Peppler, Bellevue Historical Society | ACTION ITEM

10. OLD BUSINESS

a.

Consideration of proposed Ordinance No. 2025-11 amending Title 3, Chapter 6 of The Bellevue
City Code known as the City of Bellevue’s Local Option Tax (LOT) by adding the imposition of a
one percent (1%) tax on the sale of restaurant food, a two percent (2%) tax on the retail sale of
liquor-by-the-drink, an increase from three per cent (3%) to six per cent (6%) on the sale of
hotel-motel occupancy and increasing the effective duration to (15) fifteen years from its date
of publication and adding public safety administration, including law enforcement, fire
department and pedestrian and bike safety to the purposes for which the tax revenue may be
applied. Christina Giordani, Mayor | ACTION ITEM

i.  Motion to waive three readings and read by title only OR Motion to approve the first of three
readings, by title only, for Ordinance No. 2025-11

ii. Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2025-11
iii.  Motion to approve publication by Summary only of Ordinance No. 2025-11

Approval of Resolution No. 25-25 calling for an election to be held on November 4, 2025, to submit to
the qualified electors of the City of Bellevue the question of whether to impose a one percent (1%) tax
on the sale of restaurant food, a two percent (2%) tax on the retail sale of liquor-by-the-drink, an
increase from three per cent (3%) to six per cent (6%) on the sale of hotel-motel occupancy and
increasing the effective duration to (15) fifteen years from its date of publication and adding public
safety administration, including law enforcement, fire department and pedestrian and bike safety to
the purposes for which the tax revenue may be applied. Christina Giordani, Mayor | ACTION ITEM

**In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should notify the City Bellevue, 115 East
Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, or phone number 208-788-2128 ext. 4, at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.

**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunidn deben notificar a la
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.

2



c. Consideration of Ordinance No. 2025-10 an ordinance of the City of Bellevue, Idaho, amending
Bellevue’s City Code by adding a new chapter to Title 4: Health, Sanitation, and Environment to control
nuisance weeds, and providing an effective date of this ordinance upon passage, approval, and
publication according to law, Brian Parker, Community Development Director | ACTION ITEM

i.  Motion to waive three readings and read by title only OR Motion to approve the first of three
readings, by title only, for Ordinance No. 2025-10

ii. Motion to approve Ordinance No. 2025-10
iii.  Motion to approve publication by Summary only of Ordinance No. 2025-10
11. ADJOURNMENT: ACTION ITEM

*If you would like to submit written comment on a public hearing agenda item: Submit your comments to
aphelps@bellevueidaho.us. for adequate consideration, please submit no later than noon on the day of the
meeting.

**In compliance with the American with Disabilities Act, individuals needing special accommodations during this meeting should notify the City Bellevue, 115 East
Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, or phone number 208-788-2128 ext. 4, at least twenty-four (24) hours prior to the meeting.

**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunidn deben notificar a la
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.

3


mailto:aphelps@bellevueidaho.us

CoNseJjo COMUN

CIUDAD DE BELLEVUE, IDAHO

LUNES, 25 DE AGOSTO DE 2025, 5:30 p. M.
115 E. PINE STREET, BELLEVUE, IDAHO 83313

AGENDA

Las agendas pueden ser modificadas

UNASE A LA REUNION DE ZOOM:
https://us02web.zoom.us/j/6273122357 ?pwd=ekFEckpSQUF6RNVFUFpGYWN|jd297dz09&0omn=89974714320

ID DE LA REUNION: 627 312 2357
CODIGO DE ACCESO: 606 XKF

MOVIL CON UN TOQUE
+1-253-215-8782 EE. UU. (Tacoma)
+1-346-248-7799 EE. UU. (Houston)

SILENCIE SU LLAMADA: APAGUE TODOS LOS TELEFONOS CELULARES EXCEPTO EL PERSONAL DE EMERGENCIA.
LLAMAR PARA ORDENAR
PASE DE LISTA

1. AVISO DE CUMPLIMIENTO DE LA AGENDA (SEGUN EL CODIGO DE IDAHO §74-204): ELEMENTO DE ACCION
Encontrar que el aviso y la agenda de la reunion regular se publicaron de acuerdo con el Codigo de Idaho
§74-204 dentro de las cuarenta y ocho (48) horas anteriores a la reunion en: El Ayuntamiento de la Ciudad
de Bellevue, la Oficina de Correos y en el sitio web de la Ciudad el 21 de agosto de 2025. Mocidn sugerida:
Proponer que el aviso para la reunion del 25 de agosto DE 2025 se haya completado de acuerdo con el
Cddigo de Idaho, Seccion §74-204).

2. LLAMADO A UN CONFLICTO (COMO SE DESCRIBE EN EL CODIGO DE IDAHO §74-404): ELEMENTO DE ACCION
3. INFORME DEL ALCALDE Y DEL CONSEJO

4. COMENTARIO PUBLICO: PARA TEMAS DE INTERES QUE NO ESTAN EN LA AGENDA — (LOS COMENTARIOS SE LIMITAN A 3
MINUTOS)
5. AGENDA DE CONSENTIMIENTO AMBIENTAL: PUNTOS DE ACCION
a. Aprobacién de reclamos del 12 al 25 de agosto de 2025: Shelly Shoemaker, Tesorera

b. Aprobacion de solicitudes anuales de bebidas alcohélicas al por menor: Kirtus Gaston, Mariscal de
Bellevue

¢. Adopcion de la Politica Policial de Idaho actualizada de 2025

ACTUALIZACION DEL PROYECTO DE LA PLANTA DE AGUAS RESIDUALES: Andrew Kimmel, Great West Engineering

PRESENTACION: Ceremonia de juramento: Nuevo Alguacil Adjunto, Emanuel Marin: Kirtus Gaston, Mariscal de
Bellevue

8. AUDIENCIA PUBLICA: PRESUPUESTO DEL ANO FISCAL 2026

a. Consideracion y aprobacion de la Ordenanza No. 2025-12, una Ordenanza de la Ciudad de Bellevue,
Idaho, titulada la Ordenanza de Asignacidén Anual para el Ao Fiscal 2026 que comienza el 1 de octubre

** De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunion deben notificar a la
Ciudad Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.
**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunidn deben notificar a la
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.

4



de 2025, asignando fondos considerados necesarios para sufragar todos los gastos y responsabilidades
necesarios para el afo fiscal siguiente, autorizando un impuesto suficiente sobre la propiedad
imponible y especificando los objetos y propdsitos para los cuales se realiza dicha asignacién, y
proporcionar una fecha de vigencia: Shelly Shoemaker, Tesorera | ELEMENTO DE ACCION

i.  Mocidn para aprobar la 12 lectura de la Ordenanza No. 2025-12 O Mocidn para dispensar tres
lecturas y leer solo por titulo De conformidad con el Codigo de Idaho § 50-902 | ELEMENTO
DE ACCION

b. Consideracion y aprobacién de la Resolucién No. 25-21 que declara la intencién de recaudar $8,863
en impuestos a la propiedad no percibidos para el aio fiscal 2026 y declara el propdsito para el cual
se presupuestan los impuestos no percibidos. | ELEMENTO DE ACCION

c. Consideracion y aprobacion de la Resolucién No. 25-22 que declara la intencién de cobrar
$1,723.07, mas intereses de $403.23, cuyos montos fueron pagados previamente por la Ciudad de
Bellevue por un Gravamen de Sentencia, en los impuestos a la propiedad inmobiliaria para el afio
fiscal 2026. | ELEMENTO DE ACCION

9. NUEVOS NEGOCIOS

a.

Consideracién de la Resolucién No. 25-23 que autoriza al Alcalde, en nombre de la ciudad de Bellevue,
a celebrar un acuerdo para los servicios de operaciones a partir del 1 de septiembre de 2025, pory
entre Gray Area Consulting LLC, una corporacion de Idaho, y la ciudad de Bellevue, un municipio de
Idaho: Chris Johnson, Director de Obras Publicas | ELEMENTO DE ACCION

Aprobacidn de la Resolucion No. 25-24 que confirma el nombramiento de lan Blacker para la Junta de
Comisionados de la Agencia de Renovacién Urbana de Bellevue (BURA) con un mandato que expira en
agosto de 2027: Christina Giordani, Alcaldesa | ELEMENTO DE ACCION

Consideracién de una solicitud de exencién de tarifas para una solicitud de evento especial para la
Sociedad Histérica de Bellevue para un evento el 1 de septiembre, en el Parque del Museo en Main
Street para un puesto de limonada, servicio conmemorativo de la Segunda Guerra Mundial y venta de
antigiedades: Jan Peppler, Sociedad Histdrica de Bellevue | ELEMENTO DE ACCION

10. ANTIGUO NEGOCIO

a.

Consideracién de la propuesta de Ordenanza No. 2025-11 que modifica el Titulo 3, Capitulo 6
del Cédigo de la Ciudad de Bellevue, conocido como el Impuesto de Opcidn Local (LOT) de la
Ciudad de Bellevue, agregando la imposicion de un impuesto del uno por ciento (1%) sobre la
venta de comida de restaurantes, un impuesto del dos por ciento (2%) sobre la venta minorista
de licor por bebida, un aumento del tres por ciento (3%) al seis por ciento (6%) sobre la venta
de ocupacion de hoteles-moteles y aumentando el efectivo duracién a (15) quince afos a partir
de su fecha de publicacion y agregar la administracion de seguridad publica, incluidas las
fuerzas del orden, el departamento de bomberos y la seguridad de peatones y ciclistas a los
fines para los que se pueden aplicar los ingresos fiscales. Christina Giordani, Alcaldesa |
ELEMENTO DE ACCION

i.  Mocion para renunciar a tres lecturas y leer solo por titulo O Mocién para aprobar la primera
de tres lecturas, solo por titulo, para la Ordenanza No. 2025-11

ii.  Mocidn para aprobar la Ordenanza No. 2025-11

iii.  Mocidn para aprobar la publicacion por Resumen solo de la Ordenanza No. 2025-11

** De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunion deben notificar a la
Ciudad Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.
**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunidn deben notificar a la
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.

5



b. Aprobacion de la Resolucion No. 25-25 que convoca a una eleccion para el 4 de noviembre de 2025,
para presentar a los electores calificados de la Ciudad de Bellevue la cuestion de si imponer un
impuesto del uno por ciento (1%) sobre la venta de comida de restaurantes, un impuesto del dos por
ciento (2%) sobre la venta minorista de licor por bebida, un aumento del tres por ciento (3%) al seis
por ciento (6%) sobre la venta de ocupacién de hoteles-moteles y el aumento la duracion efectiva a
(15) quince afos a partir de su fecha de publicacién y agregar la administracion de seguridad publica,
incluidas las fuerzas del orden, el departamento de bomberos y la seguridad de peatones y ciclistas a
los fines para los que se pueden aplicar los ingresos fiscales. Christina Giordani, Alcaldesa | ELEMENTO
DE ACCION

c. Consideracion de la Ordenanza No. 2025-10, una ordenanza de la ciudad de Bellevue, Idaho, que
modifica el Cédigo de la Ciudad de Bellevue agregando un nuevo capitulo al Titulo 4: Salud,
Saneamiento y Medio Ambiente para controlar las malezas molestas, y proporcionando una fecha de
vigencia de esta ordenanza tras su aprobacién, aprobacion y publicacidon de acuerdo con la ley, Brian
Parker, Director de Desarrollo Comunitario | ELEMENTO DE ACCION

i.  Mocidn para renunciar a tres lecturas y leer solo por titulo O Mocidn para aprobar la primera
de tres lecturas, solo por titulo, para la Ordenanza No. 2025-10

ii.  Mocidn para aprobar la Ordenanza No. 2025-10
iii.  Mocidn para aprobar la publicaciéon por Resumen solo de la Ordenanza No. 2025-10

11. ApLAZAMIENTO: ELEMENTO DE ACCION

*Si desea enviar un comentario por escrito sobre un tema de la agenda de una audiencia publica: Envie sus
comentarios a aphelps@bellevueidaho.us. para una consideracion adecuada, envielos a mds tardar al
mediodia del dia de la reunion.

** De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunion deben notificar a la
Ciudad Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.
**De conformidad con la Ley de Estadounidenses con Discapacidades, las personas que necesiten adaptaciones especiales durante esta reunidn deben notificar a la
ciudad de Bellevue, 115 East Pine Street, Bellevue, Idaho 83313, o al nimero de teléfono 208-788-2128 ext. 4, al menos veinticuatro (24) horas antes de la reunién.

6



Memorandum

To: Mayor Giordani and Bellevue Common Council
From: Amy Phelps, City Clerk
Re: Consent Agenda

Date: August 25, 2025

Suggested Motion
Move to approve the Consent Agenda as: amended, corrected, or as presented.
Enclosures

1. Claims Payable Report August 12-August 25, 2025
2. Memo for approval of Annual Retail Alcoholic Beverage Applications

3. 2025 Idaho Policing Policy



[Page Intentionally Left Blank]



Page: 1
Aug 21, 2025 11:44AM

City of Bellevue
Hosted Live 3.11.2025

Invoice Register - Claims by Dept
Input Dates: 8/1/2025 - 8/31/2025

Name Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost GL Account GL Account Description
100-01
Assaociation of Idaho Cities 13045 1 Invoice FY/26 AIC Membership Dues 07/01/2025 1,032.80 100-01-51080 Dues & Memberships
Association of Idaho Cities 200013557 1 Invoice 2025 ICCTFOA Full Registration - Shelly 08/11/2025 320.00 100-01-51080 Dues & Memberships
ICCTFOA District IV 071725 1 Invoice Admin Dues 07/17/2025 40.00  100-01-51080 Dues & Memberships
Allington, Frederick 10215 1 Invoice Regular CC mtgs - 5/7/25 - 7/28/25 08/18/2025 3,165.00 100-01-51140 Legal Fees
Allington, Frederick 10215 2 Invoice Review CC packet material - 5/7/26 - 7/2  08/18/2025 930.00 100-01-51140 Legal Fees
Allington, Frederick 10215 3 Invoice Administration Fees/research & docume 08/18/2025 345,00 100-01-51140 Legal Fees
Allington, Frederick 10215 4 Invoice Research BURA question 08/18/2025 105.00 100-01-51140 Legal Fees
Allington, Frederick 081825 1 Invoice Monthly Payment - August 08/18/2025 1,854.00 100-01-51145 Legal - Prosecuting Attorne
ToreUp 68148 1 Invoice Shredding Bin 08/06/2025 45.00 100-01-52010 Office Supplies
Pitney Bowes Purchase Power 0251-9705-8 1 Invoice Postage Refill - 8/12/25 08/19/2025 201.00 100-01-52040 Postage, Copies, Mailing
Idaho Mountain Express 12692657 1 Invoice Legal - Budget Hearing 07/09/2025 204.41 100-01-52060 Publishing
South Valley Storage Company LL 073125 1 Invoice August Rent - Unit #F-13 07/31/2025 63.00 100-01-52085 Storage
Cox Business Services 205154502-8 1 Invoice Telephone Chgs. - 8/5/25 - 9/4/25 08/05/2025 1,258.84 100-01-52100 Telephone
Total 100-01: 9,564.05
100-03
Idaho Mountain Express 12693237 1 Invoice Legal - Final Plat - Karl Malone Subdivisi  07/30/2025 41.40 100-03-51041 Client Cost Expense
L.L. Green's Hardware A776704 1 Invoice Wooden stakes - notice karl Malone 07/28/2025 32.90 100-03-51041 Client Cost Expense
Air St Lukes Membership 081425 1 Invoice Membership - Carter Bullock 08/14/2025 45.00 100-03-51080 Dues & Memberships
Total 100-03: 119.30
100-04
Ohio Guich Transfer Station 00331080 1 Invoice Dump Fee - Tree limbs 07/31/2025 5.00 100-04-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (G
Les Schwab 11700952692 1 Invoice Mower Tire Repair 07/29/2025 25.98 100-04-51163 R & M Equipment (non-aut
Total 100-04: 30.98
100-05
Valley Wide Cooperative 148372 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #3816393 08/05/2025 50.93 100-05-51110 Fuel
Valley Wide Cooperative 148387 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #3816395 08/05/2025 102.26 100-05-51110 Fuel
Napa Auto Parts 231800 1 Invoice Credit - core deposit - battery 08/01/2025 64.80- 100-05-51167 R & M - Autos
Napa Auto Parts 232181 1 Invoice Wiper blades 08/05/2025 51.98 100-05-51167 R & M - Autos
Davis Embroidery 47557 1 Invoice Uniforms 08/14/2025 1,251.54 100-05-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
Total 100-05: 1,391.91
100-08
Rocky Mountain Information Netw 261582 1 Invoice RMIN Membership Dues - 7/1/25 - 6/30/2  07/31/2025 50.00 100-08-51080 Dues & Memberships




City of Bellevue
Hosted Live 3.11.2025

Invoice Register - Claims by Dept
Input Dates: 8/1/2025 - 8/31/2025

Page: 2
Aug 21, 2025 11:44AM

Name Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost GL Account GL Account Description
Christensen Inc. dba United Oil CL93932 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #263953/Gaston 08/15/2025 28455 100-08-51110 Fuel
Christensen Inc. dba United Oil CL93932 2 Invoice Fuel - Card #263954/Shelamer 08/15/2025 23599 100-08-51110 Fuel
Christensen Inc. dba United Oil CL93932 3 Invoice Fuel - Card #263955/Thayer 08/15/2025 217.31 100-08-51110 Fuel
Napa Auto Parts 232390 1 Invoice Wiper blades 08/07/2025 26.98 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
Napa Auto Parts 232764 2 Invoice Battery, filters, etc. PD3300 08/12/2025 264.24 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
Napa Auto Parts 232938 1 Invoice Oil change PD3300 08/13/2025 70.70 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
Napa Auto Parts 232998 1 Invoice Oil change PD21334 08/13/2025 2565 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
Napa Auto Parts 232992 1 Invoice Engine oil drain plug - Marshals Dept . - 08/14/2025 11.39 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
Napa Auto Parts 233612 1 Invoice Vehicle supplies 08/19/2025 30.98 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
Napa Auto Parts 233644 1 Invoice Oil change PD3435 08/20/2025 74.25 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
Critical Hire 8/7/25 1 Invoice Hire-profile reports 08/07/2025 25.00 100-08-52120 Training & Meetings
Summit Polygraph LLC 25SP-1304 1 Invoice Pre-employment exam 08/06/2025 200.00 100-08-52120 Training & Meetings
Davis Embroidery 47533 1 Invoice Uniforms/Marshals Dept. 08/11/2025 87.70 100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
LN Curtis & Sons INV978559 1 Invoice Uniforms - Kirtus & Manny 08/12/2025 399.90 100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
LN Curtis & Sons INV978226 1 Invoice Uniforms - Manny 08/11/2025 226.50 100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
LN Curtis & Sons INV979443 1 Invoice Uniforms - Manny 08/14/2025 71.65 100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
Minert & Associates, Inc. 342856 1 Invoice NDOT Test & Collection Fee 08/06/2025 97.00 100-08-57000 Safety Equipment
Total 100-08: 2,399.79 o
100-09
Ohio Gulch Transfer Station 00329658 1 Invoice Dump Fee 07/21/2025 49.14 100-09-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (G
L.L. Green's Hardware D85020 1 Invoice City Hall entry door lever & lock box 08/18/2025 114.98 100-09-52090 Supplies
Total 100-09: 164.12
100-10
Christensen Inc. dba United Oil CL93933 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #263139/McGehee 08/15/2025 72.67 100-10-51110 Fuel
Christensen Inc. dba United Qil CL93934 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #8191665/Streets Equipment ~ 08/15/2025 152.90 100-10-51110 Fuel
Valley Wide Cooperative 161168 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #3816743 08/16/2025 206.03 100-10-51110 Fuel
Valley Wide Cooperative 161147 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #3816744 08/18/2025 270.00 100-10-51110 Fuel
Ohio Gulch Transfer Station 00328935 1 Invoice Dump Fee - O'Donnell Park 07/15/2025 124.80 100-10-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (G
Napa Auto Parts 232112 1 lInvoice Equipment for Bucket Truck 08/05/2025 58.56 100-10-51163 R & M - Equipment (non-au
Hillside Auto 49974 1 Invoice 2021 For F-250 Tk. - Transmission, brak 08/18/2025 3,943.72 100-10-51167 R & M - Autos
Napa Auto Parts 233115 1 Invoice Impact socket set 08/14/2025 129.99 100-10-52080 Small Tools & Equipment
Clearwater Power Equipment LLC 84340 1 Invoice Trimmer String 08/18/2025 18.59 100-10-52090 Supplies
L.L. Green's Hardware C19074 1 Invoice Trash bags & supplies 08/11/2025 131.94 100-10-52080 Supplies
Napa Auto Parts 232358 1 Invoice Supplies 08/07/2025 23.97 100-10-52090 Supplies
Napa Auto Parts 232864 1 Invoice Supplies 08/12/2025 8.32 100-10-52090 Supplies
Napa Auto Parts 232764 1 Invoice Shop supplies 08/12/2025 23.97 100-10-52090 Supplies
Oxarc 0062100768 1 Invoice Oxygen & Acetylene 07/31/2025 9.61 100-10-52090 Supplies




City of Bellevue
Hosted Live 3.11.2025

Invoice Register - Claims by Dept
Input Dates: 8/1/2025 - 8/31/2025

Page: 3
Aug 21, 2025 11:44AM

Name Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost GL Account GL Account Description

Total 100-10: 5,175.07

200-20
Advanced Control Systems, LLC. 40883 1 Invoice Carefree SCADA Program 08/20/2025 160.00 200-20-51062 Computers - Software
Spronk Water Engineers, Inc. WRV03-24 1 Invoice Big W.R. GW Management - 7/1/25 - 8/3/  08/14/2025 306.25 200-20-51070 Conjunctive Management
Les Schwab 11700950250 1 Invoice New Tires - Tk. #83313-06 07/16/2025 1,374.68 200-20-51167 R & M - Autos
Floyd Lilly Co. 342885 1 Invoice Fittings 08/07/2025 32.28 200-20-52090 Supplies
Norco Inc. 0044095122 1 Invoice Cylinders 07/16/2025 145.95 200-20-52090 Supplies
Total 200-20: 2,019.16

300-30
Advanced Control Systems, LLC. 40882 1 Invoice Carefree SCADA Program 08/20/2025 318.00 300-30-51062 Computers - Software & Su
Christensen Inc. dba United Oil CL93931 1 Invoice Card #263140/Wastewater 08/15/2025 252.22 300-30-51110 Fuel
Allington, Frederick 10215 5 Invoice Sewer Issues 08/18/2025 750.00 300-30-51140 Legal Fees
LDA Security, LLC. 207558 1 Invoice Security Keys for Sewer Plant 08/18/2025 84.38 300-30-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (G
Ranchers Supply 28194/1 1 Invoice Wasp Spray - WW Plant 08/18/2025 99.90 300-30-52090 Supplies
Total 300-30; 1,504.50 -
Grand Totals: 22,368.88

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash: 1]

Vendor number hash - split: 0

Total number of invoices: 0

Total number of transactions: 0




City of Bellevue Invoice Register - Claim Report by Vendor Page: 1
Hosted Live 3.11.2025 Input Dates: 8/1/2025 - 8/31/2025 Aug 21, 2025 11:42AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost GL Account GL Account Description

Advanced Control Systems, LLC. (120)

40882 1 Invoice Carefree SCADA Program 08/20/2025 318.00 300-30-51062 Computers - Software & Su
40883 1 Invoice Carefree SCADA Program 08/20/2025 160.00 200-20-51062 Computers - Software
Total Advanced Control Systems, LLC. (120): 478.00

Air St Lukes Membership (180)
081425 1 Invoice Membership - Carter Bullock 08/14/2025 45.00 100-03-51080 Dues & Memberships

Total Air St Lukes Membership (180): 45.00

Allington, Frederick (210)

081825 1 Invoice Monthly Payment - August 08/18/2025 1,854.00 100-01-51145 Legal - Prosecuting Atftorney
10215 1 Invoice Regular CC mtgs - 5/7/25 - 7/28/25 08/18/2025 3,165.00 100-01-51140 Legal Fees
10215 2 Invoice Review CC packet material - 5/7/25 - 7/28/25 08/18/2025 930.00 100-01-51140 Legal Fees
10215 3 Invoice Administration Fees/research & documentation 5/2/25 - 5/30/25 08/18/2025 345.00 100-01-51140 Legal Fees
10215 4 Invoice Research BURA question 08/18/2025 105.00 100-01-51140 Legal Fees
10215 5 Invoice Sewer Issues 08/18/2025 750.00 300-30-51140 Legal Fees
Total Allington, Frederick (210): 7,149.00

Association of Idaho Cities (330)

13045 1 Invoice FY/26 AIC Membership Dues 07/01/2025 1,032.80 100-01-51080 Dues & Memberships
200013557 1 Invoice 2025 ICCTFOA Full Registration - Shelly Shoemaker 08/11/2025 320.00 100-01-51080 Dues & Memberships
Total Assaciation of Idaho Cities (330): 1,352.80

Christensen Inc. dba United Qil (640}

CL93931 1 Invoice Card #263140/Wastewater 08/15/2025 252.22 300-30-51110 Fuel

CL93932 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #263953/Gaston 08/15/2025 284.55 100-08-51110 Fuel

CL93932 2 Invoice Fuel - Card #263954/Shelamer 08/15/2025 235.99 100-08-51110 Fuel

CL93932 3 Invoice Fuel - Card #263955/Thayer 08/15/2025 217.31 100-08-51110 Fuel

CL93933 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #263139/McGehee 08/15/2025 72.67 100-10-51110 Fuel

CL93934 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #38191665/Streets Equipment 08/15/2025 152.90 100-10-51110 Fuel
Total Christensen Inc. dba United Qil (640): 1,215.64

Clearwater Power Equipment LLC (720)
84340 1 Invoice Trimmer String 08/18/2025 18.59 100-10-52090 Supplies

12




City of Bellevue Invoice Register - Claim Report by Vendor Page: 2

Hosted Live 3.11.2025 Input Dates: 8/1/2025 - 8/31/2025 Aug 21, 2025 11:42AM
Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost GL Account GL Account Description
Total Clearwater Power Equipment LLC (720): 18.59

Cox Business Services (820)
205154502-8 1 Invoice Telephone Chgs. - 8/5/25 - 9/4/25 08/05/2025 1,258.84 100-01-52100 Telephone

Total Cox Business Services (820): 1,258.84

Critical Hire (4130)
8/7/25 1 Invoice Hire-profile reports 08/07/2025 25.00 100-08-52120 Training & Meetings

Toftal Critical Hire (4130} 25.00

Davis Embroidery (890)

47533 1 Invoice Uniforms/Marshals Dept. 08/11/2025 87.70 100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
47557 1 Invoice Uniforms 08/14/2025 1,251.54 100-05-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
Total Davis Embroidery (890): 1,339.24

Floyd Lilly Co. (1180)
342885 1 Invoice Fittings 08/07/2025 3228 200-20-52090 Supplies

Total Floyd Lilly Co. (1180): 32.28

Hillside Auto (1460)
49974 1 Invoice 2021 For F-250 Tk. - Transmission, brakes , horns, per Casey 08/18/2025 3,943.72 100-10-51167 R & M - Autos

Total Hillside Auto (1460}): 3,943.72

ICCTFOA District IV (1500)
071725 1 Invoice Admin Dues 07/17/2025 40.00 100-01-51080 Dues & Memberships

Total ICCTFOA District IV (1500): 40.00
Idaho Mountain Express (1590)
12692657 1 Invoice Legal - Budget Hearing 07/09/2025 204.41 100-01-52060 Publishing

12693237 1 Invoice Legal - Final Plat - Karl Malone Subdivision 07/30/2025 4140 100-03-51041 Client Cost Expense

Total Idaho Mountain Express (1590} 245.81

13




City of Bellevue
Hosted Live 3.11.2025

Invoice Register - Claim Report by Vendor
Input Dates: 8/1/2025 - 8/31/2025

Page: 3
Aug 21, 2025 11:42AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost GL Account GL Account Description
L.L. Green's Hardware (1900)
C18074 1 Invoice Trash bags & supplies 08/11/2025 131.94 100-10-52090 Supplies
A776704 1 Invoice Wooden stakes - notice karl Malone 07/28/2025 32.90 100-03-51041 Client Cost Expense
D85090 1 Invoice City Hall entry door lever & lock box 08/18/2025 114.98 100-09-52090 Supplies
Total L.L. Green's Hardware (1900): 279.82
LDA Security, LLC. (1950)
207558 1 Invoice Security Keys for Sewer Plant 08/18/2025 84.38 300-30-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (Gen
Total LDA Security, LLC. {1950): 84.38
Les Schwab (1970)
11700950250 1 Invoice New Tires - Tk. #83313-06 07/16/2025 1,374.68 200-20-51167 R & M - Autos
11700952692 1 Invoice Mower Tire Repair 07/29/2025 2598 100-04-51163 R & M Equipment (non-auto)
Total Les Schwab (1970): 1,400.66
LN Curtis & Sons (2020)
INV978559 1 invoice Uniforms - Kirtus & Manny 08/12/2025 389.90 100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
INV978226 1 Invoice Uniforms - Manny 08/11/2025 226.50 100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
INV979443 1 Invoice Uniforms - Manny 08/14/2025 71.65 100-08-52130 Uniforms & Clothing
Total LN Curtis & Sons (2020): 698.05
Minert & Associates, Inc. (2160)
342856 1 Invoice NDOT Test & Collection Fee 08/06/2025 897.00 100-08-57000 Safety Equipment
Total Minert & Associates, inc. (2160): 97.00
Napa Auto Parts (2260)
231800 1 Invoice Credit - core deposit - battery 08/01/2025 64.80- 100-05-51167 R & M - Autos
232181 1 Invoice Wiper blades 08/05/2025 51.98 100-05-51167 R & M - Autos
232112 1 Invoice Equipment for Bucket Truck 08/05/2025 58.56 100-10-51163 R & M - Equipment (non-auto)
232390 1 Invoice Wiper blades 08/07/2025 26.98 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
232358 1 Invoice Supplies 08/07/2025 23.97 100-10-52090 Supplies
232864 1 Invoice Supplies 08/12/2025 8.32 100-10-52090 Supplies
232764 1 Invoice Shop supplies 08/12/2025 23.97 100-10-52080 Supplies
232764 2 Invoice Battery, filters, etc. PD3300 08/12/2025 264.24 100-08-51167 R & M- Autos
232938 1 Invoice Oil change PD3300 08/13/2025 70.70 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
232998 1 Invoice Oil change PD21334 08/13/2025 25.65 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos

14



City of Bellevue
Hosted Live 3.11.2025

Invoice Register - Claim Report by Vendor

Input Dates: 8/1/2025 - 8/31/2025

Page: 4
Aug 21, 2025 11:42AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost GL Account GL Account Description
232992 1 Invoice Engine oil drain plug - Marshals Dept . - Mike's car 08/14/2025 11.39 100-08-51167 R & M- Autos
233115 1 Invoice Impact socket set 08/14/2025 129.99 100-10-52080 Small Tools & Equipment
233612 1 Invoice Vehicle supplies 08/19/2025 30.98 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
233644 1 Invoice Qil change PD3435 08/20/2025 74.25 100-08-51167 R & M - Autos
Tota! Napa Auto Parts (2260): 736.18
Norco Inc. {2300)
0044095122 1 Invoice Cylinders 07/16/2025 145.95 200-20-52090 Supplies
Total Norco Inc. {2300): 145.95
Ohio Guich Transfer Station (2350)
00329658 1 Invoice Dump Fee 07/21/2025 49.14 100-09-51160 Repairs & Maintenance {General
00331080 1 Invoice Dump Fee - Tree limbs 07/31/2025 5.00 100-04-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (General
00328935 1 Invoice Dump Fee - O'Donnell Park 07/15/2025 124.80 100-10-51160 Repairs & Maintenance (General
Total Chio Gulch Transfer Station (2350): . 178.94
Oxarc (2390)
0062100768 1 Invoice Oxygen & Acetylene 07/31/2025 9.61 100-10-52090 Supplies
Total Oxarc (2390): 9.61
Pitney Bowes Purchase Power (2540)
0251-9705-8 1 Invoice Postage Refill - 8/12/25 08/19/2025 201.00 100-01-52040 Postage, Copies, Mailing
Total Pitney Bowes Purchase Power (2540): 201.00
Ranchers Supply (2670)
28194/1 1 Invoice Wasp Spray - WW Plant 08/18/2025 99.90 300-30-52090 Supplies
Total Ranchers Supply (2670): 99.90
Rocky Mountain Information Network, Inc. (2780)
261582 1 Invoice RMIN Membership Dues - 7/1/25 - 6/30/26 07/31/2025 50.00 100-08-51080 Dues & Memberships
Total Rocky Mountain Information Network, Inc. (2780): 50.00
\
South Valley Storage Company LLC (3060)
073125 1 Invoice August Rent - Unit #F-13 07/31/2025 63.00 100-01-52085 Storage

N

15




City of Bellevue
Hosted Live 3.11.2025

Invoice Register - Claim Report by Vendor

input Dates: 8/1/2025 - 8/31/2025

Page: 5
Aug 21, 2025 11:42AM

Invoice Seq Type Description Invoice Date Total Cost Gl Account GL Account Description
Total South Valley Storage Company LLC (3060): 63.00
Spronk Water Engineers, Inc. (3080)
WRV03-24 1 Invoice Big W.R. GW Management - 7/1/25 - 8/3/25 08/14/2025 306.25 200-20-51070 Conjunctive Management
Total Spronk Water Engineers, Inc. (3080): 306.25
Summit Polygraph LLC (4140)
25S8P-1304 1 Invoice Pre-employment exam 08/06/2025 200.00 100-08-52120 Training & Meetings
Total Summit Polygraph LLC (4140): 200.00
ToreUp (3360)
68148 1 Invoice Shredding Bin 08/06/2025 45.00 100-01-52010 Office Supplies
Total ToreUp (3360): 45.00
Valley Wide Cooperative (3510)
148372 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #3816393 08/05/2025 50.93 100-05-51110 Fuel
161168 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #3816743 08/16/2025 206.03 100-10-51110 Fuel
161147 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #3816744 08/18/2025 270.00 100-10-51110 Fuel
148387 1 Invoice Fuel - Card #3816395 08/05/2025 102.26 100-05-51110 Fuel
Total Valley Wide Cooperative (3510): 629.22
Grand Totals: 22,368.88

Report GL Period Summary

Vendor number hash:
Vendor number hash - split:
Total number of invoices:

o o C O

Total number of transactions:

16




Bellevue Marshal’s Office

115 E Pine Street
PO Box 825
Bellevue, ID 83313
Phone: 208-788-3692
Fax: 208-788-8526

To:  City of Bellevue Common Council

Re: Renewal of annual alcohol licenses

On 08/04/2025 | went to all previous license holders and advised them they were
not permitted to sell any alcohol until they provide appropriate application and approved
by City Council. Since that time | have conducted site checks at Tacos El Paisa, Contigo
Peru and Silver Creek Hotel without incident, finding no violations.

Tacos El Paisa LLC 401 N. Main St, Bellevue, ID

Contigo Peru LLC 745 N. Main St Ste F, Bellevue, ID
Silver Creek Properties Inc, DBA Silver Creek Hotel, 721 N. Main St. Bellevue, ID

The Bellevue Marshal’s Office recommends the approval and issuance of the
licenses as requested.

Kirtus S. Gaston
08/21/2025

17



[Page Intentionally Left Blank]

18



Bellevue Marshal’s Office

115 E Pine Street
PO Box 825
Bellevue, ID 83313
Phone: 208-788-3692
Fax: 208-788-8526

Date: 08/25/2025

In order to operate within the parameters of State and Federal Law, The Bellevue
Marshal’s office needs to have clear, up-to-date policing policies in place. These policies
not only guide how our officers do their jobs, but they also protect the City by making
sure our practices line up with current laws and recognized standards.

Each year, ICRMP (Idaho Counties Risk Management Program) updates its Idaho
Policing Policy. This policy is written specifically for law enforcement agencies in Idaho
and takes into account new laws, court rulings, and best practices. By adopting the 2025
version, we can be confident that our Marshal’s Office is working from the most current
and defensible set of guidelines.
Approving this resolution does a few important things for us:
o Keeps our policies current with Idaho law and national policing standards.
o Gives our Marshal’s Office a consistent framework for day-to-day operations and
training.
e Reduces risk and liability exposure for the City.
e Shows our community that we are committed to professionalism, accountability,
and public safety.
In short, adopting the 2025 ICRMP Idaho Policing Policy ensures that Bellevue is doing
things the right way—protecting both our officers and our residents. | recommend that
Council approve the resolution.

Kirtus S. Gaston
Marshal

19



Updated 2025

Endorsed by the Idaho Counties Risk Management Program,
Idaho Sheriffs’ Association and Idaho Chiefs of Police Association

AICRMP

Member Owned, Member Driven

20



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Contents
LAW ENFORCEMENT CODE OF ETHICS ....coeeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeseeeeseseeeesessssssssesesesssssessssesssssssssessessssnesnnnnes 1
POLICY IMANUAL ...ceeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt ettt eeeeeeeee e e ee e e e eeeesessese s e s e s s ae s e s e s e s e s e s s e e s s s s as s e s s s s ae s s s s s e e e e s enssaesnssenenanensnenennnennnnnns 2
1600 11175 11 1 G LR 3
Competency as a Law ENforcemMeNnt OFfiCEI .....ooi i et e e s e e e ta e e e eneaeas 3
Personal Safety EQUIPMENT .......oi e et e e e e e et e e e e ate e e s snteeeeassteeeassaeeenseeeesnsseeeantaeeennsenns 4
Personal CondUCt — DULY ReIAEEM......ccc ettt e e e et e e e e s e et b ee e e e e seesnabbaeeeaeeeasantraseaaaeaanes 5
Personal CondUCE — ON OF OFff DULY ...ttt ettt e e e e e et re e e e e e s e e saaraaeeeeeseesnnsbaseeaeeeesantraseaaasannes 6
PErSONAl ASSOCIATIONS ..citiieieiiee ettt ettt ettt e st e e e sttt e e sat e e e s bteeeesab b e e e santeeesabaeeeaabbeeessbaeesabeeeesabbeeennbaeesaraeas 7
Personal Internet/Onling COMMUNICATION .....iiiiueiee ettt ee et e e et e e et e e e s eat e e e e st e e e e ssbeessasaeesssnbaeeesnaeeeseneneas 8
Domestic Violence and Other Criminal Charges .......oeui oo e e e et e e e e e e e e e ranbraeeeeaeeanas 9
AdMINISTrative INVESTIZAtiONS...c.ii e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s bbtaeeaaeeesaatataeeaaaeeaansssaeeeaassensnnsens 9
OFf-Duty LaW ENfOrCEMENT ACTION ...uviiiii ettt e e ettt e e e e e e et e e e e e e e eesabaabeeaeeeeenssssaeeeaaesennnnsnes 10
REIEASE OF INTOIMATION . .eiiiiiie ettt e sttt e e e s bt e e s st te e e sabeeesnabaeessabeaessabbeeesnnbaeesnasaeas 10
[\ o g B =T o =T I o] [ ol T V- USSR 11
(O 72T s W oY 0] o] =11 o] PR PUPRRE 11
POLICING PROCEDURES .....cettitiiiitiiiiiiieiieeieeeeeteeeteeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeesesesesesesesesesesesesessesseseeeeseessesseeseesseeeeeeeeeeeseneees 12
UL =N il e Yol I Yo Vo VA AT Te Yo ] o - TS SUUU 12
RESTIAINTS ..ttt ettt ettt et e e ettt e e e e e e e b ettt e e e e e s e sa b et e e e e e s e aab bt eeeeeae s unbeeaeaeeseaaunbbbaeeeeeeaanbraaeaeens 17
Y=E (e I Lo BY=T AU =T Y [T =T o = TR 18
F N gt =T g o I GV L) oo | U PURURN 22
EMeErgency and PUISUIT DIIVING .......ooiceiiiiieiee e ccee ettt eeettee e st e e s te e e s tte e e e sataeeeeasaaeessseaeeassaeesanssaeessseesanssseesnnsnes 25
Officer-INvolved Critical INCIAENTS ......uiiiiiiiecee ettt st e st e s te e sabeesate e sateesabeesaseenaees 26
SPECIAL FIELD RESPONSE ... .o e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e s e e s e e s e e e s e s e e eesaeseeeesasasesasssasesssnsasasanananns 29
YT Y1 Tl A o Tol=Yo [0 O TSP 29
DOMESTIC VIOIENCE RESPONSE ....uuviiiiieeieeiiiiieee e e e ettt e e e e e e eetteb e e e e e e seetatbeeeeeeeeasaasaeaeaaeseaasssaaseaaeseasssasaeesaseasansraseaaens 30
L@ AV IRy =Y Vo1 V2RSSRt 31
L = LE =IO T3 0TSPTSRO 31
Adult Abuse, Neglect and EXPloitation ........ciiccieie it e e e e e st e e s rnae e e e s ntaeeesneeeeennneeens 32
LY TRy [T ¥ LUl Y=Y oo o T =P 33
Y TR Y= f Yo Yo [Vt =Te l @l a1 1 e [ =Y o SRR 35
AMBER AlEIT ACHIVATION ..eeitieeeitee ittt ettt e e bt et e e bt e e s bte e bt e e sate e beeebeesbeeeatesbaesbeesbeesnseasane 36
Diplomatic Immunity and Consular NOtifiCation ........c.ueiiiuiiee e e e e e e e eaeneas 37
Response to Explosives, Drug Labs and Hazardous Materials..........ccceocuieeiiiiieiccieee et 38
CANINE UNIES ettt ettt e e e et e e e e e s e e e e e e e s e n s r e e et e e e e e e nr e et e e e e e e e ranneeeeeesennnrereeeeeseannnnee 39
RESEIVE OFfICRIS .ottt ettt et ettt e e bt e e s bt e e bt e e s bt e e bt e e sste e beeesabeesbeeesabeesbteesabeensteesateeneas 41
N[ = L A @ = 1] o [T TP 42
(@] oY [o] e W@ 1VZ=T o [o 1Y TN PR PUPRNE 43
V1T o =11 =T o] =TT UUUTRN 44
INVESTIGATIONS, INFORMATION AND EVIDENCE.......coctiiiieieeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeessessesssssssseesessssssssenes 45
Evidence and Property
Sexual Assault Kits............
FiNUle [T - o 1o IMVATo [<To T 2T elo  de 112V ={ U PUUURRN 48

Copyright © 2025 Law En@{cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

ILETS - Idaho Public Safety and Security INnformation SyStem .........occuuiiiiiii i 50
Use Of Artificial INTEIIZENCE .. ... e e et e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e e e abbaeeeeeeeesaabaaaeeeeeeesnsrnaeaaans 52
AUtoMated LICENSE Plate REAUEIS. ... ..eiiiiiiie ettt s et e e sttt e e s st e e s s ate e e sabeeesssbaeessntaesssseeenns 53
[ To) ol T o TR U oL USSR 54
Confidential INFOrMANTS ....eiiiiiiee ettt e st e e st te e e s aba e e s abeeeesabbeeesanbaeesasseeessbeeeesanes 56
ADMINISTRATION L. ittt et e e et et et e et e e e et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et et e e e e e e e et eeeeeeeeeeseseeseaeaees 59
Organization AaNd AULNOIITY .....coo e e e e et e e e e e e e e et be e e e e e eeesataaaeeaaeeeeansssaeeeaaesennsnsens 59
Y= =Yoo o =Yoo B N =1 L1 = U PUUURN 59
F Yo o [orV A V=] o 1ol F= PR UURURN 61
Non-Discrimination and EqQUAal QP PoOrtUNITY ......cee it e e et e e e e e e rbra e e e e e e e esabbraeeeaeeesntsaneaaens 61
Overtime and COMPENSATION ... uiiiiiee et ee e et e e e e e eecte e e e e e e s e e raatbaseeeeeeesatbaseeaeeeaassasseesseesaasssseeeaassennsnsens 63
Y TeleTa Yo =T V28 =1 44T o1 oY/ 0 4T | AR 64
LTV T T S o T 0] o= g 1Y 1 o o SN 64
[0TSR T3N ol D1V YA 65
(D] VTSN 7o) o To] IF=Ta o I o] o - Il ol o 1 U L1 <D0 SR 65
INFECTIOUS DISEASE EXPOSUIE ....eiiiieiieeieiiieeeitee e sttt e e eeteeeestte e e e taeeesataeesseaeeeastseeeessteeasssseaeaassseseasssseessseesannsseesansnns 66
POLICY CHANGE RECORD. ....citttttitiititititieieieteteteeeteteeeteeeteeeteteteteseseteseseseteseteteseeeteeeteteteeeeteesesesesesseeeeeeeseseneen 68
IN DD EX < eitttiiiee et ettt ettt e e e e e e ettt e e s e e e e e e ea et aaeeee e e et b e e eeeae et et b e e e ee e et e bt eeeeeeetaebaeeeeeteetaranaaaaaes 71
ii

Copyright © 2025 Law En@zcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

LAW ENFORCEMENT CODE OF ETHICS

July 2017

As a law enforcement officer, my fundamental duty is to serve the community; to safeguard lives and
property; to protect the innocent against deception, the weak against oppression or intimidation, and the
peaceful against violence or disorder; and to respect the Constitutional rights of all to liberty, equality and
justice.

| will keep my private life unsullied as an example to all and will behave in a manner that does not bring
discredit to me or to my agency. | will maintain courageous calm in the face of danger, scorn, or ridicule;
develop self-restraint; and be constantly mindful of the welfare of others. Honest in thought and deed in
both my personal and official life, | will be exemplary in obeying the law and the regulations of my
department. Whatever | see or hear of a confidential nature or that is confided to me in my official
capacity will be kept ever secret unless revelation is necessary in the performance of my duty.

| will never act officiously or permit personal feelings, prejudices, political beliefs, aspirations, animosities
or friendships to influence my decisions. With no compromise for crime and with relentless prosecution
of criminals, | will enforce the law courteously and appropriately without fear or favor, malice or ill will,
never employing unnecessary force or violence and never accepting gratuities.

| recognize the badge of my office as a symbol of public faith, and | accept it as a public trust to be held so
long as | am true to the ethics of police service. | will never engage in acts of corruption or bribery, nor
will | condone such acts by other police officers. | will cooperate with all legally authorized agencies and
their representatives in the pursuit of justice.

| know that | alone am responsible for my own standard of professional performance and will take every
reasonable opportunity to enhance and improve my level of knowledge and competence. | will constantly
strive to achieve these objectives and ideals, dedicating myself before God to my chosen profession...law
enforcement.

(Idaho Peace Officer Standards and Training Council, Idaho administrative rule 11.11.01.057.07)

1
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC


https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/current/11/111101.pdf

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

POLICY MANUAL

July 2021

All provisions in this policy manual have the same authority as the agency head’s signed, written order.
All existing agency rules, regulations, orders, directives and policies which conflict with its provisions are
rescinded as of the issue date of this manual. All those not in conflict will maintain their authority.

This manual is in addition to, and does not replace, city or county personnel policies. If city or county
policies exist, they supersede those in this manual. Additionally, it is designed to be only a portion of our
agency’s governing practices. It should be used alongside agency-specific procedure manuals and be
reinforced by ongoing in-service training programs and courses from Idaho Peace Officer Standards and
Training.

Changes, updates or corrections to this manual will be made by written directives from the agency head
and disseminated to all employees who are under the direction of this manual.

Unless otherwise noted, the provisions in this manual apply to all agency employees including full and
part-time staff, temporary employees, reserve deputies, volunteers and any other individuals who may
act as an official representative of our agency.

CONTROLLING TERMS USED IN THIS MANUAL
e Shall - Mandatory
e Will - Indicates compliance as conditions permit
e Should - Advisory
e May - Permissive, depending upon sound judgment

Failure to comply with any mandatory (shall or will) provisions of this manual may be subject to
administrative investigation and discipline.

2
Copyright © 2025 Law En@ﬁcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

CONDUCT

You must lead by example for our law enforcement agency to earn the respect and confidence of the
people we serve. Your special status as a member of law enforcement carries with it a unique set of
obligations and expectations. As long as you choose to work in law enforcement, you have accepted a
higher level of scrutiny into your personal affairs and must abide by rules of personal conduct both on and
off duty. We strive for voluntary compliance with these rules, but ultimately, it’s your responsibility to
consistently use good judgment and demeanor in all matters.

Competency as a Law Enforcement Officer
January 2016

When reporting for duty go directly to your work assignment, familiarize yourself with relevant events
that have taken place since your last duty shift, and review and take action on any memos, subpoenas or
correspondence.

Restrict duties to your assigned duty area during working hours unless otherwise instructed. You may not
conduct personal business on duty time for the purpose of private gain, and you shall not engage in
personal recreation or entertainment during work hours. This does not restrict reasonable recreational
activities during authorized breaks not in public view.

PERFORMANCE
In addition to meeting standards of conduct on and off duty, satisfactory performance and competence
include:

e Adequate knowledge of laws, policies and conduct standards and their applications;

e Compliance with laws, agency policies and procedures;

o  Willingness and ability to properly perform assigned tasks in a timely manner;

e Appropriate and timely action when a crime, disorder or other condition requiring police action
occurs;

e No absence without leave;

e Not receiving repeated poor evaluations; and

e Compliance with all personnel policies.

Failure to meet conduct or performance standards may result in discipline, up to and including
termination.

REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE NAME

While on duty or acting in an official capacity, you shall furnish your name and employee number to any
person requesting that information except when authorized by your supervisor to do otherwise for just
cause.

COURT ATTENDANCE

You are required to appear in court as directed by subpoena or by your supervisor unless other
arrangements have been made with the court. Prior to arrival at court, you should obtain a copy of all
relevant reports and be familiar with their content to aid your testimony.

3
Copyright © 2025 Law En%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

PUBLIC MONIES

If you encounter a shortage or any irregularity when dealing with public funds or monies that are or may
be perceived to be in your custody or care, you will immediately notify your supervisor. You will complete
an administrative report regarding the circumstances surrounding any unresolved shortages or
irregularities of public monies and submit it through your chain of command.

AGENCY EQUIPMENT

Any agency-owned equipment including phones, audio and video recorders, weapons and vehicles is
intended for conducting official business. Personal use of agency-owned equipment must be authorized
by the agency head. You will maintain agency-issued equipment in good working order without
modification, and report damage expeditiously to your supervisor.

AGENCY RECORDS

You must truthfully and openly provide all relevant information to the agency record when completing an
investigation or documenting an event. Additionally, you should not delete a recording, part of a recording
or any other official agency record. Lastly, unless authorized by your supervisor, you shall not keep any
reports, photographs, videos or other agency records outside of the agency’s official storage system
except as needed to prepare for court immediately preceding your anticipated testimony.

Personal Safety Equipment

January 2016

SEATBELTS

Traffic-related fatalities are a leading cause of death of officers on duty. You are required to wear vehicle-
equipped safety belts/restraining devices at all times except in circumstances in which the use of seat
belts may hamper your safety or efficient performance of law enforcement functions. These exceptions
are generally limited to search or incident investigations that require frequent starts and stops, are
conducted at slow speeds and those that occur off public roadways.

All passengers in department-owned vehicles, including arrestees, are required to use seat belts or age-
appropriate child restraint devices.

SOFT BODY ARMOR
We support the use of practical safety measures to reduce the risks and hazards associated with police
work. Soft body armor vests have been shown to be effective in reducing deaths and serious injuries.

If we have issued you soft body armor, you are required to wear your vest when uniformed and in the
field. When in plain clothes, you must wear body armor anytime you are involved in an enforcement
function involving a high-risk situation and during actions which are likely to involve field contacts with
the potential for violence.

All body armor must either be departmental issued or departmental approved.
REFLECTIVE SAFETY VESTS

If we have supplied you with a reflective safety vest, you shall wear it anytime you are conducting a
sustained investigation on a roadway or highway where traffic is travelling.

4
Copyright © 2025 Law En%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Personal Conduct — Duty Related
July 2017

At all times, you shall conduct yourself in a manner that reflects favorably on the agency and on yourself.
Every employee represents our law enforcement agency regardless of assignment. It is our duty to protect
our citizens and your fellow employees. You are expected to follow and respect the law at all times,
whether it is traffic, criminal, personnel or other.

CONDUCT UNBECOMING

Conduct unbecoming an officer may include behavior that brings the agency into disrepute, reflects poorly
upon you as a member of our agency, or impairs the operation or efficiency of the agency or its employees.
You shall not criticize the agency, its employees, or its policies when the criticism is false or malicious.

INSUBORDINATION

Insubordination includes refusal to promptly obey the lawful order of a ranking officer, the use of
derogatory remarks or criticism directed toward or about a ranking officer, bypassing a ranking officer in
the chain of command without good cause, or being untruthful to a superior officer or administrative
investigator. You shall treat ranking officers with respect and refrain from insubordination.

CONGREGATIONS

When on duty, you may not loiter in cafes, drive-ins, service stations or other public places. You are not
to congregate in public places while on duty or in uniform without supervisory approval. Under normal
circumstances, no more than two uniformed officers may take a coffee break or meal at the same time
and location. Officers meeting in the field to exchange information should attempt to do so in an
inconspicuous location and for only as long as necessary.

SLEEPING ON DUTY

You shall remain awake while on duty. If unable to do so, you must report to your immediate supervisor
who shall assign you to other appropriate duty for the rest of your shift, or send you home on sick, annual
or compensatory leave as the circumstances dictate.

ON-DUTY RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHERS
When on duty or on the law enforcement campus, regardless of your personal relationship with another
employee or member of the public, you are prohibited from:

e Touching the breasts or genital areas of another;

e Having intercourse with or performing any sexual acts upon another;

e Kissing or allowing subordinates to kiss another employee while on duty;

e Embracing or allowing yourself to be embraced by another in such manner as to provide sexual
gratification to either person;

e Touching or allowing yourself to be touched by another in such manner as to provide sexual
gratification to either person; or

e Engaging in conversation with or allowing yourself to be engaged in conversation by another, in
such a manner as to provide sexual gratification.

Authorized undercover operations may be an exception to this rule if approved by your supervisor.

5
Copyright © 2025 Law En@fcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

REPORTING MEDICATIONS THAT MAY IMPAIR PERFORMANCE

If you are taking a prescribed medication that alters mood, perception, alertness or other factors that may
affect job performance, you shall notify your supervisor before reporting for duty. You shall provide the
name and dosage of the medication and accurately describe its known or perceived effects.

Personal Conduct — On or Off Duty
June 2020

ABUSE OF POSITION

You shall only use your official position, identification cards or badges in the performance of your duties
as law enforcement officer and may not use them for personal or financial gain, for obtaining privileges
not otherwise available to you or for avoiding the consequences of illegal acts. You may not lend your
identification card or department-issued badge to anyone else, nor authorize any individual or
organization to use your name, photo or official title as a member of our agency without approval of the
agency head.

USE OF INFLUENCE IN CRIMINAL PROCEEDINGS

You may not write letters or otherwise officially provide evidence or testimony on behalf of a defendant,
unless under subpoena or authorized through the handling prosecutor of the case and your chain of
command.

INTERFERENCE WITH PROSECUTION

You may not make or negotiate any arrangement to allow a person to escape the penalty of the law or
otherwise interfere with the courts unless done through proper authority and in the objective interests
of justice. Peace officers may make a written request to withdraw charges through your chain of command
and the applicable prosecutor's office.

RECOMMENDATIONS, ENDORSEMENTS AND REFERRALS

You may not use your authority as a peace officer to recommend or suggest the employment or purchase
of a particular product, commercial service or professional service such as an attorney, ambulance,
towing, bondsman, mortician or taxi. In the case of taxi, ambulance and towing services, you should follow
the established agency dispatch procedures for recommending a provider to a citizen who requests or
needs these services when you are on duty.

These restrictions do not apply to personal business or interactions independent of your role as a law
enforcement officer.

DISRUPTIVE LABOR ACTIVITIES

You shall not engage in any strike. The term "strike" includes the organized failure to report for duty,
willful absence from one's position, unauthorized holidays, sickness or the abstinence in whole or in part
from the full, faithful and proper performance of the duties of employment (including work "speed ups"
or "slowdowns") for the purposes of inducing, influencing or coercing a change in conditions,
compensation, rights, privileges or obligations of employment.

6
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

POLITICAL ACTIVITY

All agency employees, while off duty and not in uniform, are permitted to engage in any lawful political
activity. Employees are prohibited from using their official capacity as a member of this agency to
influence, interfere with or affect the result of an election; to engage in electioneering for one political
party or candidate over another; or to address political gatherings in support of or in opposition to a
candidate. This includes identifying yourself as a member of the agency and/or wearing your uniform
when promoting a political issue without the express permission of the agency head.

If you choose to run for a political elective office, you must give notice in writing to the agency head 30
days prior to filing for the election. The agency head should seek legal guidance and may require you to
take a nonpaid leave of absence if it is deemed necessary to the operation of the agency.

BAIL

You may become surety or guarantor, post bond or furnish bail for yourself or members of your immediate
family. You may not become surety or guarantor, post bond or furnish bail for other persons unless such
action is approved by a supervisor and if agency interests are not at stake.

BRIBES, GRATUITIES, REWARDS AND GIFTS

You shall not accept a bribe or engage in other unlawful means of obtaining money or property of any
kind. You shall not solicit any reward for the performance of duty or ask for a gratuity of any kind. You
shall not accept, directly or indirectly, any gratuity, fee, loan, reward or gift for anything connected to
your official duties. You may accept unsolicited discounts on purchases or items of advertising or
giveaway materials (such as pens, pads, calendars, diaries or similar items of little or nominal value) if
these items are also offered to members of the public.

If you receive an unsolicited gift or reward that may be connected to your official position, immediately
report the gift or reward through your chain of command for determination of appropriate disposition.

SURREPTITIOUS RECORDINGS

You shall not record other employees at any time without the consent of those being recorded. The
agency head or his designee may authorize audio and/or video recordings of employees without their
knowledge or consent during the course of a special investigation. In these cases, a special investigations
unit, or employee appointed by the agency head, shall supervise the planning, acquisition and storage of
the recordings.

PERSONAL USE OF INFORMATION
You may not retain a personal copy of information, photographs, recordings or other records made by or
while in the service of the agency without prior authorization.

Personal Associations
January 2016

When representing our agency, you shall treat all persons in a civil, respectful manner. You will not
intentionally antagonize any person nor use vulgar or uncomplimentary speech in the presence of
members of the public.

7
Copyright © 2025 Law En@g’cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

PROHIBITED ASSOCIATIONS

Except as necessary in the performance of official duties or where unavoidable because of family
relationships, you shall avoid regular or continuous associations or dealings with any person who you
know is under criminal investigation or indictment or who has a reputation in the community for current
or habitual involvement in criminal behavior. This includes but is not limited to individuals who are:

e Under criminal investigation or indictment;

e On parole or supervised felony probation through any court;

e Released from any jail, prison or other criminal holding facility within the past six (6) months;

e The suspect in any criminal felony case not yet adjudicated in court; or

e Engaged in activities that, by association, would bring discredit to the agency such as users of
illegal drugs, gang members, exotic dancers or strippers, escort service providers, or performers
in pornographic productions.

Furthermore, you shall not allow, or attempt to foster, a personal relationship with any person under your
custody or control at any time during the course of your duties.

If you believe you are in violation of this policy, request direction from your chain of command or agency
legal advisor. Such inquiries will be kept confidential.

PERSONAL INVOLVEMENT

You should not intentionally become involved in neighborhood quarrels or disputes that are near your
place of residence. Nor, if practical, should you handle calls or take enforcement action in situations
involving friends or relatives. Matters requiring police attention in your home neighborhood or involving
friends or relatives are better handled by an impartial, on-duty peace officer. This does not restrict you
from taking off-duty or on-duty action as otherwise outlined in agency policy

PURCHASE FROM PRISONERS

You may not purchase anything from a prisoner unless through a retail outlet or a process approved by
the agency head. You may not purchase anything from a person against whom this agency has a criminal
charge pending or if you are involved in prosecution as the arresting officer, investigator or a witness.

Personal Internet/Online Communication
January 2016

As an employee of this agency, your conduct both on and off duty must meet a high standard. This
includes, but is not limited to, conduct related to materials posted on the internet or disseminated
electronically including email, social media, instant messaging, blogs, forums, video and file-sharing sites.
You should not maintain, or permit to be maintained, internet or other digital content that:

e Could reasonably be interpreted to express the opinions of this agency. You may comment on a
subject of general interest and of value and concern to the public provided that, in doing so, you
do not identify yourself as a member of this agency or otherwise suggest or imply that the views
expressed are those of this agency.

e Has both a reference to you being affiliated with this agency and contains content that is
unprofessional, unbecoming or illegal, such as lewd sexual conduct, excessive alcohol

8
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf&ijcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

consumption or similar behaviors. You are reminded that courts may scrutinize the credibility of
a witness from sources like the internet.

e Could be reasonably interpreted as having an adverse effect upon agency morale, discipline and
operation, safety of staff or perception of the public.

e Contains any recording, including images, obtained while in the performance of duty or while on
duty with this agency or displaying uniforms, vehicles, insignia or other images that identify you
with the agency, without the express consent of the agency head.

Domestic Violence and Other Criminal Charges
July 2017

We have a zero-tolerance policy towards law enforcement employees engaging in domestic violence,
whether the employee is a sworn peace officer or civilian. For this policy, domestic violence is as defined
in Idaho Code 18-918. Simplified, it defines domestic violence as any household member who commits
battery or assault against another, with household members described as spouses, former spouses, and
individuals who have a child in common or are living together regardless of marital status or presenting
themselves as a husband or wife.

CRIMINAL CHARGES

If you are arrested or summonsed for any misdemeanor or felony offense, you shall report the event to
your supervisor prior to reporting on your next scheduled duty day. If you are charged with a crime, you
may be temporarily reassigned or placed on administrative leave; however, the agency head reserves the
right to take additional steps regarding the duty status of any employee should the facts of the situation
warrant it.

If you are charged with a domestic violence crime, sworn members will immediately surrender all agency-
owned weapons until the charge has been adjudicated.

GUILTY FINDING

Federal law prohibits an officer convicted of any felony or misdemeanor domestic violence charge from
possessing a firearm. If you are convicted of a domestic violence crime, we shall ensure compliance with
federal laws regarding the use and possession of firearms and, if required, act to revoke your police
powers and terminate your employment with our agency.

Administrative Investigations
June 2019

Administrative investigations are used to document information, determine whether an employee
violated agency policy, identify possible disciplinary actions and assess liability. When employees are
investigated for possible criminal acts, administrative interviews should not occur until criminal interviews
are complete. Also, the criminal investigator and administrative investigator should not be the same
person.

In criminal proceedings, people are protected by the 5th Amendment from making incriminating
statements, but that does not extend to the administrative investigation. For any employee subject to

9
Copyright © 2025 Law En@{cement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title18/T18CH9/SECT18-918/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

discipline, the administrative investigator should provide a “Garrity Warning” before an interview. A
Garrity Warning instructs the employee that they must be truthful in all answers, and if they are untruthful
or refuse to answer, they may be subject to termination. The employee only needs to acknowledge the
warning, not consent to it.

Afterwards, an employee can be compelled to answer questions, or if they refuse, the agency head can
place them on suspension and initiate termination proceedings.

Off-Duty Law Enforcement Action
July 2024

In cases where an off-duty peace officer witnesses a criminal violation, the officer may either take
enforcement action or act as a trained observer and communicator. To determine if any action is
appropriate, you should consider whether:

e The crime is serious enough to warrant immediate intervention to protect life or property (off
duty enforcement of minor violations is discouraged);

e You can reasonably expect to control the situation as the sole officer on scene without benefit of
police radio communication;

e You are armed and in possession of police identification; and

e You are within your jurisdiction.

If you can reasonably expect to exercise the same high degree of professionalism as would be expected
in an on-duty capacity, you may consider taking enforcement action. If you cannot, or if you are a reserve
officer or non-sworn employee, you should act only as a trained observer and communicator.

Release of Information
January 2016

We strive to respect the privacy of those involved in the criminal justice system to the extent that is
possible. We will comply with the Idaho Public Records Act to the best of our ability and all information
released in response to a public records request will be released by our agency head or his/her designee.
Unless you are the official designee, you are not authorized to release information to any person outside
the criminal justice system except as follows:

e Name, age and city of residence of someone involved in a traffic crash, unless the person was
killed or is currently hospitalized. Family members deserve to be notified of the event before the
public.

e Name, age, city of residence and criminal charge for a routine arrest of any adult.

e Interviews with media that provide basic information about an event. Information about our work
helps our community understand what we do, and you should provide it when you can. A good
general rule is that privacy applies to people, not the things they did. You can talk about the basic
events and decline to identify any names or addresses of the people involved, but if you are
uncertain this is an appropriate release of information, contact your supervisor for approval.

10
Copyright © 2025 Law En@zcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

You may not comment or release information about ongoing investigations or arrests that occur after
ongoing investigations. Our agency head or his/her designee are the only individuals authorized to
comment or release information about a case.

Under no circumstances may you release personal information about any person unless it fulfills a lawful
and legitimate agency goal such as protecting a victim. This includes driver’s license, registration,
addresses and other personal information. Additionally, you shall not access any agency information
system to obtain personal information about an individual unless the inquiry fulfills a lawful and legitimate
agency goal.

Non-Biased Policing

January 2016

We are committed to the protection of civil rights and liberties for all people. We maintain public trust by
providing service and enforcing laws in a fair and equitable manner.

Biased policing is the selection of individuals for contact or enforcement based solely on a common trait
relating to a protected class such as race, ethnicity, gender, sexual orientation, religion or national origin.

You should not single out nor treat any person differently based solely on these traits. Initiating contact
or taking law enforcement action should be based on a person’s conduct or other specific suspect
information. You must be able to articulate specific facts and circumstances that support reasonable
suspicion or probable cause to justify your actions.

Citizen Complaints

June 2019

We will listen to and consider all reasonable citizen complaints. Whether it is a complaint against you, or
you are taking a complaint against another employee, you should not immediately disregard any person’s
point of view. If the actions laid out in the complaint were proper and within policy, collect the
complainant’s contact information for a supervisor. A supervisor should reach out to them as soon as
possible and use the opportunity to educate the person as to why the officer’s actions were appropriate
in that situation. If the actions were questionable and/or the citizen is unsatisfied at the end of your
discussion, you should document the complaint and discussion and forward it to your agency head or their
designee.

11
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

POLICING PROCEDURES

Use of Force and Weapons
July 2023

Most encounters with actual or suspected violators can be successfully handled without employing use of
physical force, and whenever practicable, you should make use of time, distance and communication to
obtain cooperation of a suspect and avoid the use of force.

If these options are not sufficient to resolve a law enforcement situation, you are authorized to use
reasonable force to accomplish a legitimate police purpose. This means that not only should you believe
the force was reasonable, but other reasonable officers on scene would also judge the use of force as
necessary and the amount of force as reasonable. You should use the minimal amount of force necessary
to resolve the situation when practicable, but you are not required to use the least intrusive degree of
force if circumstances warrant otherwise.

Idaho law defines the use of force in Idaho Code 19-610 and the use of deadly force in Idaho Code 18-
4011. Simplified, these statutes say:

An officer who is making an arrest under authority of a warrant or probable cause and has notified the
suspect of this intention to arrest, may use all reasonable and necessary means to effect the arrest if the
suspect flees or forcibly resists.

Use of deadly force is justified when reasonably necessary to overcome resistance or prevent the escape of
any person charged with or suspected of having committed a felony if the officer has probable cause to
believe the resistance or the suspect poses a threat of death or serious physical injury to the officer or other
persons.

Any use of force must be objectively reasonable; however, reasonableness can only be determined by
considering all the facts known to you at the time you made the decision to use force. There is no single
formula that can be applied - each situation is unique and must be considered individually.

DETERMINING REASONABLENESS

The courts recognize that police officers are often forced to make split-second judgments in circumstances
that are tense, uncertain and rapidly evolving. Your decision to use force, and the amount of force you
use, must be reasonable given the circumstances and information known to you at the time. You should
be able to state these circumstances and the facts of the situation that would lead a reasonable officer to
judge the use of force reasonable including the “Graham factors” (Graham v. Connor, 490 U.S. 386 [1989]):

e Severity of the crime at issue;

o  Whether the suspect poses an immediate threat to you or the safety of others; and

o  Whether the suspect is actively resisting arrest or attempting to evade arrest by flight.

Other factors involved may include but are not limited to the nature and duration of your interaction with
the subject, severity of injuries (if any), physical attributes of the subject, environmental conditions and
reaction time.

Uses of force that tend to bring liability claims against law enforcement officers are most commonly those
in which there was no objective reason to initiate the use force, or when the amount of force was

12
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfgﬁcement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title19/T19CH6/SECT19-610/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title18/T18CH40/SECT18-4011/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title18/T18CH40/SECT18-4011/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

excessive, including an application of force that lasted too long. To determine reasonableness, the courts
will (Miller v. Clark County, 340 F.3d 959 [9th Cir. 2003]):

1. Evaluate the type and amount of force used (also called the “quantum of force”) to assess the
extent of the intrusion on the subject’s Fourth amendment rights;

2. Review the severity of the crime, immediacy of the threat, and the subject’s resistance (e.g. the
Graham factors) to assess “the importance of the government interests at stake”; and

3. Consider the totality of the circumstances.

Force intentionally applied in excess of what is reasonably necessary, or in circumstances where there is
no justification for its use, is an excessive application of force. Overreaction to a situation is one of the
most common errors. It is difficult to know how a person will react to your attempt to arrest them.
Sometimes law enforcement officers assume the worst and use a level of force beyond that which is
warranted. It is also sometimes difficult to decrease the intensity of a situation once the subject has
submitted to the arrest. Continuing to use force after a person submits may also be considered excessive.

Duty To Intercede
If you observe another officer using force that is clearly beyond that which is objectively reasonable under
the circumstances, and you have a realistic opportunity to respond, you shall intercede to prevent the use
of unreasonable force. Promptly report your observations and actions, if any, to a supervisor.

WEAPONS

You will handle and use weapons in a competent, safe, and professional manner and only display it or
point it as a threat of force when reasonable cause exists. In this policy, weapons refer to firearms,
conducted energy devices, batons, chemical sprays and any other tool designed to be used on another
person to overcome resistance or compel compliance.

You shall carry only weapons that are authorized by the agency. You are required to be properly trained
and certified, when appropriate, in their use.

Agency-owned weapons shall only be used for purposes and activities that are necessary to fulfill the
agency’s law enforcement function, including training and practice. Any non-law enforcement or other
personal use of an agency weapon must first be approved by the agency head.

Safety and Storage
You are responsible for keeping your duty weapons and ammunition clean and in good operating
condition. Notify your supervisor of any defects or deficiencies, and do not make unauthorized alterations
to any agency weapon. When not being worn or carried, secure your weapons in a safe location protected
from others, especially children.

Firearms
You will carry an agency-approved service weapon when on duty unless doing so would violate any
provisions of our policy, laws or court rules. It may also be acceptable to not wear a firearm, if authorized,
for:

e Agency training sessions where wearing a weapon is impractical or inadvisable;
e Administrative assignments if you have a weapon immediately accessible; or
e Situations where wearing a firearm would pose an increased risk of danger to your safety.

13
Copyright © 2025 Law En%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

You are authorized to discharge a firearm in the line of duty to protect yourself or others from what you
reasonably believe to be an imminent threat of death or serious bodily injury, or to affect the capture (or
prevent the escape of) a felony suspect whose freedom is reasonably believed to represent a significant
threat of death or serious bodily injury to yourself or others. An imminent threat is one that is not just
possible, but real and likely to happen.

You are prohibited from firing warning shots or to fire at, or from, a moving vehicle unless there is an
imminent threat to life and other alternatives, such as moving out of the way of the vehicle, are
impractical.

Dangerous or injured animals — If alternative methods are not reasonably available or would likely be

ineffective, you may destroy an animal that poses an imminent risk of death or serious injury to someone,
or if it is not a protected species and is so sick or badly injured that its death would relieve it from further
suffering.

Carrying off-duty — If you are qualified and authorized to carry a firearm you are encouraged to carry an

approved weapon off duty. If you elect to carry a firearm, you do so under your authority as an ldaho
peace officer and not under the authority of a private citizen or a concealed weapons permit holder.
Therefore, all policies regulating your duty firearms are applicable to your off-duty firearms as well.

You must have your agency identification card and badge with you at all times, and the weapon must be
concealed. You are strongly discouraged from carrying a weapon off duty while consuming alcohol, and
strictly prohibited from carrying weapons while intoxicated or under the influence of drugs.

Personally-owned firearms — All personally-owned off-duty and backup weapons that are carried under

your authority as a peace officer and may be used in a law enforcement action must be approved by the
agency. This does not apply to hunting, target or other recreational firearms in your possession or use —
only to those carried for law enforcement purposes. Check with the agency armorer to ensure that the
manufacture, model, caliber, barrel length and finish of a weapon is acceptable before you buy it. The
agency is not responsible for any financial loss incurred from the purchase of a non-approved weapon.

Accidental discharge — If you accidentally discharge a firearm, except at an approved range or recreational

function, immediately notify a supervisor. All unintentional discharges will be investigated internally.

Federal restrictions — Federal law prohibits individuals under a No Contact Order or Protection Order from

possessing a firearm. If you are under one of these orders, you shall immediately surrender all agency
firearms to someone in your chain of command, and you shall place all personal firearms in a location that
complies with the federal law.

Conducted Energy Weapon
If you carry a hand-held conducted energy weapon, conduct a spark test at the beginning of every shift to
ensure your weapon is working. Whenever practical, you should verbally warn a subject prior to
discharging your device. Unless exigent circumstances exist, you should not use a conducted energy
weapon on:

e Women who are known or appear to be pregnant;
e Individuals who are elderly or visibly frail;

e Young children;

e Passive subjects;

14
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf&gcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

e Handcuffed subjects unless they are actively resisting and aggressively trying to injure themselves
or others;

e Anyone in physical control of a vehicle in motion, including cars, trucks, motorcycles, ATVs,
bicycles or scooters;

e Subjects in a location where a fall may cause serious injury or death; and

e Subjects in a combustible environment.

Additionally, only one officer should activate a conducted energy weapon against a subject at a time
unless exigent circumstances exist. And in the case of a fleeing subject, the fact that they are fleeing should
not be the sole justification for using a weapon.

If you determine it is necessary and reasonable to use your conducted energy weapon, use only the
minimum number of activations necessary to control the subject. Stop using the weapon when the subject
stops resisting or is restrained, and do NOT exceed three applications unless exigent circumstances exist.

Impact Weapons
Impact weapons may be used only by officers trained and proficient in their use. Impact weapons
authorized by the agency may include batons and shotguns or launchers (37mm, 40mm and similar) when
used to deploy less lethal projectiles.

You are prohibited from targeting any impact weapon at a person’s head, neck or groin unless deadly
force is justified. You should also avoid using an impact weapon on women who are known or appear to
be pregnant, individuals who are elderly or visibly frail, or if its use may foreseeably cause an injury that
is not proportionate to the level of threat they pose.

Baton — In addition to the prohibitions above, you should not target baton strikes to a person’s spine or
sternum.

Shotgun — If you use the same shotgun for lethal and impact munitions, take extra care to verify the type
of ammunition loaded into the weapon before approaching an incident scene. If you are preparing to
deploy impact munitions, have another law enforcement officer confirm the ammunition if possible, and
do not carry the lethal ammunition on your person unless you anticipate the situation may lead to deadly
force.

Less Lethal Chemical Agents
Whenever practical, you should verbally warn others prior to discharging a chemical agent such as
oleoresin capsicum, also referred to as pepper spray. Avoid discharging large quantities of chemical agents
in confined spaces when possible.

Do not use chemical agents on a driver in physical control of their vehicle. Driving away from the scene
and your control while compromised by spray is a significant safety risk to others.

You are strongly discouraged from using chemical agents on a passive resistor. It may be reasonable to
use if a crowd will not disperse and threatens the loss of someone in your custody; however, use on
individuals during a peaceful demonstration requires authorization of the Incident Commander.

If you determine it is necessary and reasonable to use chemical agents on a subject, use only the amount
of spray necessary to bring the subject under control. You should recognize if it is ineffective on the person
and discontinue its use if that is the case.

15
Copyright © 2025 Law En@fcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

CAROTID OR LATERAL VASCULAR NECK RESTRAINT
A carotid restraint, also known as a lateral vascular neck restraint, is the most serious level of control hold
force.

NOTE: You may only use a carotid restraint if your agency head has specifically approved its use and you
have completed certified training on it within the past two years.

A carotid restraint may only be used against a suspect who is assaultive or who you are unable to subdue
by other control methods. Unless deadly force is justified, you should not use it on the elderly, very young
people or pregnant women, nor should you use it more than twice in a 24-hr period to render a person
unconscious.

Once a suspect has lost consciousness, you should discontinue the pressure on the neck and immediately
secure the person with restraints. You shall summon emergency medical services and provide what first
aid you can if the subject:

e Does not regain consciousness quickly;

e Does not have a strong pulse and normal breathing pattern;

e Shows signs of ongoing distress related to the carotid restraint;

e Is thought to be under the influence of any drug other than alcohol; or
e Requests medical attention.

After the person regains consciousness, you should watch them closely for at least 20 minutes.

If medical clearance is not provided at the scene by emergency medical personnel, you should take the
suspect to the hospital and obtain a medical clearance before going to the jail. Once at the jail, notify jail
staff that the carotid restraint was used, and the suspect was unconscious.

MEDICAL CARE

When anyone is injured or complains of an injury from a use of force, you should seek medical attention.
Individuals exposed to chemical agents must receive adequate decontamination, and anytime a weapon
penetrates the skin, such as with a conducted energy device, EMS or properly trained personnel should
provide care. Objects, like probes, that have penetrated a subject’s body should be treated as bio-
hazardous and handled suitably.

TRAINING AND NON-STANDARD USE OF FORCE

The purpose of use of force training is to give you a working knowledge of different types of force options
and a general understanding of the correct application of each. We believe in using proven and safe
techniques that prevent injury to you and the subject, and it is always wise to consider whether the force
you are about to use is supported by the training you have been given at POST or by a POST-certified
instructor.

You should strive to follow best practices and training whenever practicable; however, it is not possible
to predict and train for every scenario. The facts and circumstances of some situations may warrant a use
of a force option or method not taught in training. These non-standard uses of force may be appropriate
if objectively reasonable.

16
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfggcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

REPORTING AND REVIEW
A use of force report is required for any incident in which you:

e Apply physical control against someone who is knowingly and actively resisting your attempts to
arrest, subdue or otherwise control their physical movements;

e Areinjured, or anyone else is injured or complains of any injury, from an arrest or control event;

e Intentionally discharge a weapon in a law enforcement action, whether on or off duty; or

e Display your firearm in a ready position pointed directly at a subject.

For any of these incidents, you should contact your supervisor as soon as possible. In your report, describe
the amount of force used and provide sufficient facts to show whether the force used was reasonable.
This should include the type, extent and reasons for the force used, the chain of events, disposition of the
subject, resistance encountered, any injuries (or lack of injuries) resulting from the force, medical
attention provided or refused, and any warning given or the reasons why a warning was not practicable
under the circumstances.

The agency head, or their designee, will review all use of force incidents to determine the appropriateness
of the officer’s actions and identify improvements to policy, training or equipment. Depending on the
incident, the agency may conduct an internal investigation or request review by an independent, external
investigator or team.

Restraints
July 2017

Proper use of handcuffs and other restraining devices promotes safety of the public, officer and person in
custody, and decreases the chance for injury and escape. Not all restraints are appropriate for all
conditions or people, so you may need to adjust restraint type or application based on the circumstances
and personal health of the subject.

AUTHORIZED USE

You shall restrain a subject upon arrest. The application of any restraints shall follow the training you
received at the Peace Officers Standards & Training academy or by certified instructors during refresher
classes after the academy.

You may restrain a suspect during an investigation to ensure officer safety, but no longer than necessary.

Authorized restraining devices include hand cuffs, flex cuffs, belly chains and leg restraints. You may use
other restraining devices as needed such as hobbles, belts, chains, waist belts, spit hoods, etc. if you have
been trained on their proper use and they are the best tool for safe, humane restraint given the
circumstances. All restraints will be checked for reasonable tightness at the time of application and all
restraints capable of being double-locked, will be. If a subject complains of tightness, you shall check the
restraints again and ensure the restraint(s) is properly applied.

Do not handcuff an arrestee to yourself, another person, a vehicle or any stationary object unless
specifically designed for this purpose in a detention facility. Do not use the restraints to lead the arrestee
unless that is an authorized compliance technique for that restraint type.

17
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfggcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS
You will make every effort to apply restraint devices in a manner that does not injure or place undue strain
on the subject.

e [fasubjectis physically incapable of placing their hands behind their back, physically handicapped,
or sick or injured to the extent that placing their hands behind their backs is impractical, you may
consider alternative handcuffing techniques, including cuffing their hands in the front.

e Leg restraints are appropriate when an arrestee is violently kicking or trying to damage property,
but they increase the risk of falling. Consider the environment and subject when deciding to use
leg restraints.

e You should apply minimal restraints on pregnant women. Leg restraints should never be used on
a pregnant woman while she is walking because of the increased risk of falling.

e You may use discretion for restraining juveniles arrested on minor charges who do not display
unusual or threatening conduct.

You may change your decision on use of restraints at any time if the conduct of the arrestee becomes
agitated or threatening.

When transporting someone in restraints, they should be seated upright, and seat belted. Subjects who
are transported in a prone position, or who have been restrained following exertion should be closely
monitored for signs of labored breathing or other signs of medical distress. If such signs are observed, the
subject should immediately be placed in a position to aid breathing and medical aid should be summoned.

REPORTING

In your written report, you must describe the type of restraint used and the context for how you applied
it. You should note the individual’s compliant or non-compliant actions and if there were any special safety
considerations such as a disability, pregnancy or mental health issue. You should also include whether you
checked the restraints for tightness and double-locked applicable mechanisms.

Search and Seizure, Miranda

July 2025

We will follow all current constitutional, statutory and judicial guidelines regarding searches and seizures
conducted either with or without a warrant. Case law in this area constantly changes and evolves, so it is
your responsibility to read and understand updates to case law, and to use good judgment and common
sense when applying it in the field. The following examples are guidelines to help you assess the
reasonableness of a search.

WARRANTLESS SEARCH AND SEIZURE

The Fourth Amendment to the United States Constitution guarantees the right to be free from
"unreasonable searches and seizures". Whenever possible, you should obtain a search warrant prior to
conducting searches and seizures. However, this does not preclude you from lawfully searching in
situations that meet criteria as an exception to the warrant requirement or are expressly authorized by
statute. Exceptions to the search warrant rule may include:

18
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘ﬂijcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Consent
You may search any person and their property if they give you a clear and voluntary statement of
permission. You may conduct a warrantless search of private premises or property with the consent of a
person whom you reasonably and in good faith believe has the authority to consent. You may request
consent at any time and should document it in writing and capture the consent by an audio or audio/video
recording when possible. A person may revoke their consent at any time.

Incident to a lawful arrest
Prior to transport you should search the person, clothing and personal effects (wallets, purses, pockets
etc.) of all arrestees, as well as the area within their immediate control, for weapons and/or evidence.
However, a warrant should be obtained before searching computers or phones carried by the arrestee.
You may search a vehicle incident to a recent occupant’s arrest only if it is reasonable to believe that the
arrestee might access the vehicle at the time of the search or that the vehicle may contain evidence of
the arrest offense.

Plain view doctrine
If you see an item such as contraband in plain view, you may seize that item if you have a lawful reason
to be where you are when you see the item, if you can see the item without performing a search or
disturbing the item; and if you also have probable cause to believe that the item you spotted in plain view
is evidence of a crime.

Exigent circumstances
In situations where you have probable cause to believe that entry of premises is necessary to save life,
prevent serious bodily harm, avert or control public catastrophe, or prevent the destruction of evidence,
you have the authority to make a warrantless entry. This is only lawful if you reasonably believe you do
not have time or opportunity to obtain a warrant and the emergency is not a foreseeable result of
avoidable action or inaction by police.

Hot pursuit
If you are actually pursuing a person whom you have probable cause to believe is committing or has just
committed a crime, and they have failed to yield to your command to stop, you may follow the person
into a private premise without a warrant in order to make an arrest. You may search the premises for the
person to be arrested and to prevent him/her from obtaining weapons or means of escape.

Abandonment
You may, without a warrant, seize and search property that you have a good faith reason to believe has
been abandoned. Property is abandoned if the owner leaves it in a public or private place under
circumstances that indicate the person no longer intends to retain any ownership in the item. Trash left
in a public place for collection by trash collectors is considered to be abandoned property and may be
searched without a warrant.

Vehicle exception
A traffic stop is considered a seizure and must be supported by reasonable suspicion. You may conduct a
warrantless search of a vehicle if you have probable cause to believe the vehicle contains contraband or

19
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘P{cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

evidence of a crime and the vehicle is mobile. This search applies to the interior of the vehicle, as well as
the trunk or any containers that may reasonably contain the evidence in question.

Vehicle inventory
Whenever you impound a vehicle, you should conduct a vehicle inventory search in accordance with this
policy. The purpose of this type of search is to protect the owner’s property from damage or loss while
the vehicle is in law enforcement custody, to protect you and our agency against claims of lost, damaged
or stolen property, and to protect our agency from potential dangers of property stored in the vehicle.

A warrant is not needed for a search that complies with this policy if the vehicle is lawfully impounded.
Common reasons to impound a vehicle include, but are not limited to:

e Recovery of a stolen vehicle;

o The vehicle is abandoned;

e The vehicle is to be left pursuant to an arrest, and is unlawfully parked, or poses a potential safety
hazard or inconvenience to traffic or pedestrians; or

e The vehicle has evidentiary value and the impound is necessary to preserve this evidence.

You should not impound a vehicle without a warrant for the sole purpose of conducting an inventory
search. You should typically NOT tow a vehicle if it is legally parked and does not pose a safety hazard,
even if the car and its contents may be at risk of damage or loss.

NOTE: If you are conducting this search solely for the purpose of discovering evidence, or if the search
exceeds the scope of this policy, you should obtain a search warrant prior to conducting the vehicle search.
If you find evidence, do not terminate the search. Failure to complete the inventory search may render the
search invalid.

Special Procedures: Fill out a vehicle search inventory log that includes the date and time of the search
and a detailed inventory of the vehicle's contents. You should search any location in the vehicle where
you could reasonably expect to discover valuables or other items for safekeeping. This includes the
passenger compartment, glove box, vehicle top storage containers, toolboxes, and the trunk. You should
open and search all unlocked and locked containers if the contents cannot be determined without opening
them.

Remove any hazardous or potentially dangerous item, or any valuable item that could potentially be lost
or damaged and store them in a safe manner. Include a description of the item along with the storage
location on the inventory log.

Warrantless searches that fall outside of these exceptions may be found to be unreasonable and unlawful,
possibly leading to the exclusion of any evidence obtained and potentially subjecting you to civil and
criminal penalties.

TYPES OF SEARCHES

Frisk/pat down
A pat search of the outer clothing based upon reasonable suspicion that the subject may be involved in
criminal activity, armed and presently dangerous. This term also applies to a vehicle or residence when a
cursory search is made for weapons.

20
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘i)zcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Custody search
A custody search is a more intensive search of subjects that includes going through their pockets and
removing property from their custody. A custody search shall be conducted prior to removing the
restraints from any detainee in the jail, interview room or other secure law enforcement facility.

Take care to prevent loss or damage of the subject’s property. If the property is going to be retained by
the agency, include a full description on the property invoice and provide a copy of the invoice to the
detainee. Additionally, you should count all money in front of the detainee and if practical, have the
detainee initial the total amount on the property invoice.

Strip search
If there is reasonable suspicion or articulable facts that lead you to believe a detainee is concealing
weapons, escape implements, contraband or evidence, you may conduct a jail strip search. Factors that
may lead to this type of search include:

e Detection of a possible weapon or contraband during a custody search.

e Specific circumstances of the current arrest that suggest the subject may possess weapons or
contraband. For example, the subject had drugs in his/her possession seconds prior to arrest, but
none have yet been found. (A drug charge alone is not sufficient cause to conduct a strip search.)

e The subject has a criminal and custody history that includes prior incidents of concealing weapons,
escape implements, contraband or evidence.

e The subject’s observable and articulable actions and behaviors suggest he/she is concealing
weapons, escape implements, contraband or evidence.

Strip searches should be conducted by an officer of the same sex and observed by a witness officer of the
same sex as the detainee unless conducted by a qualified medical professional, or unless required by
exigent circumstances and no other alternative is available. The search should be carried out in an area
that cannot be observed by individuals not involved in the search. The detainee will not be required to
remain unclothed any longer than is absolutely necessary.

NOTE: Never strip search a transgender or intersex detainee solely for the purpose of determining his/her
genital status. Proper housing determination should be made through a respectful interview or, if
necessary, the examination by a medical professional as part of the normal screening process.

Field strip searches
While most strip searches are conducted in a jail or prison setting, field strip searches may be necessary
if there is probable cause to believe the detainee is in possession of a weapon or other dangerous item
and there is no other reasonable means to retrieve it. These are highly unusual circumstances, and you
should seek supervisor approval before conducting such a search. If conducted in the field, you should
make all reasonable accommodations for privacy and respect.

Body cavity searches
Body cavity searches shall only be conducted by qualified medical professionals. Unless there is a
reasonable threat of injury or an imminent probability significant evidence will be destroyed, you should
obtain a search warrant prior to the search.

21
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘ﬂgcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

SEIZED PROPERTY

If in the course of a search, you find an object which you reasonably believe to be a dangerous weapon,
you may take possession of the object. You may also seize an item if there is probable cause to believe
that it:

e |sstolen or embezzled;

e Is contraband or otherwise unlawfully possessed;

e Is evidence of an offense or the identity of a person participating in an offense; or

e Has been used or is possessed for the purpose of being used to commit or conceal the
commission of a crime.

MIRANDA WARNING

Miranda warnings apply to interviews initiated by peace officers after a suspect has been taken into
custody or where the suspect could reasonably believe that their liberty is restrained to the same extent
as if they were under arrest. Only the officer responsible for the investigation should authorize or advise
the suspect of their Miranda rights. Document the facts of the Miranda warning and any response of the
suspect in your departmental report.

Miranda warnings are not required when:

e Asuspect’s statements are voluntary and unsolicited,;

e The suspect is not in custody nor could reasonably believe they are under arrest based on the
circumstances; or

e The suspect responds to the questions of a private citizen without law enforcement influence.

Arrest and Custody
June 2020

WARRANTLESS ARRESTS

Idaho code 19-603 allows a peace officer to arrest a person without a warrant if that person commits or
attempts to commit a crime in your presence, or if there is reasonable cause to believe a person has
committed certain offenses, even if not in your presence.

Felony offenses
With probable cause, you may arrest a person without a warrant, day or night, for any felony offense.
There is no requirement that the felony be committed or attempted in your presence.

Misdemeanor offenses
For warrantless misdemeanor arrests, you may arrest, day or night, for any misdemeanor attempted or
committed in your presence. You cannot arrest without a warrant for misdemeanor crimes not committed
or attempted in your presence.

ARREST WARRANTS

A magistrate may issue an arrest warrant if there is probable cause to believe either a felony or
misdemeanor has been committed, and that the named suspect committed the offense. Probable cause
exists when there is sufficient information that would lead a person of ordinary care and prudence to

22
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘%cement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title19/T19CH6/SECT19-603/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

entertain an honest and strong suspicion that the person to be arrested has committed a crime. You do
not need to have a copy of the warrant in your possession to arrest the defendant if the defendant admits
he/she has an outstanding warrant, or the warrant is confirmed by dispatch or the person/agency in actual
possession of the warrant. If requested, show the arrestee his/her warrant as soon as practicable.

Time of day
A felony or misdemeanor arrest warrant may be executed at any time of day or night with one exception:
a misdemeanor arrest warrant cannot be executed inside a person’s residence between 8:00 p.m. and
8:00 a.m. unless the magistrate has endorsed the warrant allowing you to do so, or you have consent to
enter a residence from a person with real or apparent authority.

Place of service
You should always check the warrant to see if the magistrate has restricted the place where it can be
executed. If the magistrate has not placed any restrictions on the warrant, you can execute a felony or
misdemeanor arrest warrant in any public place, or in the suspect’s residence but only if you have
probable cause to believe the suspect is located inside his/her residence. If the suspect is in the residence
of a third party, you can only execute the arrest warrant if you have a search warrant for the premises, if
you obtain valid consent to enter, or if exigent circumstances exist.

Issued by another state
Out-of-state warrants are not valid in Idaho; however, if you are aware that a suspect has an extraditable
felony warrant from another state, you have sufficient probable cause to arrest them as a “Fugitive to
Idaho” under Section 19, Chapter 45 of the Idaho State Code.

TRANSPORTING ARRESTEES

When a subject is arrested, you should remove them from the scene as soon as practicable. Unless special
considerations recommend otherwise, the arrestee should be restrained and seat-belted during
transport. Search the arrestee and your vehicle prior to and after transport.

As the transporting officer, you shall drive the arrestee directly to the detention facility or place
determined by investigative necessity. Notify dispatch at the beginning and end of each transport,
providing your vehicle’s mileage if you are transporting a juvenile or an adult arrestee of the opposite
gender.

If the arrestee has or appears to have an injury that needs medical attention, take them to the emergency
room for treatment. Stay with the arrestee at all times to ensure they remain secured. After they have
been cleared by medical staff, you shall transport them to the detention facility and notify booking
personnel about the subject’s injury and treatment.

PROTECTIVE CUSTODY

Temporary protective custody is intended to safeguard the health and safety of the community by getting
care and protection for individuals who appear to pose a danger to themselves or others due to mental
health issues or public intoxication. These situations are “custody” actions and not arrests because they
are not criminal offenses. When making the decision to take a subject into custody, you may consider your
observations of the subject and other information available, such as statements from others, prior acts

23
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

and physical evidence. You should use care and discretion in any situation that may resultin an involuntary
emergency commitment.

If the individual has committed a crime, you should handle the situation like any other criminal incident.
However, if the person’s health is in obvious danger, take them to a hospital or other approved medical
facility to be treated and/or cleared prior to release or being taken to jail. Regardless of the circumstances,
if the person's physical condition requires immediate medical attention, call emergency medical services.

Emergency Mental Health Hold
Idaho Code 66-326 gives peace officers the authority to take an individual into custody if they have reason
to believe the person is “gravely disabled due to mental illness” or poses an imminent danger to
themselves or others, as evidenced by a threat of substantial physical harm. The individual must be placed
in an approved medical unit, treatment facility or hospital, and the court notified within 24 hours of
custody.

Subjects already presented for treatment or admitted to the hospital without your intervention do not
require a mental health hold.

You may take a juvenile into protective custody under Idaho Code 16-2411 if the parents can or will not
admit the child voluntarily to a hospital. You must have probable cause to believe that the child is suffering
from serious emotional disturbance and may cause harm to him/herself or others if he/she does not
receive immediate medical attention.

Alcohol And Detoxification Hold
Idaho Code 39-307a gives peace officers the authority to take an individual into protective custody if they
appear to be incapacitated by alcohol or drugs in a public place. Depending on the individual’s level of
intoxication and combativeness, you may release them to a competent individual or transport them to an
approved detoxification or treatment facility. If no facilities are available and the jail accepts detox holds,
you may transport him/her to a jail, but the confinement may not exceed 24 hours.

CITIZEN’S ARREST
In Idaho, a private person has nearly the same arrest authority that you do. However, you do not have to
accept a citizen’s arrest if it is not supported by sufficient evidence.

Idaho Code 19-604 provides the statutory authority for a citizen’s arrest. Simplified, it reads that a private
person may arrest another only where the criminal offense was committed or attempted in the citizen’s
presence, or where the citizen reasonably believes that the arrestee committed a felony. This is similar to
the requirement that most misdemeanors must occur in your presence in order for you to make a physical
arrest. Although a citizen has felony arrest authority, it is usually more expeditious for you to take that
information and make the felony arrest yourself based on the probable cause you receive from the citizen.

Idaho Code 19-614 also says that a private person who has made an arrest must immediately take the
person before a magistrate or to a peace officer. Since citizens can no longer take a person before a
magistrate on their own, you or another peace officer must be the person to receive the arrestee. An
unreasonable delay between the offense and the time of the citizen’s arrest may be justification for you
to write a report and route it to the prosecutor for an arrest warrant or summons rather than making an
immediate arrest.

24
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘%cement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title66/T66CH3/SECT66-326/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title16/T16CH24/SECT16-2411/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title39/T39CH3/SECT39-307A/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title19/T19CH6/SECT19-604/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title19/T19CH6/SECT19-614/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

You should not accept the arrested person if there is no legal basis for an arrest. If you accept the arrested
person, you should create a complete record of the facts of the arrest and have the citizen sign the report
or citation where applicable. Whenever possible, you should have the citizen submit a signed written
statement at the time you accept the arrested person.

Emergency and Pursuit Driving
July 2021

Emergency driving and vehicle pursuits are inherently dangerous to the public and to peace officers and
must be limited to situations where the necessity for the pursuit and immediate apprehension of the
fleeing subject are balanced against the risks to public safety.

EMERGENCY DRIVING

You are authorized — but not required — to respond with emergency lights and siren to an incident to
prevent an in-progress felony, apprehend a dangerous felon or when there is a reasonable belief that a
person is injured or threatened with imminent injury. Any vehicle used in an emergency response or
pursuit, and your driving behavior, shall comply with Idaho Code 49-623, which states that you may:

e Go through a stop light or sign after slowing down for safety;

e Exceed maximum speed limits if it does not endanger life or property;
e Ignore rules about the direction of traffic or turns; and

e Park your vehicle or stand where needed.

You must consider the safety of all persons at all times during emergency driving. Idaho Code does not
protect you from the consequences of “reckless disregard for the safety of others”.

PURSUIT DRIVING

Pursuit driving is an attempt to keep up with and eventually stop a vehicle and arrest the driver who is
fleeing at a high rate of speed or using evasive driving maneuvers after a law enforcement vehicle has
activated lights and siren.

You may only initiate a vehicle pursuit if you are a sworn peace officer operating a vehicle with proper
emergency equipment. Unmarked vehicles, motorcycles and any other special use vehicles should not be
used in pursuits when fully marked and equipped vehicles are available.

Decision to pursue
To initiate a pursuit, you shall carefully consider the following:

e Likelihood the suspect committed a crime other than vehicular flight;

e Seriousness of that offense and the likelihood that someone may be injured if the suspect is not
immediately apprehended; and

e Driving environment based on the safety of your emergency vehicle, your driving ability and
current conditions like traffic, weather, visibility and time of day.

NOTE: You shall only initiate a pursuit if you can articulate that the danger posed to the public is less than
the danger posed by the escape of the suspect.

25
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf4)fcement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/title49/t49ch6/sect49-623/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

If you initiate a pursuit, immediately notify the communications center (dispatch) of the pursuit, location
and direction of travel, suspect vehicle description, speed, relevant observations of the suspect’s driving
behaviors and the reason for attempting to stop the vehicle.

Only two emergency vehicles - a primary and secondary unit - shall engage in a pursuit, unless additional
emergency vehicles are specifically requested by someone involved in the pursuit and authorized by a
supervisor, if available.

Terminating a pursuit

While pursuing, you shall constantly re-assess the circumstances and driving environment of the pursuit
and decide whether to terminate. You should strongly consider terminating a pursuit - or proceed with
extreme caution - if you are no longer aware of the suspect’s location. You shall terminate a pursuit if your
vehicle becomes unsafe to operate, environmental conditions such as rain or snow make driving unsafe,
the danger posed to the public is greater than the danger posed by the escape of the suspect, or if directed
to terminate by a supervisor. Supervisors have a particular obligation to monitor the pursuit and evaluate
the threat of danger to the public at all times.

Forcible stopping
You may apply intervention or termination techniques according to training. Maneuvers that are likely to
cause the driver to lose control of the vehicle, such as precision immobilization techniques (PIT), should
only be used in felony cases where other reasonable means of stopping the vehicle have failed or are
impractical and the immediate or future risk of injury or death to innocent people is predictable.

Any use of a roadblock, except under extreme conditions should comply with Idaho Code 19-622, which
lists the minimum requirements you must meet, if time and circumstances allow. Any temporary
roadblock must identify a clearly marked course of travel and allow time for drivers to safely react. They
must:

e Be visible within 100 yards or more to drivers arriving from both directions;

e Have a stop sign placed on the center line that is easily read within 50 yards or more by drivers
from both directions;

e Have at least one flashing blue light on the side of the road that is clearly visible to oncoming
traffic within 100 yards or more; and

e Place lighted or reflective warning signs about the police stop ahead that is clearly visible to
oncoming traffic within 200 yards or more.

Reporting
You should complete an agency report any time a pursuit is initiated, regardless of whether the pursuit
continues to a conclusion or is terminated.

Officer-Involved Critical Incidents
July 2017

It is our policy that officer-involved critical incidents be investigated with the utmost thoroughness,
professionalism and impartiality to determine if the actions of the officer(s) conform to the law and our

26
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘i)gcement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title19/T19CH6/SECT19-622/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

policies. In this policy, officer-involved critical incident refers to an event in which an officer is involved as
a principal, victim or custodial officer, or where death or injury likely to cause death was the result of a
use of force.

AT THE SCENE
When a critical incident occurs, your first actions should be:

e |dentify any remaining threats and take reasonable measures to protect public safety.

e Provide assistance to any injured persons.

e Secure weapons if they pose a danger.

e Call for a supervisor, emergency medical services and any other assistance required.

e Secure the scene and restrict access to anyone other than authorized personnel. Create an access
log of all persons entering and leaving the scene.

e Protect evidence from loss, destruction, contamination or damage that is likely to occur. This
includes securing your own weapons with minimal manipulation if you are the officer involved.

If you are involved, immediately tell other officers of any threats that exist to them or others and help
them understand the extent of the scene. When the first uninvolved officer arrives, you should brief them
on the nature of the incident, actions taken and identify all involved parties and witnesses. Beyond that,
you should be given the time, typically one sleep cycle, to compose yourself and gather your thoughts
before giving a formal statement to investigators. You should relinquish any physical evidence to
investigators at the time they request it.

If a law enforcement officer is injured and transported to the hospital, we will make every reasonable
effort to have someone accompany them and be at the hospital to aid them and their family members.

Avoid discussing the incident with anyone other than authorized personnel. However, confidential
communications with your attorney, therapist, or clergy member are permitted and protected. If you are
an involved officer, you shall not participate in any group briefing/debriefing until the formal interview
with investigators is complete.

Follow the interagency agreement (if ones exists) as to whom to contact for the criminal investigation.

CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION

The criminal investigation will ascertain whether anyone involved violated any criminal statutes and
potentially recommend charges if applicable. The criminal investigation should be led by an uninvolved
agency if possible. If there is no critical incident protocol established and there is no other agency available
to lead the investigation, consider:

e Each investigator should partner with an investigator from another uninvolved agency whenever
possible.

e Photograph all details of the officer, his/her vehicle at the time of the incident, the scene and
visual perspective of each of the involved persons.

e Ensure involved officer(s) are advised of their Miranda rights at the time any formal statement is
taken.

e Take blood for an alcohol/drug test. If refused, an officer may be administratively compelled to
provide blood, but that result shall not be shared with the criminal investigation.

27
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf‘ﬂgcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

e Interview the officer at the scene only for information critical to ensure public safety. It is
advisable to allow an involved officer one sleep cycle before taking his/her formal statement.
e Follow our agency crime scene and investigation training.

ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATION

Our agency, or an investigator working on our behalf, will conduct an administrative investigation of the
incident to determine if the actions of involved officer(s) complied with our policy and training. The
administrative investigation will be separate from the criminal investigation. The administrative
investigator will ensure criminal investigators have gathered evidence and completed all aspects of their
investigation before conducting his/her review. Be aware that any conversations you have with others
may not be confidential under an evidentiary privilege. A Garrity advisement of administrative privileges
should be provided to officer(s) in writing and signed by both parties prior to an administrative
investigation interview.

POST-INCIDENT LEAVE AND SUPPORT
If you are involved in a critical incident, you shall be off duty a minimum of three days before returning to
work. This time off may include regularly scheduled days off or administrative leave.

After your involvement in a critical incident, you may experience significant emotional and mental strain
and you may be required to undergo a de-briefing initiated by our agency and provided by a qualified
mental health psychiatrist or psychologist.

28
Copyright © 2025 Law En@@cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

SPECIAL FIELD RESPONSE

Juvenile Procedures
August 2021

We are committed to policing practices that guide juveniles to become responsible and productive
members of the community. When practical, officers should choose an enforcement action that is the
least coercive but still serves the needs of concerned parties while preserving public safety.

APPREHENSION OF JUVENILES
Statutes relating to the custody, removal and protection of juveniles can be confusing. If you are unsure
about what action to take, you should consult a knowledgeable person or prosecutor if practical.

You may take a juvenile into custody when:

e You have reasonable cause to believe the juvenile has committed a criminal offense.

e When there are reasonable grounds to believe the juvenile has committed a status offense.

e You have a detention order or warrant signed by a judge or court authority.

e You have reasonable cause that a child is endangered, and prompt removal is necessary to

prevent serious physical or mental injury to the child or where the child is abandoned.

When detaining a juvenile, you should notify the parent, guardian or custodian as soon as possible. If they
are under the supervision of the court, you should contact the proper juvenile authority for disposition
and release.

Release of juveniles
The decision to release or detain a juvenile should be carefully considered because the resulting decision
will affect not only the juvenile involved, but other juveniles he/she is with and family members. You
should use your discretion and best judgment in deciding which action to take.

Unless the juvenile is a runaway from another state, status offenders may not be placed in any jail facility
or juvenile detention centers, but instead may be placed with their parents, relatives, foster care
providers, group care or in a diversion program, if available.

In most cases, you may release the juvenile to the custody of a parent or guardian and:

e Provide education and a warning;
e C(Cite for the offense, if authorized by law; or
e Seek ajuvenile court petition through your prosecutor.

Transport to a detention facility
If you determine it is not in the best interest of public safety or the juvenile to release him/her to a parent
or guardian, or you have a detention order for his/her arrest, you may transport the juvenile to a detention
facility. You must complete a probable cause affidavit and you should notify a parent or guardian as soon
as is practical.

While in your custody, closely monitor the juvenile at all times and use restraints to the minimum degree
that will reasonably ensure the safety of the juvenile and others. The juvenile should be kept separate
from sight and sound of adult offenders whenever possible.

29
Copyright © 2025 Law En@{cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

PETITION

When you establish probable cause that a juvenile has committed a criminal offense (other than traffic,
status offenses or tobacco violations) you should articulate this probable cause clearly in all the reports
relating to the arrest. The incident and arrest information in your report will be forwarded to the
Prosecutor’s Office, which will review the documentation and evidence to determine whether to file a
criminal complaint against the juvenile.

Domestic Violence Response
June 2019

Domestic violence can be prevented or reduced when authorities intervene with an effective response.
We will do what is legally necessary and appropriate to maintain order, provide assistance and reduce the
risk of further violence to victims and children involved in domestic violence incidents. In this policy,
domestic violence is as defined in Idaho Code 18-918, simplified as:

Any household member who commits battery or assault against another, with household members
described as spouses, former spouses, and individuals who have a child in common or are living together
regardless of marital status or presenting themselves as a husband or wife. If physical force results in
traumatic injury, whether internal or external, minor or serious, the act is considered a felony.

INVESTIGATION
You will investigate reports of domestic violence thoroughly and diligently.

e Determine if the relationship is domestic and what, if any, crime occurred.

e Interview suspects and victims separately, out of visual/hearing range of each other, when
possible.

e Obtain statements from all parties present, including children, if appropriate.

e Photograph or video record injuries or the lack thereof. Injuries that require an individual to
disrobe should be recorded by personnel of the same sex as the victim.

e Photograph the offender and damaged property such as broken car windows and ransacked
apartment or house, if the damage occurred during the domestic dispute, and if it is useful to the
investigation.

ARREST

You should attempt to identify the predominant aggressor. Dual charges against both parties are
discouraged and should not be carried out unless you determine that both parties have used equal
violence and that no reasonable self-defense occurred. If probable cause has been established that an act
of felony domestic violence has occurred under Idaho Code 18-918, and the predominant aggressor is
identified and located, an arrest should be made. The victim should not be asked to make the decision
about a felony arrest, nor should their reluctance about the arrest dissuade you from the arrest.

VICTIM SUPPORT

When responding to a domestic violence call, you should ensure any injuries are attended to by
emergency medical services. Also, you shall give the victim(s) written information about their rights under
Idaho law and a listing of available community resources. You shall make every effort to arrange, offer or

30
Copyright © 2025 Law En@zcement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title18/T18CH9/SECT18-918/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title18/T18CH9/SECT18-918/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

facilitate transportation for the victim to a hospital for treatment of injuries or to a place of safety or
shelter, and document these efforts in your report.

Civil Standby
July 2017

A civil standby is the presence of a peace officer for the purpose of maintaining order at the scene of an
actual or potential dispute over a civil or non-criminal matter. We allow officers to provide civil standby
support with a court order or authorization of the agency head or his/her designee if there is a reasonable
belief that violence may occur and a reasonable need for the parties to be in contact.

When providing civil standby services, your role is to maintain order and protect all involved parties. Your
involvement is limited to the directives laid out in the court order. You will not offer legal advice,
determine property ownership, or appear to represent any of the parties.

At the scene, you shall:

e Advise the parties present that you are at the scene to maintain order and are not a representative
of either party;

e Establish ground rules based on the standby request or court order and the circumstances, and
ensure that all parties understand and agree to the action; and

e Remain on public property unless access to private property is granted by the owner.

You should take appropriate enforcement action if any criminal activity, such as disorderly conduct, arises
from the civil standby. You may attempt to warn the violator, if appropriate, that their actions could result
in their arrest.

File a written report to document a civil stand-by including the circumstances of the contact, names of
the persons involved in the dispute, witnesses present, information about court orders and your on-scene
actions.

Hate Crimes
June 2020

We are committed to ensuring that rights guaranteed by local, state and federal laws are protected for all
individuals regardless of their race, religion, ethnic background, national origin, disability or sexual
orientation. Any acts or threats of violence, property damage, harassment, intimidation or other crimes
designed to infringe upon these rights will be investigated thoroughly and diligently. Additionally, we will
ensure that victims, their families and others affected by these crimes have their security concerns
addressed.

In this policy, hate crime is defined by the Idaho State Police reporting standard:

A criminal offense committed against a person or property which is motivated in whole or in part, by the
offender’s bias against a race/national origin, religion, sexual-orientation, mental/physical disability or
ethnicity.

31
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

INVESTIGATION

The mere fact that an offender is biased against a racial, religious, ethnic/national origin, disability,
gender, and/or sexual orientation group does not mean that a hate crime has occurred. There must be
clear evidence that the offender’s bias motivated them, in whole or part, to commit the crime.

The initial investigation and preliminary classification of a crime as being hate motivated is often the
responsibility of the responding peace officer. If you have reason to suspect that an incident may be a
hate crime, the following guidelines may help you make a preliminary determination:

e Are the motives of the alleged offender known?

e Was the incident known to have been motivated by racial, religious, ethnic or sexual orientation
bias?

e Did the victim perceive the action or the offender to have been motivated by bias?

e |s there no other clear motivation for the incident?

e Were any racial, religious, ethnic or sexual orientation bias remarks made by the perpetrator?

o Were any offensive symbols, words or acts which are known to represent a hate group, or other
evidence of bias against the victim's group present?

While on scene, ensure the physical safety and emotional well-being of the victim(s) and notify a
supervisor as soon as possible. You or a supervisor should help the victim identify and contact individuals
or agencies that may provide support and assistance.

Complete and submit a report prior to the end of your shift, or as soon as possible, noting that the crime
is a suspected hate/bias incident. Be sure to document the elements that led you to determine the
suspect’s motivation. We will take immediate action to address any hate/bias-motivated activity and
make notifications to the appropriate agencies.

Adult Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation
January 2016

The abuse or neglect of a vulnerable adult is a crime under Idaho Code 18-1505, and should be
investigated as such and referred to prosecution when the elements of this offense are met. You should
also take the necessary steps to contact the Idaho Commission on Aging to make sure the vulnerable adult
receives emergency or supportive services to reduce or eliminate risk of harm.

Vulnerable adults sometimes experience difficulties managing their own affairs, are unable to protect
themselves from abuse, neglect or exploitation, and/or cannot find others who are able or willing to
provide assistance. The Idaho Commission on Aging is the state agency tasked with assisting the
vulnerable adult in obtaining available services as described in Idaho’s Adult Abuse, Neglect and
Exploitation Act (Idaho Code 39-5301).

e Avulnerable adult is a person eighteen (18) years or older who is unable to protect him/herself
from abuse, neglect or exploitation due to physical or mental impairment which affects the
person’s judgment or behavior to the extent that he/she lacks sufficient ability to care for
him/herself.

e Abuse can take the form of any intentional or negligent infliction of physical pain or mental or
physical injury.

32
Copyright © 2025 Law En@ﬁcement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/title18/t18ch15/sect18-1505/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title39/T39CH53/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

e Neglect is the failure of a caretaker to provide food, clothing, shelter or medical care reasonably
necessary for the health of a vulnerable adult.

e Exploitation means any improper use of a vulnerable adult’s financial power of attorney, funds,
property, or resources by another person for profit or advantage.

When you investigate a case of adult abuse, you must first determine if there is an urgent medical
situation that may require local emergency medical services or voluntary transport to the hospital. If the
Idaho Commission on Aging is available to assist you, rely upon them for guidance. If they are not, you
should ensure the physical safety of the victim as best you can. Under certain circumstances, a criminal
arrest for assault, battery or adult abuse may be appropriate; however, the various Idaho laws are
complicated, and you should contact your prosecuting attorney before taking action if time allows.

Contact information
Area Agency on Aging

e Areal (Coeur D'Alene) Benewah, Bonner, Boundary, Kootenai, Shoshone 208-667-3179 or 1-800-
786-5536

e Area ll (Lewiston) Clearwater, Idaho, Latah, Lewis, Nez Perce 208-743-5580 or 1-800-877-3206

e Area lll (Boise) Ada, Adams, Boise, Canyon, ElImore, Gem, Owyhee, Payette, Valley, Washington
208-332-1745 or 1-844-689-7562

e Area IV (Twin Falls) Blaine, Camas, Cassia, Gooding, Jerome, Lincoln, Minidoka, Twin Falls 208-
736-2122 or 1-800-574-8656

e AreaV (Pocatello) Bannock, Bear Lake, Bingham, Caribou, Franklin, Oneida, Power 208-233-4032
or 1-800-526-8129

e Area VI (Idaho Falls) Bonneville, Butte, Clark, Custer, Fremont, Jefferson, Lemhi, Madison, Teton
208-522-5391 or 1-800-632-4813

State Adult Protection (800) 926-2588 and ask for the State Adult Protection Contact
Adult Protective Services Hotline (877) 471-2777

Missing Adult Reporting

January 2016

Missing person investigations are often emotionally intense and require careful recording and
investigation of factual circumstances surrounding the disappearance. You must balance the stress and
anxiety felt by family and friends with the possible intent of the missing person. Consider that the adult
may have voluntarily left their home for personal reasons and may not wish to be found by those reporting
them as missing.

Definition: A “missing person” is an adult whose whereabouts are unknown and unexplained for an
amount of time that is suspicious or highly unusual when considering his/her normal behavior patterns,
plans or routines.

INVESTIGATION GUIDELINES
Upon receiving a missing person call, immediately enter a call for service - no waiting period is required
to take a missing person report. The preliminary investigation should, at a minimum include:

33
Copyright © 2025 Law En%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

e Full name, address, date of birth, physical and clothing description of the missing adult including
scars, tattoos, piercings or any other unique characteristic;

e Full name, address and contact numbers of the person reporting the disappearance;

e Reason (known or suspected) for person to be missing;

e Where and when last seen;

e Full name, address and contact numbers of friends or relatives;

e Employment/school information and locations the person is known to frequent;

e Name of person’s dentist whenever possible;

e Recent photograph, if available, preferably a full frontal face view of the subject smiling;

e Name of case worker, probation officer or other community liaison, if applicable;

e Whether or not the individual took personal items such as clothing, money, cell phone, etc.

If there are any suspicious circumstances, notify your supervisorimmediately. The missing person’s status
should be updated to a critical level requiring supervisory notification if:

e The person may be the victim of foul play;

e The person may be unable to properly safeguard or care for himself/herself;

e The person suffers from diminished mental capacity or medical conditions that are potentially life
threatening if left untreated;

e The person has a history of mental illness and is considered dangerous to themselves or others;

e The person is missing after a catastrophe;

e Any other circumstances which lead you to believe that there is an immediate threat to his/her
life.

If your supervisor determines that an immediate search is warranted, you should notify dispatchers, on-
duty personnel and nearby agencies of the missing person information and advise for entry into NCIC.
Also, 42 USC 5779 requires that we enter any missing person under the age of 21 into NCIC.

Before going off-shift, you should attempt to re-contact the person who filed the report to see if new
information is available.

CONTACTING MEDIA

If necessary and useful to aid in the location of a missing person, you may contact local media. Media
should only be contacted when the missing person is thought to be in jeopardy and a command-level
supervisor has reviewed and approved the content of the press release.

CASE RESOLUTION

Whenever a missing person is located, you should contact dispatch and records to notify them that the
missing person has been located. In your supplemental report document the date, time, location and
circumstances of the incident.

You should also consider contacting the reporting party and letting them know the person has been found.
However, if the missing person is safe and sound, and he/she has left for personal reasons and does not
wish to return home, you should inform the reporting party only that the individual has been located and
is safe. Do not share additional details.

34
Copyright © 2025 Law En@@cement Policy Center, LLC


http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2010-title42/html/USCODE-2010-title42-chap72-subchapIV-sec5779.htm

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Missing/Abducted Children
January 2016

We thoroughly investigate all reports of missing children, including those that may involve parental
kidnapping or child custody interference, until we are certain that the child is safe, and no crime was
committed. Take every report seriously until we know otherwise.

INVESTIGATION GUIDELINES

First search the child's home or place he/she was last seen. Most children are found under a bed orin a
closet, but also consider appliances, boxes and any other location where the child might be. Make sure to
ask permission before searching the child's home - individuals have a reasonable expectation of privacy
over their property.

Upon receiving a missing child call, immediately enter a call for service — do not consider a waiting period.
Begin action immediately.

The preliminary investigation should, at a minimum include:

a) Full name, address, date of birth, physical and clothing description of the missing child including
scars, tattoos, piercings or any other unique characteristic;

b) Full name, address and contact numbers of the person reporting the disappearance;

c) Mother’s maiden name;

d) Place of birth;

e) Reason (known or suspected) for child to be missing;

f)  Where and when last seen;

g) Full name, address and contact numbers of friends or relatives;

h) Employment/school information and locations the child is known to frequent;

i) Name of child’s dentist whenever possible;

j)  Recent photograph, if available, preferably a full frontal face view of the child smiling;

k) Name of case worker, probation officer or other community liaison, if applicable;

I)  Whether or not the child took personal items such as clothing, money, cell phone, etc.

You should also evaluate if any of the following suspicious circumstances apply:

e The child may be the victim of foul play;

e The child may be unable to properly safeguard or care for himself/herself;

e The child suffers from diminished mental capacity or medical conditions that are potentially life
threatening if left untreated;

e The child has a history of mental illness and is considered dangerous to themselves or others;

e The child is missing after a catastrophe;

e Any other circumstances which lead you to believe that there is an immediate threat to his/her
life.

Notify your supervisor immediately. If your supervisor determines that an immediate search is warranted,
you should notify dispatchers, on-duty personnel and nearby agencies of the missing person information
and advise for entry into NCIC. Also, 42 USC 5779 requires that we enter any missing person under the
age of 21 into NCIC.

35
Copyright © 2025 Law En@fcement Policy Center, LLC


http://www.gpo.gov/fdsys/pkg/USCODE-2010-title42/html/USCODE-2010-title42-chap72-subchapIV-sec5779.htm

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

If it is reasonable to believe that the child is truly missing, information should be entered into NCIC within
two hours. If the case is believed to be an abduction, obtain all identifying suspect information and where
they are most likely headed. Consider asking other law enforcement officers to watch along major streets
and highways out of the area to intercept the abductor. In cases of a suspected abduction, an AMBER
Alert should be issued.

Other than initiating an AMBER Alert, all normal protocols for crime scenes, criminal interviews and similar
cases should be followed, with a sensitivity to how distraught people can be when a child is missing.

AMBER Alert Activation
July 2025

The AMBER Alert program in Idaho was established to help recover abducted children, defined as youth
who are 17 years of age and younger or older individuals if they have a proven mental or physical disability.
AMBER Alert Criteria are defined in Idaho’s Statewide AMBER Alert Plan to help local law enforcement
agencies know if an incident qualifies for issuance of a statewide AMBER Alert from the Idaho State Police
Regional Communication Center (ISP RCC). It also provides guidance on the information necessary for the
request. These criteria should be closely followed unless exigent circumstances are identified during the
investigation.

1) A child is known by law enforcement officials to have been abducted — the child is not simply
missing, runaway or lost.

2) The abduction occurred within 12 hours of initial activation of AMBER Alert.

3) The child is 17 years of age or younger. An Alert may also be issued for older individuals if they
have a proven mental or physical disability and are believed to have been abducted.

4) Law enforcement must believe the child is in imminent danger of serious bodily harm or death.

5) There must be enough descriptive information to believe that an AMBER Alert will assist in the
recovery of the child (must include as much of the following information as possible):

a. Where the abduction took place.

b. A specific physical description of the child (can include clothing worn when last seen;
height, weight, age, hair and eye color, hair length, any additional distinguishing physical
characteristics).

c. A physical description of the abductor can include approximate height, weight, hair
color/length, eye/skin color, clothing, and any distinguishing physical characteristics.
Place last seen; direction of travel if known.

Description of the vehicle should include color, year, make, body model, license number,
and state.
6) The missing child must be entered into NCIC as involuntary with child abduction flag.

Request AMBER Alert
When you enter missing child information into NCIC, select “AMBER Request” in the dropdown.

Notify ISP RCC

36
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC


https://isp.idaho.gov/wp-content/uploads/BCI/Missing-Persons/Idaho-Statewide-AMBER-Alert-Plan.pdf

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

After your NCIC entry, notify the ISP RCC or AMBER Alert Coordinator of the pending activation request
through the OpenFox Messenger System. ISP will initiate the next steps and contact you to verify the
incident information.

Cancel an AMBER Alert
Once the missing child is located, or you determine that the AMBER Alert is no longer warranted, request
ISP cancel the AMBER alert and remove the child from NCIC as applicable.

If the AMBER alert is not canceled in 14 days, the ISP Missing Person Clearinghouse will contact you or
your agency to initiate a cancellation.

Diplomatic Immunity and Consular Notification
January 2016

DIPLOMATIC IMMUNITY

International law requires that law enforcement authorities of the United States extend certain privileges
and immunities to members of foreign diplomatic missions and consular posts. Special care should be
taken to identify and follow the rules applicable to the arrest, detention, or citation of, or entry to the
residence of, any individual presenting a diplomatic identification or riding in a vehicle with diplomatic
license plates.

The degree of immunity to which a member of foreign government personnel is entitled depends on the
status of the individual and is specified in writing on the back of the U.S. Department of State Identification
Card.

CONSULAR NOTIFICATION

When you arrest or detain a foreign national, you must advise them of the right to have their consular
officials notified. In some cases, consular officials must be notified of an arrest or detention of a foreign
national regardless of the individual’s wishes. For example, a Mexican or Canadian national can waive
notification of their consulate, but you are required to notify the consulate of a Russian or Chinese
national even if the arrestee asks you to refrain.

Contact information for the Canadian and Mexican Consular Offices
Canada: Seattle, WA (206) 443-1777; fax (206) 443-9662

Mexico: Boise, ID (208) 343-6228; fax (208) 343-6237

Other contact information
For questions on diplomatic immunity issues, contact the U.S. Department of State, Office of Protocol,
Diplomatic Affairs during business hours at (202) 647-1727. After business hours, contact the U.S.
Department of State, Diplomatic Security Command Center at 1-866-217-2089.

For assistance with consular notification procedures following the arrest or detention of a foreign
national, call the U.S. Department of State at (202) 647-4415 during business hours or (202) 647-1512
after hours.

For additional information, see Consular Notification and Access: Instructions for Law Enforcement:

37
Copyright © 2025 Law En@g’cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

https://travel.state.gov/content/dam/travel/CNAtrainingresources/CNA%20Manual%205th%20
Edition September%202018.pdf

Response to Explosives, Drug Labs and Hazardous Materials
January 2016

When dealing with suspected explosive or hazardous materials/devices, the safety of our officers and
citizens is the agency’s primary concern. You should always exercise extreme caution when involved with
calls of this nature. Whenever a suspicious material or device is located, immediately evacuate the area
and contact the appropriate public safety personnel.

Provide emergency assistance
Your primary responsibility as the first officer on the scene of an explosive device, drug lab or other
hazardous materials is to protect yourself and others who may be in danger. Evacuate everyone to a safe
distance away from the immediate site and adjacent areas, provide assistance to any injured persons and
coordinate emergency medical response with other public safety agencies on site.

BE ALERT for potential hazards, especially risk of explosions and toxic fumes.

Notify proper authorities
Based on the nature of the threat, alert our agency's authorized bomb disposal unit, authorized fire and
rescue units, HAZMAT units and/or canine team(s).

If no agency has accepted responsibility for the response, the Idaho State Police will respond and local
public safety agencies should assist them (Idaho Code 67-2901).

Secure the scene
Scenes with explosive devices, drug labs or other hazardous materials are unsafe and should be
immediately secured until the appropriate authorities arrive. Without creating an undue risk of exposure
to yourself, set up a sufficient outer perimeter around the location to protect the public. Depending on
the nature of the threat, additional safety considerations are necessary.

BOMBS AND OTHER EXPLOSIVES

If a suspected or actual explosive is located, DO NOT touch or move the device. Ensure that all individuals,
including public safety personnel, move away from the explosive device to a location that provides
substantial hard cover.

Never search an area with your radio or other communication devices turned on.

e Use only hand-held radios at a minimum distance of 100 feet from the device (approximately one
block) because hand-held radios generate less radio energy than other communication devices.
e Turn off all other devices (car radio, MDT and cellular phones; pagers that receive only are okay).

When they arrive, assist the authority in charge of the scene in evaluating the bomb threat for validity
and need for further action. Some of the factors to consider are specifics of the threat, nature of the
targeted location, time of detonation, physical access to the site and current events at the location.

DRUG LABS AND OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS

38
Copyright © 2025 Law En@@cement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/title67/t67ch29/sect67-2901/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Drug laboratories used for the primary purpose of illegally manufacturing controlled substances pose
substantial health risks and can even cause death. Volatile organic compounds, explosives, metals,
solvents and salts are commonly found in drug laboratories creating the potential for explosions, chemical
fires and the release of toxic gases. Additionally, some labs may contain sophisticated surveillance
equipment and/or "booby traps" to prevent law enforcement from gaining access to the lab and to
facilitate the destruction of evidence.

Never attempt to enter a known drug lab. If you become aware that you have entered a lab, immediately
evacuate all persons, with or without their consent, for their safety and for investigative purposes.

e Avoid turning on or off any light switches, electrical appliances or other electrical devices and
avoid touching or smelling any lab equipment or chemicals.

e Evacuate everyone from the vicinity of the lab site, in an upwind direction to minimize exposure
to yourself and others.

e Prohibit smoking around or near the lab site.

In addition to drug labs, hazardous materials may be present at other scenes such as some factory settings,
crashes resulting in roadway spills, possible terrorist action and any other situations where dangerous,
hazardous substances may be located or have caused a contaminated environment. You should take the
same safety precautions in your response to these situations as you would for a drug lab.

Reporting and follow-up investigation
You should complete a written report detailing the threat and subsequent police actions. If there is injury
and/or major property damage, treat the case as a major crime scene.

Canine Units
June 2019

Our agency may make use of canines for the detection of narcotics, explosives and other contraband,
and/or to help us apprehend dangerous suspects. We will use them to enhance the services of our agency
and build good community relations, but we also recognize that they are a tool, and when used to
apprehend a suspect, they are a weapon subject to our use of force policy.

DEPLOYMENT

Handlers are expected to follow the policies and procedures of our agency at all times, even when
deployed for an outside agency request. Handlers are responsible for the actions of their dog and must
always use caution and discretion when deciding to engage the canine. Handlers will determine if the
canine is potentially valuable in an incident and may terminate a search or apprehension if the limits of
the canine have been exhausted or the safety of the unit is in danger.

If the canine alerts, the handler will assess the probability and reliability of the alert and determine if the
situation warrants further investigation.

Apprehension
Canines will not be used for apprehension unless the handler has reason to believe that the suspect has
committed a serious crime, is actively resisting arrest, attempting to evade arrest, or poses an immediate
threat to the safety of officers or citizens. The use of a police canine for apprehension is considered a use

39
Copyright © 2025 Law En%){cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

of force and shall follow our agency’s use of force policy. Whenever possible, the handler should provide
a verbal warning to other officers on scene prior to deployment of their canine.

If an individual is bitten by a canine, they shall receive appropriate medical treatment. Call for emergency
medical services if the injury is serious or life-threatening. The handler will notify their supervisor of the
incident as soon as practicable and photograph the bite for their report.

Reporting
All deployments of a canine unit, and anytime a canine damages a vehicle or other property, you should
fully document it in an agency report.

CERTIFICATION AND TRAINING

Canine units must maintain certification and ongoing training as directed by the agency. Certifications will
comply with Idaho Peace Officer Standards and Training canine regulations, unless the agency chooses
not to certify the canine in marijuana detection. In such case, the certification can be waived upon written
approval of the county prosecuting attorney. If a canine does not successfully complete the certification
course, they should not be deployed until becoming certified.

Records
In additional to deployment reports, handlers are required to document and maintain all training records
and have them available for inspection at any time. At a minimum, documentation should include the
date, time, location, duration and description of the training, notes on how the canine performed and if
any other canine units participated. Each canine unit will provide a monthly report to their supervisor
documenting all activity from the prior month.

Training Aides
Training aides may include dangerous and illegal substances. Handlers must have training in the security
requirements of the training aide (e.g. narcotics or explosives) and follow inventory and storage
regulations defined by the state, Drug Enforcement Administration and/or Department of Alcohol,
Tobacco and Firearms.

The agency head will select a designee to conduct annual inspection and inventory of canine training aids.

CANINE CARE AND MAINTENANCE

The handler is responsible for the care and maintenance of the agency-owned canine, vehicle and all
related equipment. All will be kept neat, clean and odor free. Handlers will be compensated for the time
to care for the canine and its environment, typically one-half hour each day while actually caring for the
canine.

Veterinary Care

If the canine is owned by the agency, all routine healthcare services will be provided by an agency-
approved veterinarian. Handlers are responsible for scheduling routine services and ensuring a full health
examination and vaccinations annually. In an emergency, another licensed veterinarian may provide
medical care but only until an agency-approved veterinarian can take over treatment. If the veterinarian
recommends surgery or other costly specialized treatment, the handler shall notify their agency head, or
their designee, and seek approval if practical. Handlers should report any canine injury or illness to their
supervisor as soon as possible.

40
Copyright © 2025 Law En@zcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

If the canine is sick or injured, the handler will determine if the dog may work. If the dog cannot work, the
handler should notify their supervisor as soon as possible. The handler is still expected to report for duty
and work their regular shift hours.

Kenneling
All canines will have a kennel available at the handler’s home. The kennel may be provided by the agency
or, if provided by the handler, approved by their supervisor. The kennel must provide proper
environmental protection and comfort to the canine, but also be secured to prevent escape.

When the handler is sick or away from home and cannot care for the canine, the canine must be kenneled
at the agency-approved boarding facility, unless other arrangements are approved by the agency head or
their designee.

Canine Patrol Vehicle
When the canine is left in the vehicle, the handler shall ensure proper interior climate conditions and
ventilation. The vehicle will remain locked when the handler is not in the immediate area. If the canine is
left for extended periods, the handler must periodically check to make sure the canine is safe and
comfortable.

No one may access a canine vehicle while the dog is inside without permission of the handler.

Reserve Officers
July 2024

Our agency may choose to use Reserve Officers to support regular patrol duties, emergency situations, or
any other function that the agency head deems necessary. Allowable assignments depend on the reserve
officer’s certification, experience and training. To work independently, they must be certified by POST and
be able to understand and appropriately carry out all the duties required for the assignment including but
not limited to understanding and applying criminal and traffic laws, using deadly and non-deadly force,
vehicle operation, application of law enforcement and evidence collection procedures, and administrative
requirements.

TRAINING

All reserve officers must graduate from the POST Reserve Academy, or otherwise meet POST
requirements for certification, and complete the agency’s Field Training Program and any new-hire and
advanced training as prescribed by the agency head. The amount of time required to complete the
program will vary depending upon the reserve and the training officer’s availability.

Ongoing Requirements
A certified reserve officer must work a minimum of 120 hours annually in a peace officer capacity to
maintain POST certification (IDAPA 11.11.01.081.07). They must also satisfactorily complete 40 hours of
continued training related to law enforcement every 2 years (IDAPA 11.11.01.131.01). This training must
include minimum training hours in the following topics:

a. Firearms: 8 hours and an annual proficiency test (qualification);
b. Arrest Techniques/Defensive Tactics (ARCON): 8 hours;
c. Emergency vehicle operation: 4 hours; and

41
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC


https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/current/11/111101.pdf
https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/current/11/111101.pdf

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

d. Legal update(s): 4 hours.

SUPERVISION

Reserve officers must work under the supervision of a full-time POST certified peace officer. Prior to
starting a work assignment, the reserve officer must know who their supervisor will be, and the supervisor
must know they are responsible for the reserve officer. Throughout their shift, the reserve officer is
accountable to that supervisor in the same manner as a full-time officer. At the end of the shift, they must
inform their supervisor before they leave.

AUTHORITY

Reserve officers possess authority as peace officers as provided in Idaho Code and the rules of the Peace
Officers Standards and Training Academy. Peace officer authority exercised by a reserve officer applies to
on-duty work only, and they are not authorized to use it while off-duty.

Aircraft Crashes
January 2016

The National Transportation Safety Board (NTSB), often with the assistance of the Federal Aviation
Administration (FAA), investigates all civilian aircraft crashes. Military authorities investigate military
aircraft crashes. Your role in either case is as a first responder - providing rescue if needed and ensuring
the crash site is secured until federal authorities or military officials arrive and take over authority.

Coordinate emergency services
The first units on the scene of an aircraft crash should provide assistance to any injured or trapped
persons, and coordinate emergency medical response with other public safety agencies on site. BE ALERT
for potential hazards especially risk of explosions from fuel, oxygen, tires, bombs, munitions, or other
sources.

Secure the scene
Peace officers on scene will ensure the crash site is protected and secured until the NTSB, military or other
proper authority arrives and takes over the scene.

e Create an outer perimeter that encompasses the full debris field

e Ensure the aircraft and debris are not moved from their location unless necessary to help injured
or trapped people

e Cover fatalities where located until the arrival of the NTSB or the coroner

e Restrict scene access to authorized personnel

Notify proper authorities

Civilian aircraft:

NTSB Response Operations Center, Washington DC 844-373-9922
Watch Officers are staffed 24/7

Military aircraft:

Contact the nearest military base of the involved branch of service

42
Copyright © 2025 Law En@ﬁcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

If the crash involves a small aircraft with no fatalities, the NTSB may choose not to respond. In these cases,
the aircraft owner is responsible for the wreckage.

Opioid Overdose
July 2022

An opioid overdose causes death by slowing and eventually stopping a person’s breathing. Naloxone,
sometimes referred to by its brand names NARCAN® or EZVIO®, can restore respiration within two to five
minutes of being administered. Our agency may use naloxone to help prevent brain injury and deaths due
to opioid-involved overdose.

Any officer, in good faith, who administers naloxone to someone who appears to be having an opiate-
related overdose is not liable in a civil or administrative action or subject to criminal prosecution.

TRAINING
Officers authorized to carry and administer naloxone must complete training as directed by the agency.

RESPONSE TO SUSPECTED OVERDOSE

Officers responding to a suspected drug overdose should assess if the overdose is opioid related before
administering naloxone. Examples of opioids include heroin, fentanyl, oxycodone (OxyContin®),
hydrocodone (Vicodin®), codeine, and morphine. Common signs that a person may be suffering from an
opioid overdose include:

e Difficulty breathing such as depressed or slow respirations, labored breathing, shallow or gasping
breaths:

e Pinpoint pupils, even in a darkened environment; and

e Evidence of drug use such as paraphernalia, track marks, information from bystanders.

Other indications of opioid use may include:

e Unresponsiveness, drowsiness or loss of alertness;
e Decreased pulse rate;

e Low blood pressure;

e Blue skin, lips or fingernails;

e Blood-shot eyes; and

e Past history of opioid use/abuse.

Naloxone only works on overdoses caused by opioids. It does not reverse overdoses resulting from non-
opioid drugs like cocaine, benzodiazepines (“benzos”), or alcohol. However, in cases of multiple drug
overdose (e.g., an opioid and a benzodiazepine), or if a person is unresponsive and it is not known whether
opioids are the cause, it is standard practice to administer naloxone just in case.

If naloxone use is warranted, officers must notify dispatch immediately before or directly after
administration of naloxone and request appropriate emergency medical services.

Officers shall follow their training protocols and the manufacturer’s instructions on administration of
naloxone.

43
Copyright © 2025 Law En%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Safety
When using naloxone kits, officers will follow our agency’s infectious disease exposure policy and be
aware of possible safety issues. For example, needles on the ground or in the general area that could
expose the officer to an unintentional needle stick during administration.

Reporting
Each use of naloxone must be fully documented in an agency report including information on who
administered the naloxone, number of doses, time of administration, the subject’s condition before
administration and their reaction to it.

KIT MAINTENANCE

Naloxone kits may not be left in vehicles or stored in areas that are exposed to prolonged freezing or
extreme heat. Officers who use a naloxone medication kit should turn it in to their supervisor for
replacement.

Suicidal People

July 2023

If you are involved in a situation with a person actively demonstrating suicidal intentions, you should try
to offer aid and assistance but recognize that a law enforcement response may be required. Suicidal
people can be dangerous, especially if someone nearby is the focus of their anger or depression, or they
choose “suicide by cop” and put you in a situation where deadly force is warranted.

When you are involved in a situation with a suicidal person, remain aware of the balance between
protecting people from harm and potentially increasing the tension in the situation. Assess the situation
and if possible, attempt to get the individual’s voluntary compliance.

e Request behavioral health help, if available and appropriate.
e Remain calm, speak in a conversational, non-confrontational manner, and reassure the subject
that you are trying to help.

If the individual does not voluntarily comply and the situation increases in intensity:

Threat Only to Themselves
If the suicidal subject poses a threat to only themselves, it may not be practical to risk additional
confrontation. After reasonable attempts to offer aid and assistance, it may be prudent to leave the
person alone.

Armed, Combative or a Threat to Others
If the subject is armed, combative or otherwise poses a threat that requires immediate intervention, you
are authorized to use reasonable and necessary force to protect yourself and others.

44
Copyright © 2025 Law En@@cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

INVESTIGATIONS, INFORMATION AND EVIDENCE

Evidence and Property
July 2017

Property seized or recovered by an officer or employee will be handled so as to ensure a continuous chain
of custody and stored in a secure facility designated and approved by our agency. This policy refers to
seized, recovered and evidentiary property as well as abandoned, lost or found property taken under the
official care of our agency.

BOOKING EVIDENCE AND PROPERTY
When taking possession of evidence and property, follow these guidelines for packaging, labeling and
recording each item:

e Package each item in appropriate envelopes/containers. ltems such as money, precious metals,
jewelry, weapons and controlled substances require extra security and may necessitate special
packing materials.

e Fully complete a property form/receipt carefully describing each item including weight or count,
serial and/or model numbers and other identifying characteristics as applicable.

e Hazardous materials such as explosives and dangerous chemicals shall not be stored in the law
enforcement facility without prior approval by a supervisor.

e Itemsthat are wet or have bodily fluids such as blood or semen will be air dried in a secure location
prior to being packaged. You shall wear protective gloves and take appropriate precautions when
handling such evidence.

e Complete a report with contact and descriptive information of the owner, finder or others who
possessed or have a claim to an item. Note the circumstances surrounding custody of an item and
any other information that may help determine the lawful owner. Include information that will
assist property custodians with proper disposition of the items at a later time.

Book all evidence and property items into an evidence storage facility before going off duty unless an
alternate, temporary storage solution is authorized by a supervisor. Controlled substances or items of
significant value, including cash, shall never be stored in your vehicle or home and will always be placed
into proper agency storage prior to going off duty.

Firearms should not be returned to or given to any individual who may not lawfully receive or possess a
firearm under federal law.

PROPERTY CONTROL

The agency head will designate a property custodian. The property custodian is responsible for
maintaining a record of all evidence/property booked into the property facility including temporary
release to another person, transfer to a crime laboratory, and final disposition and disposal.

The property custodian will perform a complete inventory annually, matching current records against the
current physical inventory of property. The annual inventory will be verified by a supervisor who is not
part of the property control function. The results of the inventory will be reported to the agency head.

Random, unannounced inspections or audits may be conducted at the direction of the agency head.

45
Copyright © 2025 Law En@fcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Property will be disposed of in accordance with Idaho Code:

e 18-310 — Individuals who have been convicted of a violent felony or of using a firearm in the
commission of a crime, or who are currently serving time in state corrections including prison,
felony probation and/or parole, are not allowed to ship, transport, possess or receive a firearm.

e 19-3801 - Stolen property must be held until the court authorizes its disposal.

e 55-403 — Abandoned or unclaimed property in agency possession or custody may be sold at public
auction. Personal property with a fair market value less than $25.00 may be sold after 30 days,
bicycles after 90 days, and all other property after 6 months. Firearms and ammunition may be
sold to a licensed firearm dealer, converted for official law enforcement use (if they meet agency
specifications), or destroyed.

e 55-404 —Income from the sale of personal property may be used to reimburse the cost of storage
and/or sale of the items. The remainder must be kept in an account for 1 year to allow time for
an individual to claim ownership of an item sold. If proof of ownership is confirmed, the individual
will receive the remaining proceeds from the sale. If there are no valid claims after 1 year, the
proceeds will go to the city or county general fund.

e 55-405 — Anyone who finds money or items worth $100 or more (except firearms, explosives, or
other deadly weapons), must provide notice to the county clerk within 10 days and publish a
notification in the newspaper within 20 days. If no one claims the found money or item within
the next 3 months, the finder may keep it. Anyone who fails to comply with this process must
forfeit the items, or the value of them, to the county.

Sexual Assault Kits
June 2020

Our agency will have sexual assault evidence kits tested by the Idaho State Police Forensic Services
Laboratory according to the guidelines in Idaho Code 67-2919. Our primary concern in any sexual assault
is the health and safety of the victim, and officers will be compassionate and avoid further traumatizing
the victim throughout the investigation.

EVIDENCE COLLECTION

Officers responding to a report of sexual assault should arrange to have the victim taken to a qualified
medical facility for treatment and evidence collection. Victims who choose not to assist with an
investigation, do not want the matter to be investigated or wish to remain anonymous may still consent
to the collection of evidence.

Medical professionals should collect samples using a sexual assault kit approved and provided by the
Idaho State Police Forensic Services Laboratory. If drugs have a suspected role in the assault, you should
also ensure that the medical facility collects blood and urine samples from the victim.

When the medical facility notifies you the kit is ready, take custody of it as soon as possible but no later
than 7 days after notification. You, or another officer designated to retrieve the kit, are responsible for
securing it into evidence, completing a supplemental report so it can be submitted it for testing. You
should consult with your prosecutor to ensure compliance with state law.

46
Copyright © 2025 Law En%)gcement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title18/T18CH3/SECT18-310/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title19/T19CH38/SECT19-3801/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title55/T55CH4/SECT55-403/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title55/T55CH4/SECT55-404/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title55/T55CH4/SECT55-405/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/title67/t67ch29/sect67-2919/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Offenses Occurring in Another Jurisdiction
If a sexual assault occurs outside of our jurisdiction but is reported to us, we will complete a sexual assault
report for the victim and arrange transport to a medical facility for treatment and evidence collection, if
applicable. You should notify the agency of jurisdiction as soon as practical.

Once you retrieve the sexual assault evidence kit or other sexual assault case evidence from the medical
facility, you must notify that jurisdiction within 7 days and request that agency pick up the evidence within
7 days.

TESTING
Victims have the right to refuse to have evidence sent to the crime lab for forensic examination. Our
agency will store the evidence for up to 10 years in case they change their mind at a later date.

If the victim consents to evidence testing, our agency will submit the sexual assault kit to the Idaho State
Police Forensic Services Laboratory as soon as reasonably practical, but no later than 30 days after
obtaining the evidence.

If the case is no longer being investigated as a crime, or there is no evidence to support that a crime was
committed, you must have the county prosecutor’s office review the case and confirm a decision to not
forward the sexual assault kit to the state lab for testing.

RESULTS

The Idaho State Police Forensic Services Laboratory will test kits and submit eligible results to the Idaho
DNA database within 90 days. At the written request of the victim, parent or guardian if the victim is a
minor at the time of notification, or relative if the victim is deceased, our agency will inform them:

e When the sexual assault evidence kit is submitted to state laboratory;
¢ |f a DNA profile was obtained and entered into the Idaho DNA database;

¢ [fan association was made to an individual; however, genetic or other identifying information will
not be provided; and

e Any changes to the status of the case or reopening of the case.
All DNA profiles and information are strictly confidential under Idaho Code 19-5514.

STORAGE

Following analysis, sexual assault evidence kits will be returned to our agency and stored in evidence for
the following durations:

e Death penalty cases - Until the sentence in the case has been carried out and no un-apprehended
persons associated with the offense exist;

e Felony cases (including anonymous sexual assault kits collected under the violence against women
act) - 55 years from the collection of the kit or until the sentence in the case is completed,
whichever occurs first;

e Unsupported cases prior to July 1, 2019 (where there is no evidence to support a crime being
committed, or when it is no longer being investigated as a crime or when an adult victim expressly

47
Copyright © 2025 Law En@g’cement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/title19/t19ch55/sect19-5514/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

indicates that no further forensic examination or testing occur) - 10 years from collection of the
kit; and

e Unfounded cases on or after July 1, 2019 (a crime was alleged, and the allegation was determined
to be unfounded) - 10 years from collection of the kit.

The victim, parent or guardian of a minor victim or relative of a deceased victim may petition the court to
preserve sexual assault evidence beyond these durations. At their written request and if contact
information is current, we will provide written notification of the destruction or disposal of a sexual assault
evidence kit and any other case evidence 60 days before the proposed date.

Audio and Video Recordings
July 2023

We recommend the use of mobile video and audio recorders to accurately document events, actions,
conditions and statements made during citizen contacts, arrests and other critical incidents. This policy
applies to any system that captures audio or video data including cell phones, digital cameras, on-body
recorders and in-car cameras, whether handheld, clipped to your uniform or fixed in a permanent
location.

You should use only agency-issued recording equipment on duty unless the agency head approves the use
of personal recording equipment in place of or in conjunction with agency devices. You may not use
agency-issued recorders outside the scope of your employment.

WHEN TO RECORD

At the beginning of each shift, it is your responsibility to ensure all components of the recording
equipment are working properly including the camera, microphone, recorder and monitor. Notify your
supervisor immediately if there are any problems with the equipment.

You should make every attempt to record all potentially dangerous or criminal field contacts including but
not limited to:

e emergency responses and pursuits;

e traffic stops and investigations, including driving patterns for DUI (beginning to end);

e interviews of a criminal suspect;

e any actions or communication with an arrestee during transport;

e vehicle searches and inventories;

e any confrontational contact with a subject;

e incidents where the recording may be useful for administrative, investigative or prosecution;
e any additional situations designated by your supervisor or agency head.

As a courtesy, you should notify assisting officers that they are being recorded, but you are not required
to discontinue recording an incident at the request of anyone other than a superior officer.

We recognize that it may not always be practical to activate recording equipment. Do not allow the
operation of a recording system to interfere with your personal safety, the safety of others, or the safe
operation of your police vehicle.

48
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfﬂijcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

WHEN NOT TO RECORD

You are prohibited from recording members of this agency without their consent unless authorized by the
agency head or a court order. Additionally, you shall not intentionally record locations where there is a
reasonable expectation of privacy (e.g. private residences, public restrooms, etc.) unless you are present
due to a law enforcement contact. You shall not knowingly record undercover officers and confidential
informants.

DOCUMENTATION AND STORAGE

All images, video and audio recordings, or other similar items that are taken, recorded or obtained under
your authority as a peace officer are the property of the agency. You should upload digital files from the
device to our electronic storage system prior to the end of your shift, regardless of content.

Whenever a video or audio recording is made of a crime or incident, you will document the details in your
arrest and related reports as you would any other evidence. Be sure to note the date, time, location and
content of the recording.

All digital files will be stored in the original format to guarantee authenticity and ensure their integrity and
admissibility as evidence. They shall be labeled and retained according to evidence storage rules.

REVIEW OF RECORDINGS

We reserve the right to limit or restrict any officer from viewing media or accessing media systems or
software at any time. However, we generally support review of recordings for investigations, training and
other legitimate law enforcement purposes.

You may have access to your own recorded media to review probable cause for arrest, custody
procedures, officer and suspect interaction and evidence for investigative purposes. Reviewing the details
of an incident can improve the accuracy of your report and help you prepare for courtroom testimony.
You are not permitted access to the recorded media of other officers, unless granted permission from a
supervisor.

Recordings may be duplicated only for official purposes such as court or training. You are prohibited from
making personal copies of recordings and showing or distributing recordings outside of legitimate law
enforcement purposes.

Supervisors may review media as part of their official duties to evaluate officer tactics and field
performance. Additionally, recorded media may be used for training purposes with authorization from
the agency head or his/her designee.

BEING RECORDED BY OTHERS
Suspects and witnesses have as much right to record your conversation with them as you do. Additionally,
people who are not involved in your police actions may video record you on duty unless they:

e Areso close they are a legitimate threat to your safety;
e Repeatedly interrupt or disrupt your official business;
e Position themselves to impede your movements; or

e Violate the privacy of a victim or witness.

49
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfp{cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

You may order an uninvolved person to maintain a reasonable distance, whether they are using a
recording device or not; however, that distance should be the same for anyone else who may be standing
there. You should be ready to explain why and how the person being closer interferes with your duties.

You may also reasonably protect yourself if someone comes up to you in threatening manner whether
they are using a recording device or not; however, be aware that there are people who will try to elicit an
overreaction from law enforcement officers to embarrass the agency and create a civil liability claim.
These individuals are often intentionally irritating, so you must remain calm, avoid an emotional reaction
and ensure your actions or orders are lawful.

If any of these situations occur, enforcement action may be warranted, but only if they are truly
obstructing the performance of your official duties. Otherwise, although it may be irritating, they have
the right to record you just as you have the right to record them.

ILETS - Idaho Public Safety and Security Information System
June 2020

Idaho Code 19-5201, et. seq., establishes the Idaho Public Safety and Security Information System (ILETS)
to provide information to criminal justice agencies throughout Idaho on criminal histories, sex offenders,
wanted and missing persons, stolen property, motor vehicle registrations and drivers’ licensing. ILETS
includes access to local, state and national information by connecting with the National Crime Information
Center (NCIC) and International Justice and Public Safety Network (NLETS). Access to criminal justice
information through ILETS may be used only for officially mandated responsibilities.

USE OF INFORMATION
You must be certified to use the ILETS/NCIC system and if you do not have current certification, you are
prohibited from accessing or entering information into or from the system.

Criminal justice information available through ILETS shall be used exclusively for official law enforcement
business. You are strictly prohibited from using the systems to find information on an individual or vehicle
for personal use or knowledge. You will keep your password(s) secure at all times and not share it with
anyone else for any reason.

Inquiry

You may access ILETS/NCIC to check the identification of vehicles and drivers, confirm arrest warrants,
identify stolen items, conduct pre-employment background checks and review the criminal history of
individuals under investigation. You must define a specific reason for each inquiry that identifies its
criminal justice purpose. If you get a “hit” on a person, vehicle or article from an agency other than ours,
contact records or dispatch personnel to confirm the information before taking further action. Warrant
or stolen information received from ILETS/NCIC will not be considered probable cause for arrest until
properly verified and confirmed by the originating agency.

Entry
All law enforcement agencies in Idaho are required to enter information on missing persons, stolen
vehicles and property with serial numbers including boats, firearms and license plates. ILETS data entry
must meet the following standards for timeliness, accuracy and completeness:

50
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfpzcement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/title19/t19ch52/sect19-5201/
https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title19/T19CH52/SECT19-5202/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

e Missing persons who are 21 or younger must be entered into ILETS within 2 hours of notification.

e All entries must be double-checked by a second party.

e You must include all information available at the time of entry, and information obtained later
must be added to the system as soon as possible.

To make an official entry into ILETS/NCIC, you need the departmental report number and the following
information:

Missing person/runaway:

Full name

Date of birth

SSN (if available)

Physical description

Significant circumstances (if applicable)

Time you arrived on scene

Photo (if available)

County of birth

Mother’s maiden name

Scars, marks and tattoos

Alcohol and/or drug use

Clothing the person was last seen wearing

Any significant physical problems

Any medication requirements including the name of each, what it is used for, and if the person
is carrying them

Signature form for a missing adult who is 21 or older

Stolen vehicle:

Color

Year

Make and model

Body style

VIN

License plate number, state of issue and date of license plate expiration

Other stolen property:

Detailed description of the item including color, brand, etc. with photo (if available)

Serial number (if known)

For license plates, both plates must be taken. If just one was stolen, an ILETS/NCIC entry may
be made only if:

o Theft of the plate is established;

o The owner surrenders the other plate to be booked into property; and

o The owner agrees to cancel the registration.

51
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfpgcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

With the exception of AMBER alerts, you may contact records or dispatch staff (if available) from the field
and provide them with the information for entry. Note in your report that the ILETS/NCIC entry was called
in, and include the date, time and staff who took the information.

NCIC Entry Clearance
If you locate a missing person, runaway, stolen vehicle or stolen property, or receive information that an
ILETS/NCIC entry is no longer valid, it is your responsibility to have the entry cleared. You may contact
records or dispatch staff (if available) and provide them with the information to clear the record. All
cleared records must be double-checked by a second party.

SECURITY AND INFORMATION SHARING

Criminal history record information, including conviction and non-conviction data available through ILETS
may be disseminated only to criminal justice agencies, and the use of that information shall be limited to
the purpose for which it was originally obtained. Under no circumstances shall you provide, or confirm
the existence or non-existence of, criminal history information to any private person, agency, organization
or corporation not entitled to receive such information.

Do not print information from ILETS unless necessary for a case investigation. Any information that is
printed must be kept in a secure area and immediately destroyed after its use. If documents are
disseminated to individuals outside of our agency, be sure to log them. Criminal history information shall
not be retained in case files when the case is closed or inactive.

All visitors in ILETS/NCIC access areas must be escorted by authorized personnel at all times unless they
have been background-checked and fingerprinted. If you are escorting a visitor, maintain contact and do
not leave them unattended.

Use of Artificial Intelligence
July 2024

July 2025

Our agency recognizes that Artificial Intelligence (Al) is increasingly prevalent in the technology that we
use every day. Al technology can help us better detect, investigate and solve crime but it has been known
to provide inaccurate or incomplete information. Additionally, many Al systems do not yet have
confidentiality limitations sufficient for law enforcement investigations and privacy purposes. Officers
should be aware that interactions with Al, even in a personal capacity, may not be completely private, and
all results must be verified to ensure the accuracy of information.

GUIDELINES
You may use agency-approved Al applications to support law enforcement operations and complete your
official duties. This may include Al tools used in products that our agency has adopted such as:

e Speech to text programs, predictive text, and grammar and spelling aids.

e Drafting applications to help create draft versions of report narratives, warrant affidavits,
statements and other narratives documenting law enforcement related incidents.

e Agency training software, unmanned aircraft systems software, license plate recognition software
and similar applications.

52
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfpﬁcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

NOTE: You MUST confirm information provided as an output of these tools is correct before acting on
information or finalizing investigative reports and forms for submission.

Officers are permitted to use Al for personal use, for research and investigative functions, to help produce
administrative documents, develop presentations or create crime analysis reports provided that law
enforcement sensitive information (e.g. Criminal Justice Information Services [CJIS data) are not shared
with public Al tools.

Prohibitions
Do not input sensitive or confidential information related to police operations, investigations, or
individuals in any communications with public Al systems for any reason. Public Al tools are openly
available and retain data provided by users as part of the Al’s pool of data. These data would then be used
for future query responses, which could give people outside of our agency access to the information you
provided.

SUPERVISORY REVIEW

It is the responsibility of all supervisors to enforce this policy. Supervisors will review reports, forms,
search warrants and arrest warrants of the officers under their command to confirm their work product
is accurate.

If you become aware of any suspected misuse or violation of this policy - including unethical use,
unauthorized data sharing, breaches of confidentiality, or a security bypass - you should report it to your
supervisor immediately.

Automated License Plate Readers
July 2025

Automated License Plate Reader (ALPR) systems automatically scan license plates, cross-reference them with
databases of stolen, wanted and other vehicles of interest, and provide real-time alerts and/or tracking data to
officers. Our agency may use ALPRs to identify stolen or wanted vehicles, stolen license plates and missing persons,
and to gather information related to active warrants, suspect interdiction and stolen property.

AUTHORIZED USE

ALPR system use is restricted to authorized law enforcement personnel who have met minimum training,
certification, and background checks required for access to criminal justice data and the APLR system.
System queries for investigative and administrative purposes are tracked for auditing including:

e Name and agency of the law enforcement user;

e Date and time of access;

e Specific data accessed;

e Authorized law enforcement or public safety justification for access, including a relevant case
number if applicable.

53
Copyright © 2025 Law En%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Alerts
ALPRs can provide instant alerts to officers when a vehicle on a "hot list" (stolen, wanted, etc.) or manually
entered is identified. If you are manually entering a plate for APLR recognition, you must document the
reason.

If the APLR alerts on a vehicle, you must verify the accuracy of the hit before taking law enforcement
action. Receipt of an alert is NOT sufficient probable cause to initiate a stop of a suspect without further
verification. At a minimum, visually verify that the vehicle's plate number matches the plate number read
by the ALPR system. If practical, also verify the details of the vehicle it’s registered to, including the make,
model, year, and other identifying information.

You may use ALPR-captured license plate images, vehicle images, plate text, date, time and location to
support official law enforcement actions. You may NOT use facial images or information about people
such as gender and race even if it is inadvertently captured by the ALPR’s camera.

DOCUMENTATION AND STORAGE

All ALPR data and images are the property of the agency. They may contain confidential ILETS information
and may only be used and shared with other authorized and verified law enforcement officials and
agencies for legitimate law enforcement purposes.

All ALPR data will be stored and purged according to agency data retention schedules unless it has, or it is
reasonable to believe it will, become evidence in a criminal or civil case. Data reserved for a case will be
labeled and retained according to evidence storage rules.

Photo Line-ups
June 2020

We will make every effort to establish reliable eyewitness identifications that ensure due process,
eliminate suggestiveness, and accurately document methods for use in court. This policy covers:

Photo line-up: A selected group of photographs containing a single suspect and several other individuals
with similar physical characteristics presented to a witness to determine if he/she is able to identify the
suspect as the perpetrator of the crime.

Show-up: An identification procedure in which a victim or a witness views a single suspect in order to identify
that suspect as the perpetrator of the crime.

You should not discuss identification procedures or their results with the media or other witnesses
involved in the case.

PHOTO LINE-UP

You should contact your supervisor and/or your prosecutor before administering a photo line-up. We
require the use of a blind administration method whenever possible. For blind administration, a third
party who does not know the identity of the suspect and is not involved in the investigation should
administer the line-up. This prevents the witness from looking to the officer for guidance.

To prepare the photo folders:

54
Copyright © 2025 Law Enf%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

1. Select one suspect photograph that resembles the witness’s description of the perpetrator and
five filler photographs that match the same description but do not cause the suspect’s photograph
to unduly stand out. You will also need ten folders — four of them will serve as ‘dummy folders’
and not contain photographs.

2. Place afiller photo in one folder. Label the folder #1.

3. Place the suspect photograph and other four filler photographs into folders. Shuffle the folders
so you are unaware of which folder the suspect is in. Label the folders #2-6.

4. Label the remaining empty folders #7-10 so that the witness does not know when he/she has seen
the last photo.

Select a private area for the line-up presentation whenever possible. If there are multiple witnesses, bring
in only one individual at a time to ensure each views the line-up independently. Prevent contact between
witnesses until all presentations are complete. If you are the administrator:

1. Instruct the witness that:
e The perpetrator may or may not be among the persons in the identification procedure;

They should not feel compelled to make an identification;

The administrator does not know which folder the suspect is in; and
e The investigation will continue whether or not an identification is made.

2. Without looking at the photo, hand folder #1 to the witness. Each time the witness views a folder,
they should indicate whether or not this is the person they saw and their degree of confidence in
the identification. Allow the witness to describe their level of certainty in their own words — do
not offer them a numerical ranking. They should then return the photo folder to you.

3. Hand the next folder to the witness and repeat step 2 above until all photos have been viewed.
The order of the photos should be preserved, in a facedown position, for final documentation.

FIELD SHOW-UP

A show-up is an in-person field identification procedure performed when circumstances require the
prompt display of a possible suspect to a victim or witness. The show-up can be conducted when a crime
is recent, the suspect matches the description of the offender and the suspect is located in the vicinity of
the crime.

In an attempt to limit the suggestiveness and promote safety during a field show-up, you must document
the eyewitness’s description of the suspect prior to conducting the show-up. If there are multiple victims
and witnesses, separate and instruct them to avoid discussing details of the incident with one another. All
show-ups must be administered to only one individual at a time to ensure each views the suspect
independently. To conduct the show-up:

1. Instruct the witness that:
e They should not assume the person presented is the suspect;
o They should not feel compelled to make an identification; and
e The investigation will continue whether or not an identification is made.

55
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfpfcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

2. Transport the witness to the location of the suspect in a manner that does not compromise their
identity. It is not recommended to transport a suspect to the witness.

3. Do not provide feedback to a witness during the identification process.
4. Do not present the same suspect to a witness more than once.

5. Do not make the suspect put on clothing worn by the perpetrator or speak words and conduct
actions reported about the perpetrator.

If a witness makes a positive identification, note their level of certainty. Allow the witness to describe their
level of certainty in their own words — do not offer them a numerical ranking. Depending on the
circumstances and probable cause, you may choose to detain the suspect for further investigation.

If the suspect is NOT positively identified, you should release them without delay unless other probable
cause exists for arrest.

DOCUMENTATION

Provide detailed documentation in your investigative report about the photo line-up or field show-up
procedure including:

e Type of procedure;

e Date, time and location;

o Name of the administrator;

e List of all individuals present; and

e Each witness’s:

Level of certainty in their identification in the witness’s own words;
Degree of attention when viewing the photographs or subject;

Any emotions expressed during the process or caused by a subject;
Comments volunteered throughout;

Accuracy of their prior description of the subject; and

o O O O

o Length of time between the crime and the identification.
e For a photo-line up, you must also include the number of photos shown, copies of the
photographs, source of each photo, and the order in which the folders were presented.

You are encouraged to record any witness identification procedure from start to finish whenever practical.
Upload the digital file from the recording device to our electronic storage system as evidence and note it
in your report.

Confidential Informants
June 2020

Confidential informants can be a major source of information in an investigation because they are
frequently associated with persons involved in criminal activities.

Confidential Informant (Cl): A person who is providing our agency with information or assistance in criminal
matters, and whose identity is kept secret until court procedures require its release.

56
Copyright © 2025 Law Enff)gcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

The agency head or his/her designee may approve the use of confidential informants for gathering
information on criminal activities or aiding in field investigations. When considering the use of an
informant, you should evaluate their character, motivation, reliability and truthfulness. If they are unable
to provide information of high value that can be verified, it may not be worth risking their safety and the
legitimacy of your investigation.

Juvenile informants - The use of juvenile informants should generally be avoided because the possible
liability attached to their use usually outweighs any potential benefits. If a juvenile is recommended, they
will be used only with prior authorization of the agency head, permission from a parent or legal guardian
and consultation with the prosecutor’s office.

Informants with pending cases - You should also carefully consider accepting services from informants
with pending cases. You will advise the informant that their cooperation and efforts may show their good
faith and reliability, but they are not a guarantee of leniency in a pending case. If the case is filed, the final
disposition lies in the hands of the prosecutor and courts.

The terms of any "deal" made in cooperation with the prosecutor’s office must be communicated to all
parties involved including the informant and the informant's attorney, as applicable.

Informants on parole or probation - Conditions of parole and probation commonly prohibit association
with known felons and subjects engaged in criminal activity. Informants on parole or probation should
only be used to supply information.

At least two officers shall be present at any meeting with an informant to provide necessary
corroboration, documentation, surveillance and backup. If an emergency situation requires meeting
without a second officer, contact your supervisor as soon as practicable to advise him/her of the contact
and what was discussed. This interaction will be documented in a report and placed in the informant’s
file.

You should take all necessary precautions to safeguard the identity and protect the safety of informants
working directly with you. If an informant participates in an operation in which he/she may have access
to seizure funds, contraband, controlled substances or anything else of potential evidentiary value, you
shall thoroughly search the informant and his/her vehicle (if applicable) both before and after an
undercover encounter. Whenever possible, observe the informant continuously during any operation.

Prohibited associations
Police contact with informants shall be strictly professional. An officer who makes contact with an
informant is prohibited from:

e Extraneous social or business contacts;

e Social, sexual or other non-duty-related contacts;

e Accepting gifts, loans, gratuities, or other items or services from an informant; and

e Engaging in any personal financial dealings or private business transactions with an informant.

Immediately contact your supervisor if you have any unplanned interactions with an informant. A report
of this contact will be placed in the informant’s file.

57
Copyright © 2025 Law Enfpgcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

PAYMENT

The agency may pay confidential informants based on the services provided within authorized limits. The
size and value of the case, funds available, and the involvement and track record of the confidential
informant may all be considered for determining the payment amount. All payments must be approved
by the agency head or his/her designee.

All informants shall be paid in the presence of at least two officers, and a receipt of payment must include
signatures from the informant, reporting officer and witness officer. The agency head or his/her designee
may waive the presence of a second officer and/or the signature requirement for the informant in
exceptional circumstances. A copy of the payment receipt will be documented in the informant's file, with
a memo detailing authorization for any signature omissions.

The agency head will ensure that an independent staff audit of payments made to informants is conducted
annually.

58
Copyright © 2025 Law En%)@cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

ADMINISTRATION

Organization and Authority
January 2016

It is the policy of this agency to grant all employees at every level the authority necessary for the effective
execution of their responsibilities. Each employee will be held accountable for the proper use of his/her
authority.

CHAIN OF COMMAND

The agency head has full command over all agency affairs and personnel. Authority is delegated to ranking
officers and select professional leadership staff to effectively deliver services to the community. Authority
is not limited to the ranking officer’s respective division but includes supervision over all employees as
necessary. A ranking officer will exercise his/her authority in the best interest of the agency. The officer
will not unnecessarily countermand orders of officers below his/her rank or needlessly interfere with the
duties of lower ranking members. Additionally, ranking officers and professional leadership staff will not
deliberately criticize directives, policies, orders or instructions of superior officers in the presence of
subordinates.

SUPERVISION

In keeping with the principles of unity of command, each employee is accountable to only one supervisor
at any given time. There may be times, such as during the absence of a supervisor, when another
supervisor may direct or issue commands to officers normally not under their direct supervision.

Supervisors are responsible for creating a supportive and cooperative environment for a fixed number of
employees. Supervisors should know their employee’s strengths and weaknesses, and may need to
provide counseling, advice and direction to individuals with problems that affect work performance.
Supervisors will complete evaluation reports on their personnel.

Selection and Training
July 2022

The success of our agency depends on the quality of the people we hire. We are committed to selecting
and hiring highly qualified candidates who possess applicable skills and are motivated to pursue a career
in law enforcement. We will provide an appropriate level of training to each employee so we may uphold
the highest level of public service.

PERSONNEL SELECTION
To be employed by our agency, a candidate must meet the minimum requirements set forth by the Idaho
Peace Officers Standards & Training Council and successfully complete:

e An employment application

e A background questionnaire

e A background investigation including, but not limited to:
o local, state and national criminal history check

59
Copyright © 2025 Law En@{cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

o search of the Idaho Court Repository for current or other legal actions
o interviews with past employers, peers, and references likely to disclose concerns over
criminal, moral or ethical behaviors

While not mandatory for all positions, a polygraph, drug screen, medical and/or a psychological exam may
be required for some candidates depending on the position for which they apply.

Polygraph
When required for employment, candidates will be given a polygraph examination by a person who is
trained in all aspects of polygraph operation and evaluation of the results. We may contract with a
certified polygraph examiner for pre-employment screening if an internal examiner is not available.

Drug screening
When required for employment, candidates will need to pass a drug screen through a certified lab. Any
positive result for illegal controlled substances or prescription medications without a prescription will
disqualify candidates from being hired.

Medical and psychological exams
When required for employment, candidates will be given one or more examinations by licensed medical
and mental health providers to certify their general health, emotional stability and psychological fitness.
These exams will be conducted and evaluated by qualified professionals using procedures that are valid,
useful and nondiscriminatory, and may only be administered after the conditional offer of employment.

TRAINING

New sworn employees must successfully complete training and orientation established by the Idaho’s
Peace Officer Standards & Training (POST) Council. Your training may include, but is not limited to, POST’s
basic academy, an on-the-job training program, courses on high-risk subjects and situations, training and
qualification on all duty weapons, and other general and job-specific training as mandated.

We will provide opportunities for career development to all employees through advanced, specialized and
in-service training. You should help identify your training needs, submit training requests and ensure that
your training officer receives verification of completed training.

In-service training requirements for retaining basic peace officer certification includes a minimum of forty
(40) hours of continuing law enforcement training as directed by the POST Council every two (2) calendar
years beginning January 1 following the date the officer was certified. This training must include a
combined minimum twenty-four (24) hours of continuing law enforcement training in the following topics:

a. Firearms: Eight (8) hours and an annual proficiency test (qualification);
b. Arrest Techniques/Defensive Tactics (ARCON): Eight (8) hours;
c. Emergency Vehicle Operation: Four (4) hours;

d. Legal Update(s): Four (4) hours.

(Idaho Peace Officer Standards and Training Council, Idaho administrative rule 11.11.01.130-134)

It is your responsibility to check your training records and ensure they remain in compliance with the
minimum number of hours required by POST.

60
Copyright © 2025 Law En@zcement Policy Center, LLC


https://adminrules.idaho.gov/rules/current/11/111101.pdf

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

For all employees, unsatisfactory performance or failure to meet the minimum standards of the job may
lead to termination.

Agency Vehicles
June 2019

Agency-owned vehicles are for official use only. Officers driving a vehicle on agency business have a
responsibility to not only protect themselves when on the road, but to also do their best to protect those
around them. As an agency driver, you are required to:

e Follow all vehicle safety regulations and applicable driving laws;

e Inspect the vehicle for damage, contraband and proper functioning before loading passengers;

e Wear a vehicle-equipped safety belt/restraining device at all times except in circumstances in
which the use of seat belts may hamper your safety or efficient performance;

e Ensure all passengers, including arrestees, are wearing seat belts or are secured by other
appropriate vehicle restraint devices; and

e Immediately report a suspension or revocation of your driver’s license to your supervisor and
discontinue driving for agency business.

Itis your responsibly to help ensure that vehicles are kept in a safe, serviceable and clean condition. Report
any accidents, mechanical issues or other concerns to your supervisor immediately.

VEHICLE COLLISION
If you are involved in a collision in an agency-owned vehicle, immediately notify dispatch. Notify your
supervisor as soon as possible so they can assess the situation.

Whenever practical, a collision involving an agency-owned vehicle should be investigated by an outside
agency. An outside agency must be called to investigate any collision involving death, injury, complaint of
injury or excessive property damage.

Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
January 2016

EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER

This agency is an equal opportunity employer. No employee or applicant for employment shall be
subjected to discrimination because of race, color, sex, national origin, religion, disability, age, engaging
in anti-discrimination activities, protected genetic information, sexual orientation, gender identity,
veteran’s status, parental status or any other applicable legally protected status.

NON-DISCRIMINATION

It is our agency's intent to provide a work environment free from all forms of illegal discrimination,
harassment and retaliation. You are expected to adhere to agency values and treat coworkers and others
whom you come into contact with respectfully while representing the agency. You are expected to
conduct yourself in a manner that complies with this policy and demonstrates respect for the diversity of
the agency's workforce and the community we serve.

61
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Discrimination and harassment can be difficult to identify and can occur in many forms. They may be
intentional or unintentional, overt or covert, or the result of acting or choosing not to act. No single
definition of discrimination or harassment can address every situation which may confront employees of
this agency. We will respond to all complaints with prompt, fair and appropriate action. Violations of this
policy will be addressed through appropriate fact-finding and disciplinary measures up to and including
termination.

SEXUAL HARASSMENT
Sexual harassment may involve unwelcome sexual advances, requests for sexual favors or other verbal or
physical conduct of a sexual nature that are exhibited in one of the following prohibited ways:

e Making, or implying that employment decisions, such as evaluations, job opportunities, etc., will
be made, based on the person’s willingness or unwillingness to agree to or condone the sexually
related activity; or

e Harassing behavior that interferes with an employee’s ability to effectively perform his/her job,
or creates an intimidating, hostile, or offensive environment.

Although sexual harassment typically involves a person in a position of greater authority as the harasser,
individuals of lesser or equal authority may also be involved. Sexual harassment may include, but is not
limited, to the following behaviors:

e Sexual or racial comments, jokes, stories or innuendoes;

e Gossip, comments or questions about someone's sexual conduct or orientation;

e Unwelcome or unwanted personal touching and suggestive gestures;

e Displaying or circulating sexually suggestive or racially directed materials or visual aids;

e Repeated unwelcome flirtations, repeated unwelcome requests for dates including pressure for
sexual activity;

o Implied or expressed promise of rewards or preferential treatment in exchange for sexual activity;
or

e Implied or expressed threats of punishment for refusing sexual activity.

Duty to report
Victims: If you are the victim of offensive behavior in the workplace, you should tell the offending
coworker that his/her behavior is offensive and must stop. If you are uncomfortable raising an objection
directly with this person, or are not satisfied with his/her response, you should report the behavior to
your supervisor as soon as possible. If the harasser is in your chain of command, or other reasons exist
that would make reporting to your immediate supervisor impracticable or uncomfortable, reports may be
made directly to the agency head or the appropriate person within your city or county.

Witnesses: If you witness or receive a credible report of any behavior that could reasonably be viewed as
violating this policy, you must report the incident within forty-eight (48) hours to your supervisor, agency
head or human resources department.

Supervisors: Supervisors are required to immediately report any behavior they witness, or any behavior
that is reported to them, if it could reasonably be viewed as violating this policy. A supervisor may not
keep complaints of this nature confidential. The report must be submitted to the agency head.

62
Copyright © 2025 Law En@ﬁcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

NON-RETALIATION

You may not retaliate in any way against any person because he/she complained about discrimination or
harassment, filed a charge of discrimination or harassment, or participated in an investigation or lawsuit.
Any allegation of retaliation will be addressed through appropriate fact-finding and disciplinary measures
up to and including termination.

WORKPLACE RELATIONSHIPS

Romantic relationships between co-workers are generally discouraged because of the potential disruptive
effect on the operations of our agency. If two employees in a supervisor/subordinate role become
involved in a romantic relationship, they must report this relationship to their agency head immediately.
The employee in the supervisory role must propose a workable plan to avoid the potential conflict of
interest resulting from the relationship. If a workable solution cannot be arranged, the relationship may
be prohibited by the agency head.

Overtime and Compensation

January 2016

It is our policy to manage overtime expenditures in a fiscally responsible manner and to minimize the use
of overtime while also providing exemplary public service.

The federal overtime provisions of the Fair Labor Standards Act (FLSA) apply to all employees. Non-exempt
employees will receive overtime pay or compensatory leave for hours worked over the amount set for
their workweek at a rate not less than time and one-half the employee’s rate of pay.

Supervisors should minimize the need for overtime and should authorize excess work hours only to meet
vital service needs. All overtime work should be approved in advance unless exigent circumstances
necessitate work in excess of your normal shift. Notify your supervisor of any unapproved overtime as
soon as possible.

COMPENSATORY TIME

If allowed for our agency, you may receive compensatory time off in lieu of cash overtime compensation
at the rate of one and a half (1.5) hours for every one (1) hour of overtime worked. We may limit the total
number of compensatory hours you may accrue; however, the total hours accrued may never exceed the
federal limit of 480 hours for sworn personnel and 240 hours for non-sworn. You are permitted to use
compensatory time for any approved days off. At separation, compensatory time balances will be paid
out at the employee’s current hourly rate of pay and will be subject to the standard required deductions.

WORK HOUR LIMITATIONS

You are not permitted to work more than 16 consecutive hours and you must take at least 8 hours of rest
before you report for your next shift. Any exceptions must be approved by the agency head or their
designee.

63
Copyright © 2025 Law En%cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Secondary Employment

January 2016

We consider this agency to be your primary employer. To ensure your ability to perform your duties
effectively and efficiently, and to avoid actual or perceived conflicts of interest or professional standards,
the agency head shall have sole discretion in approving or denying your request for secondary
employment.

Any participation in off-duty or secondary employment requires written authorization of the agency head.
We reserve the right to deny any secondary employment or volunteer request that may reflect
unfavorably on the agency. Examples include but are not limited to work that:

e is a conflict of interest with official duties such as a bar or tavern bouncer, bond recovery agent,
towing company, process server, private investigator and some private security positions;

e may bring your character into question such as businesses that are known to be involved in
criminal activity or have associations with criminal gangs;

e s likely to cause sleep deprivation, lack of attentiveness or otherwise impact your on-duty
performance; or

e requires special scheduling consideration of your regular duty hours.

While engaged in off-duty secondary employment, you are not an employee of this agency but rather an
employee under the direction and control of your off-duty secondary employer. However, you shall act in
a professional manner and avoid doing tasks that would detract from the professional image of our
agency. Your uniform, badge, vehicle or equipment may not be utilized unless specifically approved by
the agency head. Additionally, you are not covered under this agency’s workers’ compensation and
liability insurance while performing the duties of your secondary employment.

Workers’ Compensation

January 2016

Workers' compensation coverage is provided for any employee who suffers from a work-related injury or
illness. Benefits under workers' compensation are set by Idaho law and are administered by the Idaho
Industrial Commission. Coverage begins the first day of employment.

EMPLOYEE REPORTING

In order to have your workers’ compensation claims properly processed and to ensure coverage, you must
immediately notify your supervisor of any on the job injury and obtain a workers’ compensation incident
report form. You should seek immediate medical attention when necessary and complete and submit your
incident report form to the appropriate person within twenty-four (24) hours.

SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES

Supervisors shall refer their employees to immediate medical attention when necessary and make sure
the workers’ compensation incident report form is completed and submitted within twenty-four (24)
hours. If the employee is unable to complete the worker’s compensation report, the supervisor shall
complete it to the best of their ability. When an employee misses work due to injury, make sure the
employee has a proper medical release before returning to work.

64
Copyright © 2025 Law En@@cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Fitness for Duty

January 2016

You are responsible for ensuring you are physically, mentally, and emotionally able to perform the
essential functions of your job when reporting for duty. Your safety and that of your co-workers and the
public, depends upon you being able to perform all the required tasks without limitation. If, at any time,
you fail to meet this requirement, a supervisor must be immediately notified. The supervisor is required
to promptly take steps to resolve the matter.

RETURN TO WORK

Upon returning from more than three consecutive days of leave for illness or injury, or a light duty
assignment, you must provide a note from your physician certifying that the condition causing the
interruption in work has resolved to the point where you are once again fit for duty.

FITNESS FOR DUTY EXAMINATIONS

If there is reason to suspect you may not be physically or mentally capable of performing the essential
functions of your position, the agency head can order you to undergo a fitness for duty examination at
the agency’s expense. The fitness for duty examination shall be performed by a licensed medical/mental
health provider qualified to determine your fitness for duty related to the suspected deficiencies in
question.

The medical/mental health practitioner shall be provided with your job description, an explanation of the
concerns giving rise to the examination, and any other information necessary to make an informed
determination of fitness for duty. You must cooperate with the examination and provide any information
required by the health care professional conducting the examination. Only upon being declared fit for
duty may you return to work.

PHYSICAL FITNESS STANDARDS

You are responsible for maintaining a level of physical fitness that allows you to perform the essential
functions of your job. If you cannot meet the essential physical functions of your job, you may be
terminated.

Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco Use
January 2016

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL

It is our goal to maintain a drug and alcohol-free work environment. You shall not report for duty with
residual blood alcohol from recreational alcohol beverage consumption nor with a blood alcohol content
from medication of more than .02 BAC. You shall not consume alcohol on duty, except as part of a special
assignment. You shall not unlawfully use drugs at any time.

If your supervisor has reasonable suspicion or cause to suspect that you are under the influence of drugs
or alcohol, you are required to submit to chemical testing for drugs and/or alcohol possibly including
blood, breath or urine tests. Random drug and alcohol tests may also be administered at any time.
Refusing to comply will result in disciplinary action.

65
Copyright © 2025 Law En%)fcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

You may be terminated if you become addicted to alcohol or drugs; however, if you voluntarily report
your addiction to the agency head before it affects your work performance you may be given an
opportunity to overcome your addiction. If successful, you will be allowed to return to full duty status
upon the recommendation of a medical professional.

TOBACCO

Smoking within 25-ft of our law enforcement facilities is prohibited. Furthermore, smoking is prohibited
in any agency-owned vehicle, unless authorized by the agency head. You shall comply with designated no
smoking areas on our law enforcement campus and where otherwise designated.

Although the use of tobacco while in uniform or on duty is not strictly prohibited, you are strongly
discouraged from using tobacco of any kind when dealing with the public. This includes spitting and
chewing tobacco in public view and holding a cigarette, cigar or pipe in your mouth while talking to or
being addressed by any member of the public.

Infectious Disease Exposure

January 2016

Law enforcement members have a higher risk for exposure to HBV, HIV and other blood borne infections
as compared to the general population. Any potential on-duty exposure to an infectious disease is serious
and should be treated accordingly. You are responsible for immediately reporting any potential exposure
to a supervisor.

PROCEDURE AFTER AN EXPOSURE
If the body fluid of another comes in contact with your eyes, mouth, an open wound, or otherwise has
direct exposure to your body through a puncture, you should:

a) Immediately initiate self-cleansing of the exposed area.

b) Immediately initiate self-treatment for a needle stick, puncture wound, or laceration, including
cleaning with an alcohol wipe or antibacterial ointment and “milking” the wound immediately by
drawing out the fluid.

c) Inthe case of body fluids splashed or propelled into your face, immediately wash your face, hands,
and any affected skin with warm, soapy water, blow your nose, and repeatedly rinse your mouth
with water or antiseptic mouthwash and spit.

You shall contact your immediate supervisor as soon as practical. Your supervisor shall ensure that you
go to the closest emergency room for evaluation and treatment as soon as possible. In the case of a
potential exposure with blood borne pathogens, you should be treated within two hours of exposure
following CDC guidelines.

WORKERS' COMPENSATION

A potential infectious disease exposure should be treated as a workplace injury. All workers'
compensation paperwork must be filled out completely and in a timely manner. Follow up appointments
should be attended, and any recommendations of the treating physician or medical staff should be
followed.

66
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

TESTING OF THE SOURCE OF THE EXPOSURE

If the source of exposure agrees to voluntarily submit to a medical evaluation or HIV/HBV antibody testing,
the results of the testing will be sent to the exposed employee’s treating physician. If the source of the
exposure does not consent and was charged with a crime regarding the incident in which the body fluid
was likely transmitted, the jail should be notified of this fact and testing of the source pursuant Idaho
Code 39-604 should occur. If the source of the exposure does not consent and was not charged with a
crime related to the exposure, the prosecuting attorney should be asked to obtain a warrant to compel
the source to submit to testing.

67
Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat/Title39/T39CH6/SECT39-604/

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

POLICY CHANGE RECORD

JULY 2025

NEW

Automated License Plate Readers

UPDATED

Policing Procedures, Search and Seizure, Miranda (updated Vehicle inventory section to provide clarification of
when NOT to tow/impound a vehicle based on recent court rulings)

AMBER Alert Activation (rewritten to address latest procedures - AMBER Alert activation and notification is now
automated through NCIC and OpenFox messenger system)

Use of Artificial Intelligence (rewritten to recognize that Al systems are increasingly prevalent in all technology,
not just as large language models)

JULY 2024

NEW
Reserve Officers

Use of Artificial Intelligence

UPDATED

Off-Duty Law Enforcement Action (updated and moved section on reserve officer authority to the new Reserve
Officers policy)

Missing/Abducted Children, Amber Alert Activation Checklist (removed link to the Amber portal activation form)

Idaho Code links updated to new website at https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat

JULY 2023

NEW

Suicidal People
Impact Weapons, Use of Force and Weapons
UPDATED

Dangerous or injured animals, Use of Force and Weapons (updated the definition of dangerous, provided an
exception for protected species)

Being Recorded by Others, Audio and Video Recordings (provided additional guidance on interactions with
individuals recording your actions)

JULY 2022

NEW

Opioid Overdose

68
Copyright © 2025 Law En%cement Policy Center, LLC


https://legislature.idaho.gov/statutesrules/idstat

IDAHO POLICING POLICY

UPDATED

Training and Selection (updated the order of the Training subsection and added a paragraph with POST’s in-

service training requirements for retaining basic certification)

AUGUST 2021

UPDATED

Release of Juveniles (added statement that status offenders may not be placed in jail or detention unless a runaway

from another state)

JULY 2021

UPDATED

Policy Manual (clarified that this manual is deigned to be used alongside agency procedural manual and with
support from ongoing in-service training and POST courses)

Emergency Driving and Pursuits (added more detailed language for considering when a pursuit should be
terminated including losing sight of the suspect, unsafe vehicle and environmental conditions)

JUNE 2020

UPDATED

Minor edits to improve clarity were made to the following sections: Personal Conduct —On or Off Duty, Interference
with Prosecution; Search and Seizure, Miranda; Arrest and Custody; Juvenile Procedures; ILETS; and Confidential
Informants.

Use of Force and Weapons
e Replaced “avoidance and de-escalation” with the contemporary words "time, distance and communication"

e Clarified that displaying or drawing a weapon requires reasonable cause
o Defined imminent threat

e Provided additional emphasis re: not to shoot at or from a moving vehicle
e Change name of conducted energy “device” to “weapon”

e Clarified language re: stop use of chemical weapons if not effective

Hate Crimes (added “national origin”)

Sexual Assault Kits (added recommendation to consult with your prosecutor to ensure compliance with state law)

Photo Line-ups (added statement to contact your supervisor or prosecutor before administering a photo line-up)

JUNE 2019
NEW
Administrative Investigations Agency Vehicles
Canine Units Citizen Complaints
Carotid or Lateral Vascular Neck Restraint, Use of Force and Weapons Sexual Assault Kits
UPDATED

Release of Information, Personal Conduct — On or Off Duty (restated as Personal Use of Information to clarify

meaning)

69
Copyright © 2025 Law En@{cement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Misdemeanor offenses, Warrantless Arrests and Arrest, Domestic Violence Response (revised to meet the June
16" Idaho Supreme Court opinion in State v. Clark)

JULY 2017

NEW
Law Enforcement Code of Ethics (Idaho POST)

Reserve Officer Authority, Off-Duty Law Enforcement Action (clarified that reserve officers do not retain their
authority off duty and should not engage in off-duty law enforcement action)

Arrest and Custody (combined Arrest Warrants and Citizen’s Arrest sections with new content on warrantless
arrests, out-of-state warrants, transporting arrestees and protective custody)

ILETS — Idaho Public Safety and Security Information System

Civil Standby Hate Crimes
Audio and Video Recordings Confidential Informants
UPDATED

Revisions include minor edits throughout to improve clarity and reorganization of Administration policies for
agencies who already have these polices through other sources.

Policy Manual (included how to implement policy changes and defined controlling terms)

Insubordination, Personal Conduct — Duty Related (noted officers are expected to treat ranking officers with
respect and refrain from insubordination)

Domestic Violence and Other Criminal Charges (defined domestic violence)

Use of Force and Weapons (added sections on special considerations for firearms, conducted energy devices, less
lethal chemical agents and medical care)

Restraints (reporting moved to its own section)

Emergency and Pursuit Driving (defined appropriate emergency driving behaviors and use of a road block)

Juvenile Procedures (expanded section on the decision to release or detain a juvenile)

Domestic Violence Response (defined domestic violence)

Evidence and Property (defined property disposal guidelines)

REMOVED
Breaks, Competency as a Law Enforcement Officer

Risk Management, Officer-Involved Critical Incidents

JANUARY 2016

Initial Publication

70
Copyright © 2025 Law En@zcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

INDEX

Abuse of POSItioN ......ccoeciiiiiieiiceee e
Administrative investigation
Critical incident .......cceeceveee i
AdUIt ADUSE ..eeeeeiieecee e
Aircraft crashes ......occovveecieee i 42
ALPR
A 1T o RPN 54
Automated License Plate Reader...................... 53
Documentation...........euveveveieieieinieieieiea, 54
AMBER Gl€rt..ciceieeeciiee e 36
Animals, dangerous or injured...........ccecveeeriiveeennns 14
Arrest
Transporting arrestees
Warrantless..........cceeuuue.
With a warrant...............
Artificial Intelligence ....coovvveviviieeieee e
Balil ceeeeeiieee e e

[27eTo LV -1 01/ o T (RN 4
Body cavity search .......ccccceeceei e,
BOMD reSPONSE .covvvieeieiiie et

CaNINE UNIES ..eveiiiiiiieiiiiieee e
ApPPrehension .........cceeceerieerieenieeeiee e
Certification ......ccccveeeeciee e
Training aids...................

Veterinary care
Carotid restraint......cccceveceeereriiee e,
Chemical agents.......cceveievieriiiiieec e,
Child abdUuCtion .....ccvviiviiieeeiie e,
Citizen complaints.......cccoeveeiiiinieniieeeceeeee,
Citizen’s arrest ...oceecveee i
Civil standby.......eeeeiiiieiee e,
Code of ethics .....ccevivieeeciiie e, 1
Competency

GENETAl ceviieiiieeeee e

Performance..................
Conduct.....ccceevvveeencieeeiiienn,

Conduct unbecoming............

Conducted energy device

Confidential informants........ccccceeeveeeiiieeeeciiee e,
Payment.......uuuiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiii
Prohibited associations.......cccceccvevevieeeinciieennnns 57

CONGregatioNns .....ccovveeeeeiiire it 5

Consular notification.......cccceeeeeciiiieeeee e, 37

Court attendance ......ccuveeeeeieeciieeee e 3

Criminal charges, employee.........ccccceeeecviveeccieeeennen. 9

Critical incident
Administrative investigation...........ccccccvveenneen. 28

Criminal investigation ..........ccccceeeeieiiiiiieeeee e, 27

Officer-involved .....

On scene actions

Post-incident sUPPOrt .......ccceeeecveeercieeeeiee s 28
Custody SEArch.....ccccvieiiiee e e 21
DetoX hold......ccceviiieriiiiiiinec e 24
Diplomatic immunity ........cccccoviieeieeiiiiiiieeee e 37
Domestic violence

Criminal charges, employee.......cccccoecveeiniieeenns 9

RESPONSE 1O .uvvvvvervieiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiieeee 30

Victim SUPPOIt cooeveieiiiiicicrececcnereececrecceeeeeeeeeeeeeee 30
Drug labs ....ccoceeeeeeiieeee e 38
Drugs

Random testing.......ccceevueerieeniieeiiiieniee e

Reasonable suspicion testing...

Use of medications ......cccocuvevevcieiiiiieeenniiee e,
Emergency driving .......ccocceeveiiieenieenieeniec e
ENdOrsements .....cocuveeieiiiieeiiee et
Equipment, agency-oWned .........cceeeeevveeeeiveeeeiveeenn, 4
EtRICS cuveeevee ittt 1
Evidence and property

BOOKING ..ttt 45

DiSPOSITION ...eeeiiiiiiiiiieei e 46

Property control.........ccecceevvieniiiiiienicieeeeee 45
EXPIOSIVES...ccceeieeeciiiee ettt et
Field show-up
FIr€arms . ..o e

Accidental discharge........ccccecceerieeeieenieeenennne 14

Carrying off duty ...cooveeeiiiiieeiee e, 14

Personally owned ......ccccccoovveeriiiiiieniecnieeeeene 14
Fitness for duty

Physical fitness standards........c.ccccceveeeviveeennns 65
Frisk/pat dOWN ......cveeeveiiieeeiec e
Garrity warning
Hate Crimes ..o
Hazardous materials
ILETS oo

Information sharing

Inquiry and entry ........cccuvveeee.

IMPACt WEAPONS..cceieie e
Influence, Use Of ....uvveeiiiiiiiiieie s 6
Information

Personal use Of .......cccceviiiiiiiniiiii e, 7

Release Of .....coovviiiiiniiiiiiieeeee e 10
INSUbOrdination........cooveiiiiiriiieieecee e 5
Internet, personal USe.......ccoccueevveeceieiieenie e 8
Juveniles

Detention of .....ccceviiiiiiiiiie e 29

Petition ....coooviieeee e 30

Copyright © 2025 Law En@gcement Policy Center, LLC



IDAHO POLICING POLICY

Procedures.......ccoeeeieeieeiiiiieee s 29
(= oo T o= ot 1Y/ [T 6
Lateral vascular neck restraint

LNVR Lottt s 16
Less-lethal projectiles ......cccccovveivieeeeciiieeeeee e, 15
Mental hold........cooiiiiiie e 24
Miranda Warning........cccceeeeeeciiiieeee e 22
Missing person

AdUIt oo 33

Child .o 35
NAlIOXONE ..eeiiiieeee ettt e 43
NalOXONE KitS ..vveeeeiiieeeiiee et 44
NARCAN ..o, 43
Neighborhood disputes .........cccovvveiiiviiiiiniiiereiieen, 8
Non-biased policing ......ccccevvevieiiiciieeiriec e, 11
O ] TSR 15
(0] %o [T1 4 V- Yot o] o TS 10

Reserve officer......ccuiiiiiiiiccee e 42
Opioid OVErdOSE .....evvveeirieeeciiee et 43
Pepper sSpray oo, 15
Photo liN€-Up .cc.eevriiiiiiiieeec e 52
Political aCtivity ......ccceveeriiiieieiiiieeeeeeeeeeeeee 7
L2 ) ISR 60
Property

SEIZEA. it 22
Prosecution, interference With........cccecovvvveevieiiiinnnnes 6
Protective custody .......cccceeeecieeeiiiiee e, 23
PUDIIC MONIES...eeiiiiiieieiec e 4
Pursuit

Decision tO PUrSUE .......ccoocvieiiiiiieiieeeeeee e 25
[ 0<Tolo ] e [TV RSN 7

Documentation...........ueeeeeveieieiiieriieiien, 49

StOrABE i iiiiiiiiieiec 49

When to record.......eeeecveeeecciieeeciee e 48
ReCOrdS, @8ENCY ..couveerueieiieeiiienieeiee e 4,10
Relationships

ON-AULY ettt 5

Prohibited associations.......cccccceevviieeeinciveecnneen. 8
Requirement to provide name........cccccoveeeecveeeecnneennn. 3
Reserve officers......cooouiiiiciieii e, 41
Restraints

AUthOrized USe.....ccvvevieiiie e, 17

Carotid c..uveeeeviee e e 16

LNVR e 16

REPOIEING ...vvieiiiiieieee e 18

Special considerations ........cccccceeecveeeecieee e, 18
Safety vests, reflective .......cccoecveveecceee e, 4

72

Search and seizure

Abandonment of property......cccccceveeecveeenenen. 19
Consent SEArch ...ocuvvvveevieeniecieeseee e 19
Exigent circumstances ........ccccuvevvveeeieinineninnnnnn. 19
HOL PUrSUIt...cvviiiiiiiiiiiiii e 19
InCident to arrest ....occeeeeviieeeeniee e 19
PlaiN-VIEW.....viiiiiiii it 19
Vehicle exception.......cccccceeeeeeiciiieeeeceeeccieeeene. 19
Vehicle inventory .......cocccceeeeeecciieeeee e, 20
Without @ warrant ......ccceeveeeveeiieenieeneeeeeee 18
SEAtDEILS e 4
Sexual assault Kit......ccevvveerieenieeniee e 46
Signs of an OVerdose .......coceevieeeiieeinieeneeeieeeeee 43
Sleeping oN dULY ...coovcveieiriieeeiee e, 5
SMOKING oottt 66
Strip search
=Y [« OO USRI 21
JAHl e 21
Transgender detain€e.......ccceeeceveeeecveeeecciieeeenns 21
Suicidal SUBJECT ....evveiiiieee e 44
TrAINING cevveeiiieeee e 60
Reserve officer......cciiiiiiiiiicciee e 41
Use of force
DefinitioN ....cooeevvveieei e 12,17
Duty to intercede......coccevcveeeeiceie e eciee s 13
Medical Care ....covcvevvvieereeieesee e 16
NON-StaNdard.......cccoceereeeriieeniiee e 16
Reasonableness .......ccccvvveieeieiiie e 12
REPOITING .ceeeeeeiiieeeee e 17,18
REVIEW .eeiiiiiiiiieeee et 17
TrAINING ceveieiiiiiiiiiiieeeeeee e e e reeeeees 16
Vehicle inventory search.........cccceeviieeiiieeecciiee e, 20
Vehicles
AZENCY-OWNEd ...cccuviieeeiieie e e 61
(00|11 o] o FON PPN 61
Vulnerable adult ......ccvviiviieeiiiieeec e 32
Warrant
OUt Of STAtE.c.eveeeeiiee e 23
Place Of SEIVICE .cccuvvvveirieiiieeeiec e 23
Time of day ..veeeeceee e 23
Weapons
Chemical agents.......cccceevviereeeiiienieesieeseeeee, 15
Conducted energy device ......cccceeveeenerenvennnen. 14
FIr€arms ...coooe vt 13
IMpact Weapons.......cooveveviieiiiiiiiiiiiiecee 15
Safety and storage .....ccccceeeevcveeecciee e e, 13

Copyright © 2025 Law En@ﬁcement Policy Center, LLC



LAW ENFORCEMENT

POLICY CENTER Lic




[Page Intentionally Left Blank]

96



@t—w\est

MEMORANDUM

Date: August 19, 2025

To: Bellevue City Council

From: Andrew Kimmel, PE

Subject: Wastewater Treatment MBR Project Status

Purpose of Memorandum

To keep a list of the completed work at the wastewater treatment facility.

Provide concise information that may be used to inform the city leadership, community,
and stakeholders of the efforts that have been made since the last project update.

Resolve questions concerning the timeline, project costs, and potential concerns with
completing the repairs with the initial project timeline.

The updated information is based on discussions with the City’s public works director, and their
contract wastewater operator. There was no site visit by the engineering team during the past
two weeks.

Project Activities Completed

The following is a detailed description of the activities that have been completed since August 5,
2025, progress update.

Work Item 7 — With the flowmeter for the WAS system being installed the crew was able
to assess the WAS pump #1 to verify proper operating conditions. WAS pump #2 may
be rotating in reverse, the electrician has been notified and will verify wiring when onsite.
There was a concern that both pumps may have been damaged. After cleaning and
testing WAS pump #1 is operational and has been put back into service.

Item 8 — The lines for the citric acid have been replaced inside the control room.
Installed new chlorine and acid dosage lines from the control room to the MBR skid. This
work could not be completed, due to needing more hose.

o The hose will be ordered so this portion of the project can be completed.

Work Item 12 — The aeration Basins for train 1 and 2 have been cycled enough that the
aeration equipment could be assessed and verified for operational order. See Iltem #16
for repairs needed.

Work Item 14 —The Public Works Department was able to get the WAS haul truck back
into operation during the last update cycle. A total of 19 loads of material (sludge and
water) has been removed from the WAS tank and hauled to Ohio Gulch. There are still

97



solids built up below the aerators that need to be removed so we don’t introduce septic
waste into the new biology when we restart the plant.

Work Item 15a — We are still waiting on 2 of the KT 30 air valves. They have been
ordered; we do not have a shipment/ delivery date at this time. This does not have an
impact on the schedule currently.

Work Item 16: Continued working on cycling water through the aeration trains to get the
remaining sludge pumped out. At this point, the sludge has been reduced to below the
aerators in train #1 and #2. The crew was able to verify that all aerators in train #1 Basin
#2 are operational. Half of the aerators in train #2, basin #1 are operational however
some of the aerators in basin #1 do not function currently. The crews will inspect the
valves and piping to see if a piece of equipment can be identified that is preventing full
aeration.

o Aeration train #1 basin #1 cannot be evaluated at this time. One of the actuators
on the valves does not have power.

o Aeration train #2 basin #1 half of the aerators do not work. One of the actuators
on the valves does not have power.

Schedule adjustments/critical path items

Work Item 18 — ACS is scheduled to have the SCADA system fully operational by the
end of the month, this isa bout two later than anticipated, but was necessary due to
coordination between the electrical work and the control work.

Work Item 19 — Still on Schedule. The schedule for Veolia to be onsite and assist with
the cleaning and commissioning of the plant has been moved back to the original
scheduled timeline of the 2" week of September. This is due to the concern of not
having performed the initial testing and operation of the installed replacement parts.
Without moving the schedule back, the plant may not have been in a condition that was
needed to clean and operate the facility properly. This would have caused the need for a
second visit from Veolia which may have delayed the startup.

Project Concerns

The big push will be over the next two weeks, as the following items are needed to keep
things moving on schedule for the Veolia Membrane cleaning.

o -power and control for air valves to check aeration basins.
* |tem 10 and item 18
o -pipe and adapters from core and main to finish the dosing lines in the basement.
= Additional adapters and hoses have been ordered.
o -kt30s from Rocky Mountain on the MBR skid.
= Parts have been ordered.
o -time for Sludge loads to basins.
= The significant number of loads is slowing down progress. Going to see if
the Fire department can assist with hauling water to the basins and spray
down the sludge to break the solids apart.

98



Project Work Item Tracking

The following table presents the ongoing status of the known items that need repaired and their
anticipated completion dates. The dates are dependent on the equipment arriving when
scheduled, if any delays in delivery occur it could impact the schedule. The items marked in
green indicate completion.

# Work Item Anticipated Actual
Completion Completion
Date Date
1 Obtain and install air valves and actuators from Rocky August 3, 2025 August 2, 2025
Mountain Valves
2 Flow Meter Installation- PW Staff -RAS (3) July 20, 2025 July 20, 2025
3 Flow Meter Installation- PW Staff WAS (1) July 20, 2025 August 3, 2025
4 Flow Meter Installation- PW Staff Permeate (2) July 20, 2025 July 12, 2025
5 Flow Meter Installation- PW Staff High Pressure Reuse (2) | July 20, 2025 July 12, 2025
6 Flow Meter electrical control install — August 18, 2025
7 Analyze Vogelsang WAS pump (may need replaced). Sept 7, 2025 WAS pump is
Work includes dissembling and checking gear box, shafts, operational and in
and wiring- PW Staff use, August 10,
2025
8 Repair piping for acid and sodium hypochlorite throughout | August 31, 2025 | Ran out of hose
the facility- PW Staff cannot complete
at this time
August 17, 2025
9 New piping install- HDPE fusible pipe to be used for As time allows, 80% as of August
additional chemical lines or if replacement is needed. PW | and leaks are 3
Staff found
10 | Install Vega pressure switches- PW Staff August 20, 2025
11 | Vega pressure switches electrical connection and testing- | August 31, 2025
12 | Fill and clean aeration basins with clean water- PW Staff August 31, 2025 | Cycle 1: June 6-9

e This is an iterative process, must fill all basins and
flush old waste and debris out, then pump out
water.

e Began Process in May, and the cycle takes a
couple of weeks each time.

¢ Anticipate two more cycles before the aeration
basins are clean and ready for testing.

o Basin 1 and 2 Clean enough to verify

Cycle 2: June 27-
29

Cycle 3: July 10-
12

Cycle 4: July 18-
20

Cycle 5: August

99




aeration equipment (August 9-10)

2-3

Cycle 6: August
9-10

13 | Fill and Clean MBR basins with clean water- PW Staff August 31, 2025 | July 20, 2025
14 | Drain WAS and Flush water tanks PW Staff August 2, 2025 August 2, 2025
15 | Turn on the aeration system to assess aeration equipment | August 31, 2025 | August 2, 2025,
in Basins - PW Staff testing
August 10, 2025,
testing
15a | New ltem* Actuators for equipment within the MBR Basins | August 31, 2025
(KT-10 and 2-KT 30)
15b | New ltem* Test all aeration blowers and verify they are August 17, 2025 | August 10, 2025
operational
16 | Drain Aeration Basins (As needed) to repair damaged August 31, 2025
aerators - PW Staff
17 | Repair damaged Aerators and diffusers (4-week delivery Sept 25, 2025
schedule) PW Staff
18 | SCADA system replacement Need a system to take over August 31, 2025
the plant control, current system is no longer serviceable —
Advanced Control Systems
19 | Membrane Cleaning — Schedule 1 week for training and Scheduled for the
cleaning with Veolia - PW Staff last 2 weeks of
. . September, may
$18,000 plus cost for Veolia support of chemicals need to 1 week
for
commissioning to
Oct 1.
20 | Order chemicals for Membrane cleaning (Sodium Completed, and
Hypochlorite, Citric Acid) - PW Staff onsite
21 | Verify whether the current SCADA can turn on the Plant Sept 7, 2025
so backflushing of membranes is possible - Advanced
Control Systems
22 | Electrical system test- verify what turns on within the plant | Sept 19, 2025
(use clean water only)- Dusty’s Electric PW Staff
23 | Verify if SCADA system is fully operational - Advanced Sept 19, 2025
Control Systems
24 | Plant Walk through with DEQ- PW Staff May 2025 See Letters from

DEQ

100




25 | Plant Start-up (Coordinate with Veolia and DEQ on Oct. 1, 2025
seeding the biology of the plant) PW Staff
26 | Commissioning the plant for full operation- PW Staff Nov. 1, 2025

101




[Page Intentionally Left Blank]

102



CITY OF Bellevue
115 Pine ST. Bellevue, ID 83313

STATE OF IDAHO )
)
SS.
COUNTY OF BLAINE )
)
“1 5’14 anu ¥ I N atin do solemnly swear (or

affirm) that I will suf)port the Constitution of the United States of
America, and the Constitution and Laws of the State of Idaho, and the
laws and ordinances of the City of Bellevue and the Rules and
Regulations of the Bellevue Marshal’s Office and that I will well and
faithfully discharge the duties of Police Officer, Bellevue Marshal’s
Office, to which I have been appointed to law and to the best of my
ability.”

._%/ e
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN TO ME THIS 4“ DAY OF éj 2 {49 . 2@.

Kiies  Cwesi=rn

NAME

/‘7,2 s /fé /
TITLE

103



[Page Intentionally Left Blank]

104



MEMORANDUM

TO: Mayor Giordani and Bellevue Common Council Members
FROM: Shelly Shoemaker, Treasurer

RE: Adoption of Annual Appropriations Ordinance and Resolution
DATE: August 25, 2025

The final step to formalize the budget is the adoption of the Annual Appropriations Ordinance, a Resolution
declaring the intent to collect foregone taxes and a resolution to collect the judgment levy previously paid by the
City.

Next Steps

1) Approve Ordinance 2025-12.

a. | move to waive the three readings of Ordinance 2025-12 and read by title only.
b. | move to approve Ordinance 2025-12.

2) Approve Resolutions, as follows:

a. | move to approve Resolution 25-21 declaring the intent to collect $8,863 in foregone
property taxes for fiscal year 2026 and declaring the purpose for which the foregone
taxes are being budgeted.

b. | move to approve Resolution 25-22 declaring the intent to collect $1,723.07, plus
interest of $403.23, which amounts were previously paid by the City of Bellevue for a
Judgment Levy, in the real property taxes for fiscal year 2026

Attachments:  Annual Appropriations Ordinance
Resolution regarding Foregone Taxes
Resolution regarding Judgment Levy

105



CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO
ORDINANCE NO. 25-12

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, ENTITLED THE ANNUAL
APPROPRIATION ORDINANCE FOR THE FISCAL YEAR 2026 BEGINNING ON OCTOBER 1, 2025,
APPROPRIATING FUNDS DEEMED NECESSARY TO DEFRAY ALL NECESSARY EXPENSES AND

LIABILITIES FOR THE ENSUING FISCAL YEAR, AUTHORIZING A LEVY OF SUFFICIENT TAX
UPON THE TAXABLE PROPERTY AND SPECIFYING THE OBJECTS AND PURPOSES FOR
WHICH SAID APPROPRIATION IS MADE, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

BE IT ORDAINED BY THE COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO:

SECTION 1. That the sum of $7,644,965 be appropriated to defray the necessary expenses and liabilities
for the City of Bellevue, Idaho, for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2025.

SECTION 2. That the objects and purposes for which said appropriation is made and the amount of each
object and purpose is as follows:

GENERAL FUND: $2,511,815
WATER FUND: $3,855,719
WASTEWATER FUND: $1,277,431
TOTAL CITY BUDGET: $7,644,965

SECTION 3. That a general tax levy on all taxable property within the City of Bellevue be levied in the
amount allowed by law for the general purposes for said City for the fiscal year 2026 beginning October
1, 2025.

SECTION 4. All ordinances and parts of ordinances in conflict with this ordinance are hereby repealed.
SECTION 5. This ordinance shall take effect and be in force upon its passage, approval, and publication
in one issue of the Idaho Mountain Express, a newspaper of general circulation in the City of Bellevue,

and the official newspaper of said City.

PASSED by the Common Council of the City of Bellevue, Idaho, and APPROVED by the Mayor of
Bellevue this 25th day of August, 2025.

Christina Giordani, Mayor
ATTEST:

Amy Phelps, City Clerk

FY 26 Appropriation Ordinance No. 2025-12
106



CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO
RESOLUTION NO. 25-21

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO, DECLARING THE
INTENT TO COLLECT $8,863 IN FOREGONE PROPERTY TAXES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026 AND
DECLARING THE PURPOSE FOR WHICH THE FOREGONE TAXES ARE BUDGETED.

WHEREAS, the City of Bellevue intends to include $8,863 of its accumulated balance of $12,891 in
Foregone taxes in its Fiscal Year 2026 budget as authorized by Idaho Code Section 63-802; and,

WHEREAS, the purpose for the levy of Foregone taxes is to fund maintenance and operations.

WHEREAS, the City provided notice of its intention to levy Foregone taxes by publishing a
notice in the Idaho Mountain Express August 13, 2025, and again on August 20, 2025; and

WHEREAS, The Common Council held a public hearing concerning its intention to collect
the Foregone taxes as contemplated by this Resolution on August 25, 2025, to receive public

comment on the proposal; and

WHEREAS, the published notice and public hearing satisfied the notice and hearing requirements
in Idaho Code Section 63-802.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by a majority vote taken by the Common Council of
the City of Bellevue, Idaho on August 25, 2025, that the above stated amount be included in the
property tax to be levied in Fiscal Year 2026.

APPROVED by the City Council on this 25" day of August 2025.

Christina Giordani, Mayor
ATTEST:

Amy Phelps, City Clerk

107



CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO
RESOLUTION NO. 25-22

RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO, DECLARING THE
INTENT TO COLLECT $1,723.07 PLUS INTEREST OF $403.21, WHICH AMOUNTS WERE
PREVIOUSLY PAID BY THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, FOR A JUDGMENT LEVY, IN THE REAL
PROPERTY TAXES FOR FISCAL YEAR 2026.

WHEREAS, the City of Bellevue intends to include $2,126.28 in its real property tax as authorized by the
Idaho State Tax Commission, and

WHEREAS, The Common Council adopted the City of Bellevue’s tentative Fiscal Year 2026
budget at its meeting on August 11, 2025, which included the Judgment Levy as contemplated by this

Resolution; and

WHEREAS, the City included $2,126.28 in the real property tax published in the Idaho Mountain
Express August 13, 2025, and again on August 20, 2025; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council held a public hearing to adopt the Annual Appropriation

Ordinance on August 25, 2025, to receive public comment on the budget; and

WHEREAS, the published notice and public hearing satisfied the notice and hearing requirements
in Idaho Code Section 63-802.

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by a majority vote taken by the Common Council of
the City of Bellevue, Idaho on August 25, 2025, that the above stated amount be included in the
property tax collected for Fiscal Year 2026.

APPROVED by the City Council on this 25" day of August 2025.

Christina Giordani, Mayor
ATTEST:

Amy Phelps, City Clerk

108



City of Bellevue
115 E Pine Street | PO Box 825
Bellevue, ID 83313
208-788-2128 Fax 208-788-2092
www.bellevueidaho.us

City of Bellevue
Regular Common Council Meeting
August 25, 2025

Public Works Request
Water Department

Item: Contracted Water Operator

Overview: Mr. Grey has been working under the BDE Professionals water
contract and has agreed to contract directly with the City of Bellevue as a Water
Distribution Operator.

Recommended Motion: | recommend to approve (or deny) authorizing the
Mayor to enter into a contract between the City of Bellevue and Gray Area
Consulting LLC. for Water Operator Services.

Chris Johnson
Public Works Director
cjohnson@bellevueidaho.us

109



CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO
RESOLUTION NO. 25-23

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, AUTHORIZING THE
MAYOR TO ENTER INTO A PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT WITH GRAY
AREA CONSULTING, LLC FOR WATER SYSTEM OPERATIONS SERVICES.

WHEREAS, the City of Bellevue (“City”) recognizes the need for professional operational
support, including responsible charge operator services, substitute responsible charge services,
and training for City staff to ensure continued safe and reliable operation of the City’s water
facilities; and

WHEREAS, Gray Area Consulting, LLC, represented by AJ Gray (“Operations Contractor”), is
qualified and available to provide professional services related to water system operations and
oversight; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council finds that entering into an agreement with Gray Area
Consulting, LLC for such services is in the best interest of the City and its residents;

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF THE
CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO:

Section 1. Approval of Agreement. The City of Bellevue hereby approves the Agreement for
Professional Operations Services between the City of Bellevue and Gray Area Consulting, LLC,
dated September 1, 2025, for water system operations services, with the terms and conditions as
set forth in said Agreement.

Section 2. Authorization. The Mayor of the City of Bellevue is hereby authorized to execute the
Agreement and any related documents necessary to carry out the intent of this Resolution on
behalf of the City.

Section 3. Effective Date. This Resolution shall be effective immediately upon its adoption and
approval.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the Mayor and City Council of the City of Bellevue, Idaho, on
this __ day of , 2025.

Christina Giordani, Mayor
ATTEST:

Amy Phelps, City Clerk

110



AGREEMENT FOR PROFESSIONAL OPERATIONS SERVICES
Water Operator

THIS AGREEMENT FOR OPERATIONS SERVICES (“Agreement”) is made as of
the September 01, 2025, by and between Gray Area Consulting LLC, an
Idaho corporation, (hereinafter “Operations Contractor”), and the City of
Bellevue, an Idaho Municipality, (hereinafter “Owner”).

1.0 RECITALS

1.1 Owner owns and operates a Class II Water system, and related
facilities The Owner will be responsible for daily and routine operation
and maintenance of the facilities.

1.2 The Operations Contractor provides professional service for the
responsible charge and substitute responsible charge operational
oversight of the Water System. The contract operator will provide
oversight and operational training for Owner’s personnel.

1.3 Owner desires to engage the Operations Contractor to provide
professional services as set forth in this Agreement, and the Operations
Contractor desires to provide such services for the consideration set forth
in this Agreement.

1.4 The Owner and Operations Contractor acknowledge that the hours
devoted to system operation will vary month by month over the year with
more effort required during start up and the first months of system
operation and less effort required as the City staff gains experience and
the system reaches operation equilibrium.

2.0 AGREEMENT: Now, therefore, for good and valuable consideration, the
receipt and sufficiency of which is acknowledged herein, the parties agree as
follows:

2.1 Scope of Services: The Operations Contractor shall provide services
for the management and operation of the Water System. In connection
with the foregoing, the Operations Contractor shall perform or provide
the following:

111



2.1.1 The City and Operations Contractor will jointly
determine the distribution of the man hours monthly or on a basis
which allows the City to track the hours .

2.1.2 Responsibilities include, but are not limited to:

2.1.2.1 Providing responsible charge and substitute
responsible charge operators for operational oversight of the
Water Facilities.

2.1.2.2 Operations Contractor agrees to notify Owner of
any hazards, non-compliance, safety, operations and other
issues they observe that need corrected in a timely manner.

2.1.2.3 Tasks also include:

2.1.2.3.1  Transfer of knowledge through training City
employees: Assist, mentor, and train Owner employees
or agents in common operations of the Owner’s Water
Facilities as required by federal or state law,
licensing, and regulatory practice.

2.1.2.3.2 Report and plan development.

2.1.2.3.3 Develop a Sampling and Monitoring Plan.
2.1.3 Provide inspections as needed to meet the state,
federal, and local requirements;

2.1.4 Maintain professional certifications necessary for the
facility to meet state, federal, and local requirements;

2.1.5 Perform any and all actions that the Operations
Contractor deems necessary to protect public health in any
situation as determined by the Operations Contractor to be an
emergency (“Emergency”).

112



2.1.6 Provide additional non-emergency services. Non-
emergency services are associated with the Water System not
otherwise specified above upon written request of the Owner and
agreed upon by the Operations Contractor, including without

limitation:

2.1.6.1

Corrective maintenance and or repairs for the

Water Facilities

2.1.6.2
2.1.6.3
2.1.6.4

2.1.6.6

Non-scheduled operations
Annual report generation
Regulatory documents

All additional services work to be done at an

hourly rate agreed upon by the parties in writing.

2.1.7 Specific Exclusions:

2.1.7.1
2.1.7.2
2.1.8.4.1.

2.1.8.5

Sampling costs and/or deliverables;
Power, chemicals and materials;
equipment and supplies; and

Emergency equipment and equipment necessary to

respond to an emergency.

2.2 Owner Obligations. Owner shall be responsible to do or provide the

following:

2.2.1 Payment of all “Facility Expenditures,” defined herein as

expenditures for:

2.2.1.1

System equipment and/or other items required for

the routine operation, maintenance, and repair

2.2.1.2

System utility costs

113



2.2.1.3 Facility regulatory laboratory expenses.

2.2.2 Provide Owner employees or agents to perform daily
and routine operational and maintenance duties and emergency
response as required by federal and state law, licensing, and
regulatory practice.

2.2.3 Payment for Services:

2.2.3.1 Types of Payment: The Owner shall pay
Operations Contractor the following compensation for the
services provided under this Agreement:

2.2.3.1.1 Systems Operations Fee: A monthly base
operational fee of $2000.00, will be distributed to the
above named Operations Contractor.

2.2.3.1.2 Standard services will be billed at a rate of
$45.00 per hour.

2.2.3.2 Direct Costs. Payment for the Operations
Contractor’s Direct Costs associated with services due to any
Emergency or Additional Services as defined in Section 1
above. As used herein, the term “Direct Costs” means the
actual cost incurred by the Operations Contractor to provide
services, supplies, or equipment relevant to the Emergency or
Additional Services, including without limitation expenditures
for chemicals, lab supplies, repairs, repair parts, maintenance
parts, safety supplies, equipment rental, quality assurance,
mileage, office supplies, telephone, postage and training
supplies

2.2.3.3 Time for Payment. Contract will be paid monthly,
due and payable on the first of each month for the previous
month’s services provided. All other compensation and/or
reimbursement to the Operations Contractor, including
without limitation any compensation for Direct Costs, shall be
invoiced monthly and payable within 30 days after receipt.

114



2.2.3.4 Owner’s Representation and Warranty Regarding
Payment. Owner represents and warrants that it shall timely
and properly assess, collect, and set aside sufficient funds to
make all payments hereunder as may be legally payable by it.
If Owner questions any invoice from Operations Contractor,
Owner shall provide Operations Contractor a written protest
of any invoice, in whole or in part within twenty (20) days of
its receipt. A protested invoice is not deemed due and payable
until the protested change has been reviewed between the
parties.

2.3 Authorized Representative: Each party shall designate an
authorized representative who shall be the principal point of contact
between the parties for all matters related to the Facilities. A party may
designate a new authorized representative by written notice to the other
party. The initial authorized representatives for each party are as follows:

2.3.1 Owner’s initial authorized representative:

2.3.2 Operations Contractor:

2.4 Duration and Termination: This agreement shall continue for a 12-
month duration or until terminated by one of the parties. Either party
may terminate this Agreement with a written 30 day notice

2.5 Indemnity, Liability and Insurance:

2.5.1 Operations Contractor agrees to indemnify and hold
Owner harmless from any liability, claims, or damages arising out
of or in any way connected with Operations Contractor’s
performance of the work described in this Agreement, provided any
such liability, claims or damages are not attributable the gross
negligence or intentional misconduct of Owner, its employees or
agents. Owner will be an additionally insured party under

115



2.6

Operations Contractor’s liability insurance for commercial general
liability (CGL), professional liability, and pollution liability.

2.5.2 Owner shall indemnify, defend, and hold Operations
Contractor harmless from any liability or damages from any liability
or damages for property damage or bodily injury, including death,
which results from all causes of any kind other than the grossly
negligent or intentional misconduct by Operations Contractor, its
employees or agents.

2.5.3 Insurance: Each party shall obtain and maintain
insurance coverage.

Liability: The Parties recognize that The Operations Contractor’s

services are to inspect the existing Water System of the City of Bellevue
within the Scope of Services as enumerated in Section 2.1 of this
Agreement. In providing such ongoing services The Operations
Contractor warrants that its services shall be performed in accordance
with professional industry standards and it shall not be held responsible
or liable for damages occurring as a result of existing system deficiencies
or design not a part of this Agreement.

2.7

General Provisions:

2.7.1 Counterparts and Execution by Facsimile or Other
Electronic Means: This Agreement may be executed by the parties
hereto in separate counterparts, each of which, when so executed
and delivered, shall be an original, but all such counterparts shall
together constitute one and the same instrument. Copies of
documents or signature pages bearing original signatures, and
executed documents or signature pages delivered by a party by
telefax, facsimile, or e-mail transmission of an Adobe® file format
document (also known as a PDF file) shall, in each such instance, be
deemed to be, and shall constitute and be treated as, an original
signed document or counterpart, as applicable. Any party
delivering an executed counterpart of this Agreement by telefax,
facsimile, or e-mail transmission of an Adobe® file format
document also shall deliver an original executed counterpart of this
Agreement, but the failure to deliver an original executed

116



counterpart shall not affect the validity, enforceability, and binding
effect of this Agreement.

2.7.2 Notices: All notices required under this Agreement
shall be in writing (except where oral notice is specifically
authorized in this Agreement), shall be delivered by facsimile,
regular U.S. Mail, or by overnight delivery, and shall be deemed
properly given upon receipt by the addressed recipient. All Notices
shall be addressed as follows:

IF TO OPERATIONS CONTRACTOR:

Attn:

IF TO OWNER:

Attn:

2.7.3 Interest on Past Due Payments: Interest on any past
due payments shall accrue at the statutory interest rate set by the
Idaho State Treasurer’s Office and shall be payable on demand.

2.7.4 Assignment: Neither party shall assign this Agreement
or delegate its performance without the prior written consent of the
other and any purported assignment without that consent shall be
void and of no effect.

2.7.5 Further Acts: Each party shall, at the request of the
other, execute, acknowledge (if appropriate) and deliver whatever
additional documents, and do such other acts, as may be reasonably
required in order to carry out the intent and purposes of this
Agreement.

2.7.6 Attorney Fees: The prevailing party in any legal action

brought by one party against the other and arising out of this
Agreement shall be entitled, in addition to any other rights and

117



remedies it may have, to reimbursement for its expenses, including
court costs, attorney fees, and other professional expenses.

2.7.7 Entire Agreement: This Agreement, and the schedules
and exhibits hereto, contain the entire understanding and
agreement of the parties hereto relating to the subject matter
hereof, and all prior agreements relative hereto which are not
contained herein are terminated.

2.7.8 Force Majeure: In the event that a party is prevented,
delayed, or stopped from performing any act, undertaking, or
obligation by reason of an “event of force majeure,” including
excessive adverse weather, strikes, lockouts, labor disputes, failure
of power, acts of public enemies of this state or the United States of
America, riots, insurrection, war, civil commotion, inability to
obtain labor or materials, and/or any other cause (except financial)
beyond the reasonable control of the party whose performance is so
prevented, delayed, or stopped, then the time for that party’s
performance shall be extended one (1) day for each day’s
prevention, delay, or stoppage by reason of such event of force
majeure.

2.7.9 Independent Contractor: It is understood that the
relationship of the Operations Contractor to Owner is that of an
independent services contractor, and that there shall be no
partnership or employment relationship created between the
parties. As such, the Operations Contractor shall be responsible to
pay any and all local, state or federal taxes due and owing for
accepting compensation for the services paid by the City described
herein and the Operations Contractor shall maintain its own
Workers Compensation insurance as required by law.

2.7.10 Severability: If any term of this Agreement is held by a
court of competent jurisdiction to be invalid, void, or
unenforceable, the remainder shall in no way be affected, impaired,
or invalidated.

2.7.11 Exhibits and Recitals Incorporated: Each of the Recitals

set forth herein and each of the Exhibits attached hereto are hereby
incorporated into the Agreement.

118



2.7.12 Controlling Law: This contract shall be governed by the
law of the State of Idaho with venue in the Third Judicial District
Court of the State of Idaho in xxx County, Idaho.

In witness whereof, the parties hereto have executed this Agreement effective
as of the date first set forth above.

OPERATIONS CONTRACTOR:

Signature
State of Idaho )
S.S
County of )
On this day of , in the year of 20____, before me personally

appeared, personally known or proved to me on the basis of satisfactory evidence to be the
person whose name is subscribed to the within instrument, and acknowledged that he
executed the same.

Notary Public
My Commission Expires on

CITY OF xxx
Name
Mayor, City of XXX
Attest:
Name
City Clerk, City of xxx
EXHIBITS

Exhibit A Facility Description
Exhibit B DEQ and EPA NPDES Wastewater Permits
Exhibit C Insurance

119



[Page Intentionally Left Blank]

120



CITY OF BELLEVUE
RESOLUTION NO. 25-09

ARESOLUTION OF THE MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE,
IDAHO CONFIRMING THE APPOINTMENT OF IAN BLACKER AS A COMMISSIONER TO THE
BELLEVUE URBAN RENEWAL AGENCY

WHEREAS, the Mayor of the City of Bellevue, by and with the advice and consent of
the Bellevue Common Council, is responsible for appointing Commissioners to the Urban
Renewal Agency of the City of Bellevue, Idaho (BURA) board pursuant to Idaho Code 8§ 50-
2006; and

WHEREAS, a vacancy exists in the BURA board with an unexpired term of August 23,
2027.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS:

Section 1: That the above statements are true and correct.

Section 2: That the Mayor and Common Council confirm and appoint lan Blacker to the
vacant position on the BURA Board of Commissioners for a term expiring on
August 23, 2027.

Section 4: That following the initial term, the commissioner shall be appointed/or
reappointed to serve four-year terms.

Section 5: That this Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately upon its
adoption and approval.

PASSED by the Bellevue Common Council this 25" day of August 2025.

Christina Giordani, Mayor

ATTEST:

Amy Phelps, City Clerk

121



[Page Intentionally Left Blank]

122



Memorandum

To: Bellevue Common Council
From: Amy Phelps, City Clerk
Re: Fee Waiver for Labor Day Special Event for the Bellevue Historical Society
Date: July 14, 2025
Summary:

On August 7, 2025, the City received a Special Event Application from the Bellevue Historical Society for
a community event at Museum Park, adjacent to the Bellevue Museum. The proposed activities include
a lemonade stand, a World War Il Memorial Service, and an antique sale. The event is scheduled for
Labor Day, September 1, 2025, from 9:00 a.m. to 1:00 p.m. On August 21, 2025, the City received a Fee
Waiver Application requesting a waiver of the $100 event fee.

Enclosures

1. Special Event Application
2. Fee Waiver Application

123



City of Bellevue ECEIVE

P. 0. Box 825 Bellevue, ID 83313

Qw 208-788-2128 AUG 07 2025
*

Special Event Application Permit gy

Applicant Information

Business Name: 6@/ p\jue #734'0(‘.(';}_,5 —oCie +\/

Mailing Address: -f}’o Sox  47Y

Phone: 758 -YB/- 011D (PHS hvard mbrﬁ |
Name of Owner/Proprietor: & 71-\/ oH e ( levu e .~ |
Non-Refundable Application fee:  $100.00 Date paid: ]

*Applicants shall provide notice to all properties within 300ft of the event in writing 14 days prior to the event. This
permit is valid for the event at the physical address listed on the application. The permit shall comply with all State
and local ordinances.

Event Information

-

Type of Event: Lemenade Dtand, W2 #MM&E@&S@
Dateand timeofevent: . |.2025  Labor )O.q Jam - | e

Event Location: Museum Patle ,

Zoning Destination: Maximum building occupancy: AYA

Do you own this property site? [ Yes % No

If no, please list property owner’s name: Crl-\l m,[ BQLQU&Q———-

Property owner’s address: }/5& £ p"le '51 l Signature

Food/Beer/Alcohol provided and/or consumed on site: [ Yes I;JI\NO If yes, please attach copy license

Catering Permit: (attach copy) )/

Do you hold an approved Bellevue Business License? O Yes [ No If yes, please attach a copy J/ﬁ

Does your event need a s/e.er\closu re? O Yes R/No If yes, please attach copy street closure appllcatl{)n

Applicant signature: | \/1 ﬂn /n

(5[ )7 official Use Only

-

Mayor signature Date
City Clerk signature Date
Community Development signature Date
Marshal signature Date
_| Public Works signature Date
Fire Chief signature Date

Special Event Application Permit 6/20/19
124



ECEIVE
AUG 2 1 2025
“w“ CITY OF BELLEVUE PARKS FEE WAIVER REQUEST BY:__ MY

)

REQUESTS ARE SUBJECT TO APPROVAL. SUBMITTAL OF FEE WAIVER REQUEST DOES NOT
GUARANTEE ALL FEES WILL BE WAIVED.

1. Submit a parks reservation application O’Donnell or Memorial Park and pay the fees
(reservations are reserved through the City Clerk’s Office)

2. Complete this fee waiver request. Requests must be submitted at least 30 days
prior to the date of the reservation.

Organizer Information: "

Organization or Individual: 2. (lp Jue. 4455or sl SHried vy

Telephone: 7/0%-)1F¥- 4SS /

Email: \anpeopler /) anal. com

Mailing Address: ' = (P9 boy 74 Beilpywe

General Information: :

Event Name: Labor Doy Activckied

EventDate: Q-[-7p 28 -

Park (circle One): O’Donnell Memorial  HuSeow

Event Description & Purpose: . i — D
See. e atfacked ﬁ»}z\e.f%-;hj- Solloye HisksiodD Socie

Fee Waiver Questions : £ U
Is this event open to the general Public? \/eg

L=

Does the activity of requested event directly benefit the residents of the City of Bellevue?
VES

Is the organization a Bellevue based non-profit organization with a valid 501(c)(3)?

\f/QS

Do you agree to provide for clean-up at the end of the event? \jm

Notes:

1. Projects or organizations who have failed their obligations during previous events or
activities are not eligible for future fee waivers.

2. Fees not being waived: Park Impact Fee and additional trash bins or other
equipment needed from the City of Bellevue.

For Internal Use Only Filled out by Clerk’s Office
Total Amount Requested Waived:
Amount Approved for Waiver by Council:
Date Approved/Denied:

City Of Bellevue, Idaho
Updated: March 2025

125



[Page Intentionally Left Blank]

126



Memorandum

To: Bellevue Common Council
From: Christina Giordani, Mayor
Re: Addition to LOT — Election Proposal

Date: August 20, 2025

During the Bellevue Council meeting on August 11, 2025, members of the Common Council discussed
potential changes to the City’s Local Option Tax (LOT). The conversation focused on raising the
Hotel/Motel Occupancy Tax from 3% to 6% or, alternatively, to 4% or 5% as well as adding 1% tax on the
retail sale of restaurant food and 2% tax on the retail sale of liquor by the drink. These discussions will
inform the ballot question planned for the November 4, 2025 election.

Council members also asked for a set of real numbers to demonstrate what different LOT rates could
mean in terms of actual revenue for the City and expense to customers. Staff prepared the following
projection for Fiscal Year 2026 based on available hotel, motel, cabin, and short-term rental data.

Proposed LOT Rate Average Cost of Prepared Foods Estimated LOT Cost for Customer
1% $25.00 $0.25

Proposed LOT Rate | Average Cost of Liquor by the Drink Estimated LOT Cost for Customer
2% $12.50 $0.25

Estimated Annual Room Revenues

Hotel/Motel/Short Term # of Average Daily | Occupancy % Annual Room Revenue
Rental Units Rate (approx.) (USD)

Silver Creek Hotel 56 $150 60% $1,839,600.00

High Country Motel 19 $150 55% $572,137.50

Long Horse Cabins 3 $150 57% $93,622.50

Short-Term Rentals 7 $165 61% $257,160.75

Total $2,762,520.75

127




Forecast LOT Revenue for FY 26 (based on total above):
e 3%LOT=582,875.62
e 4%LOT=5110,500.83
e 5% LOT=5138,126.04
e 6% LOT=5165,751.25
Estimated Expense to the Customer (based on average daily rate of $150):
e 3%LOT=54.50
e 4% LOT=56.00
e 5%LOT=57.50
e 6%LOT=59.90

This analysis shows how varying the tax rate will affect projected revenues and costs if voters approve
the ballot measure. For example, at the currently discussed 6% level, Bellevue could expect to collect
approximately $165,751 in lodging-related LOT revenue next year. Even at a more modest 4% increase,
revenues would exceed $110,000.

These funds would be directed toward the City’s highest priorities: supporting police, fire, and
emergency services, and maintaining and improving Bellevue’s streets and infrastructure. By relying on
LOT, much of the revenue burden is shared with visitors, lessening the impact on Bellevue’s property
owners while ensuring essential services are sustained.

The upcoming election provides voters with a direct voice in determining whether this expanded and
adjusted LOT framework is the right approach for Bellevue’s future. A 60% majority vote will be required
for passage.

Next Steps/Sample motion language
1. I move to approve the first reading of Ordinance No. 2025-11 by title only.
OR
I move to waive the three readings of Ordinance 2025-11 and read by title only.
2. I move to approve Ordinance 2025-11.
3. I move to authorize the publication of the Summary of Ordinance 2025-11.
Enclosures:

1. Draft Ordinance No. 2025-11
2. Draft Summary of Ordinance 2025-11

3. Resolution No. 25-25

128



CITY OF BELLEVUE
ORDINANCE NO. 2025-11

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, AMENDING TITLE 3 CHAPTER
6 OF THE BELLEVUE MUNICIPAL CODE; 3-6-2 PROVIDING FOR DEFINITIONS; AND
3-6-3 PROVIDING FOR THE IMPOSITION OF CERTAIN NON-PROPERTY TAXES, TO-
WIT: AONE PERCENT (1%) TAX ON THE SALE OF RESTAURANT FOOD, ATWO
PERCENT (2%) TAX ON THE RETAIL SALE OF LIQUOR-BY-THE-DRINK, AND AN
INCREASE FROM THREE PERCENT (3%) TO SIX PER CENT (6%) TAX ON THE SALE
OF HOTEL-MOTEL OCCUPANCY, 3-6-4 AN INCREASE IN THE DURATION OF THE TAX
TO FIFTEEN YEARS FROM ITS EFFECTIVE DATE, 3-6-5 AMEND ENDING THE
PURPOSE OF THE TAX WITH THE ADDITION OF PUBLIC SAFETY ADMINISTRATION
INCLUDING LAW ENFORCEMENT ACTIVITIES, FIRE DEPARTMENT, AND
PEDESTRIAN AND BIKE SAFETY, 3-6-8 ADDING LIQUOR BY THE DRINK AND
RESTAURANT FOOD TO PERMITTING AND PAYMENT METHODS , 3-6-18 GENERAL
ADMINISTRATION BY THE CITY CLERK, WHILE MAINTAINING THE OTHER
PROVISIONS THAT CURRENTLY EXIST AS PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE
NO. 2022-04 AS EMBODIED IN BELLEVUE CODE 3-6 NON-PROPERTY TAXES, TO WIT:
3-6-1 FINDINGS; 3-6-6 CREATION OF A PROPERTY TAX RELIEF FUND,; 3-6-7
AUTHORITY OF THE CITY CLERK; 3-6-9 METHOD FOR PAYMENT OF TAXES; 3-6-10
AUDITS DEFICIENCY DETERMINATIONS; 3-6-11 REDETERMINATION OF
DEEFICIENCY; 3-6-12 APPEALS, INTERST ON DEFICIENCY; 3-6-13 COLLECTIONS
AND ENFORCEMENT; 3-6-14 REFUNDS LIMITATIONS AND INTEREST; 3-6-15
RESPONSIBILITY FOR PAYMENT OF TAXES; 3-6-16 PERIOD OF LIMITATION UPON
ASSESSMENT AND COLLECTION; 3-6-17 SUCCESSOR’S LIABILTY; 3-6-19 PENALTIES;
3-6-20 PENALTY CHARGE; 3-6-21 EXEMPTIONS; PROVIDING FOR A SEVERABILITY
CLAUSE; PROVIDING FOR A REPEALER CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE.

WHEREAS, the City of Bellevue (City), Idaho, is authorized pursuant to Idaho Code §
50-1044 through 50-1049 to adopt and impose non-property local option taxes, subject to voter
approval,

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Bellevue Common Council find that the City is a resort city
of less than ten thousand people deriving the major portion of its economic well-being from
businesses catering to recreational needs and meeting needs of people traveling to that
destination city for an extended period of time;

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Bellevue Common Council find that the City has a
significant economic dependence upon visitors and travelers passing through or staying in the
city;

LOT Ordinance No. 2025-11
Page | 1
129



WHEREAS, the Mayor and Bellevue Common Council find that visitors and travelers to
the City of Bellevue require municipal services which place an undue burden upon City
taxpayers;

WHEREAS, the electors of the City of Bellevue previously approved a non-property tax
as adopted in Ordinance No. 2022-04;

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2022-03, duly adopted by the City of Bellevue and
approved by a majority of voters, currently imposes a non-property tax on hotel-motel occupancy
at a rate of three percent (3%) pursuant to Bellevue City Code Chapter 3-6;

WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that additional sources of non-
property tax revenue are necessary and appropriate to help fund public safety, and infrastructure
improvements;

WHEREAS, the Common Council finds it in the best interests of the City and its
residents to submit to the qualified electors of the City the question of whether to impose a one
percent (1%) non-property tax on the retail sale of food by restaurants, a two percent (2%) non-
property tax on the retail sale of liquor-by-the-drink;

WHEREAS, the Common Council finds it in the best interests of the City and its
residents to submit to the voters the question of whether to amend the existing non-property tax
on hotel-motel occupancy by increasing the tax rate from three percent (3%) to six percent (6%);

WHEREAS, The Common council finds it in the best interest of the City and its
residents to submit to the qualified electors of the City the question of whether to add public
safety administration, including law enforcement, fire department and pedestrian and bike safety
to the purposes for which the tax revenue may legally be applied; and

WHEREAS, The Common council finds it in the best interest of the City and its
residents to submit to the qualified electors of the City the question of whether to increase the
duration of the tax from five years to fifteen years from the effective date.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND CITY COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1. Title 3 Chapter 6 Sections 2-5, 8, and 18 of the Bellevue Municipal Code are
hereby amended by the addition of the underlined language and the deletion of the stricken
language, as follows:

3-6-2: DEFINITIONS:
LIQUOR BY THE DRINK: Shall mean and include all of the following:

LOT Ordinance No. 2025-11
Page | 2
130



A. Alcohol: The product of distillation of any fermented liguor, rectified either once or
oftener, whatever may be the origin thereof, or synthetic ethyl alcohol.

B. Spirits: Any beverage which contains alcohol obtained by distillation mixed with
drinkable water and other substances in solution, including, among other things, brandy,
rum, whiskey and gin.

C. Wine: Any alcoholic beverage obtained by the fermentation of the natural sugar content
of fruits (grapes, apples, etc.) or other agricultural products containing sugar (honey,
milk, etc.)

D. Beer: Any alcoholic beverage obtained from the fermentation of sugar, barley, hops, malt,
yeast and similar ingredients.

E. Other: Any liquid or solid, patented or not, containing alcohol, spirits or wine and
susceptible to being consumed by a human being, for beverage purposes.

RESTAURANT FOOD: All food, meals or drinks, and nondepreciable goods and services
directly consumed by customers included in the charge thereof, which are furnished, prepared
and sold on the premises and which are customarily furnished, prepared and sold as the primary
use of the premises.

RETAIL SALE: The sale of liguor by the drink sold at retail for consumption on the licensed
premises and/or sale of restaurant food sold at retail on the premises, other than resale in the
regular course of business, and shall include any transfer of money, title, exchange, barter or
credit, conditional or otherwise, in any manner or by any means whatsoever as consideration.

3-6-3: IMPOSITION OF CERTAIN NON-PROPERTY TAXES:

A: Hotel-Motel Occupancy Tax: A tax is hereby imposed at the rate of three-percent(3%)
Six Percent (6%) on the room occupancy charge for each hotel-motel room or living unit
rented or leased for a period of thirty (30) days or less within the City. The hotel-motel
occupancy tax shall apply to and be computed on the rental of all hotel-motel rooms
including all credit, installment, conditional or similar rental or lease fees at the time the
room occupancy charge is charged. The hotel-motel occupancy tax shall be collected by
the owner of the hotel-motel or his authorized agent from the renter or lessee.

B. Liquor By the Drink Tax: A tax is hereby imposed at the rate of two percent (2%) of the
sales price upon each retail sale of liquor by the drink within the city. The tax shall apply
to and be computed on all retail sales of liquor by the drink, including credit, or similar
sales at the time of the sale. The Liguor by the Drink Tax shall be collected by the retailer
from the consumer.

C. Restaurant Food Tax: A tax is hereby imposed at the rate of one percent (1%) of the sales
price upon each retail sale of restaurant food within the City. The tax shall apply to and

be computed on all retail sales of restaurant food including credit, or similar sales at the

LOT Ordinance No. 2025-11

Page | 3
131



time of the sale. The Restaurant Food Tax shall be collected by the retailer from the
consumer.

B- D. Fractional Portion: When the sales price involves a fraction of a dollar, the non-
property tax shall be collected on that fractional portion of the price adding thereto the
tax based upon the following bracket system:

Hotel-Motel Occupancy Taxes {3%) (6%).

Sales Price Range Tax
$0.01 to $0.08 $0.00
$0.09 to $0.24 $0.01
$0.25 to $0.41 $0.02
$0.42 to $0.58 $0.03
$0.59 to $0.74 $0.04
$0.75 to $0.91 $0.05
$0.92 to $0.99 $0.06
Each whole dollar $0.06
Each-whele-doHar $0-03 $0.06
Liguor By the Drink Tax (2%)
$0.01 to $0.33 $0.00
$0.34 to $0.66 $0.01
$0.67 to $0.99 $0.02
Each whole dollar $0.02
RESTAURANT FOOD TAX (1%)
$0.01 to $0.49 $0.00
$0.50 to $0.99 0.01
Each whole dollar 0.01

The retailer shall calculate the tax upon the entire amount of purchases of the consumer made at
a particular time subject to this chapter, and not separately upon each item purchased. The
retailer may retain any amount collected under the bracket system which is in excess of the

LOT Ordinance No. 2025-11
Page | 4
132



amount of tax for which he is liable to the City during the period as compensation for the work
of collecting the tax.

-C. D. Monies Collected Held in Trust: All monies collected and/or retained under the provisions
of this chapter shall be held in trust for the City and for payment thereof to the City Clerk in the
manner and at the times in this chapter provided. (Ord. 2022-04, 6-13-2022, eff. 7-1-2022)

3-6-4: DURATION OF TAXES:
The non-property taxes authorized and collected under this chapter are hereby imposed for a
duration of five{5) fifteen (15) years from the effective date hereof erdinance-2022-04.

Ordinance 2025-XX {Ord—2022-04-6-13-2022-eff7-1-2022)

3-6-5: PURPOSES OF TAXES:
The non-property tax revenue derived from and collected under this chapter shall be used for the

following purposes:

A. Public safety administration including law enforcement activities, fire department, and
pedestrian and bike safety,

A.B. Road repair, maintenance, transportation enhancements, equipment, and snow removal.

-B-C. Direct cost to administer and enforce this chapter. (Ord. 2022-04, 6-13-2022, eff. 7-1-
2022)

3-6-8: PERMITS; ISSUANCE:

A. Every person desiring to engage in or conduct business of renting hotel-motel rooms
within the City and selling liquor by the drink and/or restaurant food within the City shall
file with the City Clerk an application for a Municipal Non-property Tax permit for each
place of business. A separate permit is required for each place of business within the City.
Every application for such a permit shall be made upon a form prescribed by the City
Clerk and shall set forth the name under which the applicant transacts or intends to
transact business, the location of the business or places of business, and such other
information as the City Clerk may require. The application shall be signed by the owner, if
he is a natural person; or in the case of an association or limited liability company, by
member or partner; or in the case of a corporation, by an executive officer or other person
authorized by the corporation to sign the application; or in the case of a partnership, by a
partner; or in the case of any other legal entity, by an authorized person. Initial permits
shall be issued upon completion of the application for each permit sought.

3-6-18: GENERAL ADMINISTRATION BY CITY CLERK:

A. The City Clerk shall enforce the provisions of this chapter and may prescribe, adopt and
enforce rules and regulations relating to its administration and enforcement. The City
Clerk may employ qualified auditors for examination of taxpayer's books and records,

LOT Ordinance No. 2025-11

Page | 5
133



and shall also employ such accountants, investigators, assistants, clerks, and other
personnel as are necessary for the efficient administration of this chapter and may
delegate authority to his or her representatives to conduct hearings, or perform other
duties imposed by this chapter.

Every non-property tax payer under the provisions of this chapter hetel-motel-owner-in
this-City shall keep such records, receipts, invoices, and other pertinent papers as the City
Clerk may require and Every-such-hotel-motel-owner-who-fllestax-paymentsreguired
under-thischapter shall keep all such records for not less than four (4) years after making
such payments unless the City Clerk in writing authorizes their destruction.

The City Clerk, or any person authorized in writing by the clerk, may examine the books,
papers, records and equipment of any hotel-motel owner, any person selling liquor by the
drink, and any person selling restaurant food or any person liable for any tax thereon, and
may investigate the character of the business of the person in order to verify the accuracy
of any return made, or if no return is made by the person, to ascertain and determine the
amount required to be paid. Any hotel-motel owners whose pertinent records are kept
outside of the City, must bring the records to the City for examination by the City Clerk
upon request of the City Clerk, or by agreement with the City Clerk permit an auditor
designated by the City Clerk to visit the place where the records are kept, and there audit
such records. (Ord. 2022-04, 6-13-2022, eff. 7-1-2022)

SECTION 2. SEVERABILITY CLAUSE. If any section, paragraph, sentence or provision
hereof or the application thereof to any particular circumstances shall ever be held invalid or
unenforceable, such holding shall not affect the remainder hereof, which shall continue in full
force and effect and applicable to all circumstances to which it may validly apply.

SECTION 3. REPEALER CLAUSE. All Ordinances or Resolutions or parts thereof in conflict
herewith are hereby repealed and rescinded.

SECTION 4. EFFECTIVE DATE. This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect upon
adoption, and after its passage, approval and publication according to law.

PASSED AND ADOPTED BY THE BELLEVUE COMMON COUNCIL AND APPROVED
BY THE MAYOR THIS DAY OF , 2025.

Attest:

Christina Giordani, Mayor

Amy Phelps, City Clerk

LOT Ordinance No. 2025-11
Page | 6

134



CITY OF BELLEVUE
RESOLUTION NO. 25- 25

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, CALLING FOR AN
ELECTION TO BE HELD ON NOVEMBER 4, 2025, TO SUBMIT TO THE QUALIFIED
ELECTORS OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE THE QUESTION OF WHETHER TO
AMEND BELLEVUE CITY CODE TITLE 3CHAPTER 6 TO IMPOSE A ONE
PERCENT (1%) NON-PROPERTY TAX (LOT) ON THE RETAIL SALE OF FOOD BY
RESTAURANTS, ATWO PERCENT (2%) NON-PROPERTY TAX (LOT) ON THE
RETAIL SALE OF LIQUOR-BY-THE-DRINK, EACH FOR A TERM OF FIFTEEN (15)
YEARS EXPIRING JULY 31, 2040; AND TO AMEND THE EXISTING NON-
PROPERTY TAX (LOT) ON HOTEL-MOTEL OCCUPANCY BY INCREASING THE
RATE FROM THREE PERCENT (3%) TO SIX PERCENT (6%) AND MODIFYING
THE DURATION; ADDING AN ADDITIONAL PURPOSE FOR WHICH THE TAX
REVENUE MAY BE APPLIED, WHILE MAINTAINING ALL EXISTING
DEFINITIONS, PERMITTING REQUIREMENTS, AND PAYMENT METHODS AS
PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED BY ORDINANCE NO. 2022-03 AND CODIFIED IN
CHAPTER 3-6 OF THE BELLEVUE CITY CODE.

WHEREAS, the City of Bellevue, Idaho (“City”) is authorized pursuant to Idaho Code
Section 50-1044 and Section 63-2601 to adopt by ordinance, and upon voter approval, impose
non-property taxes for the purpose of raising revenue for specific municipal needs; and

WHEREAS, the Mayor and Bellevue Common Council find that the City is a resort city
of less than ten thousand people deriving the major portion of its economic well-being from
businesses catering to recreational needs and meeting needs of people traveling to that
destination city for an extended period of time; and

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 2022-03, duly adopted by the City of Bellevue and
approved by a majority of voters, currently imposes a non-property tax on hotel-motel occupancy
at a rate of three percent (3%) pursuant to Bellevue City Code Chapter 3-6; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council has determined that additional sources of non-
property tax revenue are necessary and appropriate to help fund public safety, and infrastructure
improvements; and

WHEREAS, the Common Council finds it in the best interests of the City and its
residents to submit to the qualified electors of the City the question of whether to impose a one
percent (1%) non-property tax on the retail sale of food by restaurants, a two percent (2%) non-
property tax on the retail sale of liquor-by-the-drink, each to be effective for a period of fifteen
(15) years, expiring on July 31, 2040; and

Resolution No. 25- 25
135



WHEREAS, the Common Council finds it in the best interests of the City and its
residents to submit to the voters the question of whether to amend the existing non-property tax
on hotel-motel occupancy by increasing the tax rate from three percent (3%) to six percent (6%),
and to modify the tax duration to fifteen years; and

WHEREAS, The Common council further finds it in the best interest of the City to add
public safety administration, including law enforcement, fire department and pedestrian and bike
safety to the purposes for which the tax revenue may legally be applied.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO COMMON
COUNCIL:

Section 1. That an election be held, and the same is hereby called to be held in the City of
Bellevue on Tuesday, November 4, 2025, for the purpose of submitting to the qualified electors
of the City of Bellevue the question set out in the form of the ballot appearing in Section 4
hereof.

Section 2. That the election will be conducted by the County Clerk of Blaine County, Idaho (the
"County Clerk™) pursuant to Idaho Code § 34-1401.

Section 3. That the Notice of Election will be in substantially the following form, and the City
will provide the form thereof to the County Clerk and cause the County Clerk to publish the
same as required by Idaho Code § 34-1406:

NOTICE OF ELECTION
CITY OF BELLEVUE
BLAINE COUNTY, IDAHO

PUBLIC NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN according to law and requisite action by the City
Clerk of the City of Bellevue, Blaine County, Idaho, that an election will be held on Tuesday,
November 4, 2025, in the City of Bellevue for the purpose of submitting the following question
to the qualified electors of said City for vote at precinct polling sites open 8:00 a.m. to 8:00 p.m.:

QUESTION: Shall the City of Bellevue, Idaho adopt Ordinance No. 2025- _, amending
Bellevue Code Title 3 Chapter 6 to provide for the following:

1. The addition of a one percent (1%) Non-Property Tax on the retail sale of food by
restaurants.

2. The addition of a two percent (2%) Non-Property Tax on the retail sale of liquor by the
drink.

3. Anincrease in the Non-Property Tax on hotel-motel occupancy from three percent (3%)
to six percent (6%).

Resolution No. 25-25
136



4. Adding public safety administration, including law enforcement, fire department and
pedestrian and bike safety to the purposes for which the tax revenue may legally be
applied; and

5. An extension of the duration of the Tax from a period of five (5) years expiring in 2027 to
a period of fifteen (15) years from its effective date.

All as provided in Bellevue Ordinance No. adopted by the Bellevue Common
Council on : , 2025

The election will be conducted by the County Clerk of Blaine County, Idaho, pursuant to Idaho
Code § 34-1401.

[End of form Notice of Election]

Section 4. That the official ballot will be in substantially the following form: and the City will
convey such form to the County Clerk for publication in compliance with and pursuant to Idaho
Code § 34-1406:

NON-PROPERTY TAX ELECTION

CITY OF BELLEVUE
STATE OF IDAHO

NOVEMBER 4, 2025

QUESTION: Shall the City of Bellevue, Idaho adopt Ordinance No. 2025- _, amending
Bellevue Code Title 3 Chapter 6 to provide for the following:

1. The addition of a one percent (1%) Non-Property Tax on the retail sale of food by
restaurants;

2. The addition of a two percent (2%) Non-Property Tax on the retail sale of liquor by the
drink;

3. Anincrease in the Non-Property Tax on hotel-motel occupancy from three percent (3%)
to six percent (6%);

4. Adding public safety administration, including law enforcement, fire department and
pedestrian and bike safety to the purposes for which the tax revenue may legally be
applied; and

5. An extension of the duration of the Tax from a period of five (5) years expiring in 2027 to
a period of fifteen (15) years from its effective date.

Resolution No. 25-25
137



IN FAVOR

v

AGAINST >

[End of Official Ballot]

Section 5. That the County Commissioners of Blaine County will act as the canvassing board
pursuant to Idaho Code 8§88 34-1410 and 50-412, and will certify the results to the City for
acceptance by the Bellevue Common Council and the results entered in the Bellevue Common
Council minutes.

Section 6. That if at the election sixty percent (60%) of the qualified registered electors of the
City authorize such modification of purpose of the local-option non-property tax, Bellevue
Ordinance No. shall become effective immediately upon passage thereof, after voter
approval, adoption by the Common Council and Mayor, and publication according to law.

PASSED BY THE BELLEVUE COMMON COUNCIL and SIGNED BY THE MAYOR AND
THE CITY CLERK this___ day of , 2025.

Christina Giordani, Mayor

ATTEST:

Amy Phelps, City Clerk

Resolution No. 25-25
138



Memorandum

To: Bellevue Common Council
From: Brian Parker, Community Development Director, Greg Beaver, Bellevue Fire
Chief
Re: Ordinance 2025-10 — Weed Control
Date: August 11, 2025
Background

The Community Development and Fire Departments have been collaboratively developing an ordinance
regarding the management of weeds within the City of Bellevue. Development of this ordinance was on
the Fire Departments 2025 Work Plan. Weeds are a frequent nuisance and can become a major fire risk
to nearby properties if unmanaged. This ordinance enables the City to require the maintenance and
abatement of weeds by private property owners and allows the City to intervene if no action is taken.

Recommendation and Next Steps
Staff recommends the following motions of the Council:

1. | move to waive the three readings of Ordinance 2025-10 and read by title only.
2. | move to approve Ordinance 2025-10.
3. I move to authorize the publication of the Summary of Ordinance 2025-10.

Enclosures

1. Ordinance 2025-10
2. Summary of Ordinance 2025-10

139



City of Bellevue
ORDINANCE NO. 2025-10

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, AMENDING BELLEVUE’S
CITY CODE BY ADDING A NEW CHAPTER TO TITLE 4: HEALTH, SANITATION, AND
ENVIRONMENT TO CONTROL NUISANCE WEEDS, AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE
DATE OF THIS ORDINANCE UPON PASSAGE, APPROVAL, AND PUBLICATION
ACCORDING TO LAW.

WHEREAS, the City of Bellevue desires to be clean and free of fire hazards; and
WHEREAS, Idaho Statute 50-334 authorizes cities to manage and abate nuisances; and

WHEREAS, uncontrolled growth of weeds provides dry fuel vegetation, increasing the risk of
catastrophic fire; and

WHEREAS, noxious and invasive species of weeds threaten the health of local ecosystems and
agriculture and have a propensity to spread to nearby properties.

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COMMON COUNCIL OF
THE CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO, AS FOLLOWS:

SECTION 1:

Title 4: Health, Sanitation, and Environment is hereby amended with the addition of the
following chapter:

Chapter 3: Weed Control
4-3-1: HAZARDOUS WEEDS PROHIBITD:

It shall be unlawful for any owner or occupant of any property with the City to allow
uncontrolled dry vegetation, weeds, bushes, and tall grass which present a fire risk as determined
by the Fire Chief, or otherwise threaten the health and safety of adjacent property
owners/occupants or the community.

4-3-2: DUTY TO REMOVE:

The owner, tenant or occupant of private property within the City of Bellevue shall cut and
remove the weeds and/or potential fire hazards upon and from such private property within ten
(10) days after written notice to abate is given by the City of Bellevue.

4-3-3: MISDEMEANOR VIOLATION; PENALTIES:

A person who violates any provision of this chapter shall be guilty of a misdemeanor, punishable
as provided in section 1-4-1 of this Code. Each day that a violation of this chapter occurs shall be
deemed a separate offense. The City reserves the right to declare a property a nuisance and
remedy said nuisance in accordance with Idaho Law.

140



SECTION 2: EFFECTIVE DATE:

This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after its passage and publication as
required by law.

PASSED AND APPROVED by the CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO this 25th day of August,
2025.

Christina Giordani, Mayor

ATTEST:

Amy Phelps, City Clerk

141



SUMMARY OF ORDINANCE NO. 2025-10
CITY OF BELLEVUE, IDAHO

The City of Bellevue has adopted ordinance 2025-10 declaring uncontrolled weeds to be a
nuisance and fire risk, requiring property owners to mitigate said nuisance weeds, and enabling
the City to abate the nuisance at the expense of the property owner if no action is taken by the
property owner.

A full copy of Ordinance No. 2025-10 is available at Bellevue City Hall, 115 E. Pine Street,
Bellevue, Idaho, during regular business hours or upon request.

Frederick Allington, City Attorney

142



	08.25.2025 Regular CC Meeting Agenda.pdf
	Memorandum consent agenda.pdf
	Claims Payable by Dept..pdf
	Claims Payable by Vendor.pdf
	08-25-25 renewal requests.pdf
	Memo.pdf
	IPPM 2025_8.5x11.pdf
	LAW ENFORCEMENT CODE OF ETHICS
	POLICY MANUAL
	Controlling terms used in this manual

	CONDUCT
	Competency as a Law Enforcement Officer
	PERFORMANCE
	REQUIREMENT TO PROVIDE NAME
	COURT ATTENDANCE
	PUBLIC MONIES
	AGENCY EQUIPMENT
	AGENCY RECORDS

	Personal Safety Equipment
	SEATBELTS
	SOFT BODY ARMOR
	REFLECTIVE SAFETY VESTS

	Personal Conduct – Duty Related
	CONDUCT UNBECOMING
	INSUBORDINATION
	CONGREGATIONS
	SLEEPING ON DUTY
	ON-DUTY RELATIONSHIPS WITH OTHERS
	REPORTING MEDICATIONS THAT MAY IMPAIR PERFORMANCE

	Personal Conduct – On or Off Duty
	ABUSE OF POSITION
	USE OF INFLUENCE IN CRIMINAL PROCEEDINGS
	INTERFERENCE WITH PROSECUTION
	RECOMMENDATIONS, ENDORSEMENTS AND REFERRALS
	DISRUPTIVE LABOR ACTIVITIES
	POLITICAL ACTIVITY
	BAIL
	BRIBES, GRATUITIES, REWARDS AND GIFTS
	SURREPTITIOUS RECORDINGS
	PERSONAL USE OF INFORMATION

	Personal Associations
	PROHIBITED ASSOCIATIONS
	PERSONAL INVOLVEMENT
	PURCHASE FROM PRISONERS

	Personal Internet/Online Communication
	Domestic Violence and Other Criminal Charges
	CRIMINAL CHARGES
	GUILTY FINDING

	Administrative Investigations
	Off-Duty Law Enforcement Action
	Release of Information
	Non-Biased Policing
	Citizen Complaints

	POLICING PROCEDURES
	Use of Force and Weapons
	DETERMINING REASONABLENESS
	Duty To Intercede

	WEAPONS
	Safety and Storage
	Firearms
	Conducted Energy Weapon
	Impact Weapons
	Less Lethal Chemical Agents

	CAROTID OR LATERAL VASCULAR NECK RESTRAINT
	MEDICAL CARE
	TRAINING AND NON-STANDARD USE OF FORCE
	REPORTING AND REVIEW

	Restraints
	AUTHORIZED USE
	SPECIAL CONSIDERATIONS
	REPORTING

	Search and Seizure, Miranda
	WARRANTLESS SEARCH AND SEIZURE
	Consent
	Incident to a lawful arrest
	Plain view doctrine
	Exigent circumstances
	Hot pursuit
	Abandonment
	Vehicle exception
	Vehicle inventory

	TYPES OF SEARCHES
	Frisk/pat down
	Custody search
	Strip search
	Field strip searches
	Body cavity searches

	SEIZED PROPERTY
	MIRANDA WARNING

	Arrest and Custody
	WARRANTLESS ARRESTS
	Felony offenses
	Misdemeanor offenses

	ARREST WARRANTS
	Time of day
	Place of service
	Issued by another state

	TRANSPORTING ARRESTEES
	PROTECTIVE CUSTODY
	Emergency Mental Health Hold
	Alcohol And Detoxification Hold

	CITIZEN’S ARREST

	Emergency and Pursuit Driving
	EMERGENCY DRIVING
	PURSUIT DRIVING
	Decision to pursue
	Terminating a pursuit
	Forcible stopping
	Reporting


	Officer-Involved Critical Incidents
	AT THE SCENE
	CRIMINAL INVESTIGATION
	ADMINISTRATIVE INVESTIGATION
	POST-INCIDENT LEAVE AND SUPPORT


	SPECIAL FIELD RESPONSE
	Juvenile Procedures
	APPREHENSION OF JUVENILES
	Release of juveniles
	Transport to a detention facility

	PETITION

	Domestic Violence Response
	INVESTIGATION
	ARREST
	VICTIM SUPPORT

	Civil Standby
	Hate Crimes
	INVESTIGATION

	Adult Abuse, Neglect and Exploitation
	Contact information

	Missing Adult Reporting
	INVESTIGATION GUIDELINES
	CONTACTING MEDIA
	CASE RESOLUTION

	Missing/Abducted Children
	INVESTIGATION GUIDELINES

	AMBER Alert Activation
	Request AMBER Alert
	Notify ISP RCC
	Cancel an AMBER Alert

	Diplomatic Immunity and Consular Notification
	DIPLOMATIC IMMUNITY
	CONSULAR NOTIFICATION
	Contact information for the Canadian and Mexican Consular Offices
	Other contact information


	Response to Explosives, Drug Labs and Hazardous Materials
	Provide emergency assistance
	Notify proper authorities
	Secure the scene
	BOMBS AND OTHER EXPLOSIVES
	DRUG LABS AND OTHER HAZARDOUS MATERIALS
	Reporting and follow-up investigation


	Canine Units
	DEPLOYMENT
	Apprehension
	Reporting

	CERTIFICATION AND TRAINING
	Records
	Training Aides

	CANINE CARE AND MAINTENANCE
	Veterinary Care
	Kenneling
	Canine Patrol Vehicle


	Reserve Officers
	Training
	Ongoing Requirements

	Supervision
	Authority

	Aircraft Crashes
	Coordinate emergency services
	Secure the scene
	Notify proper authorities

	Opioid Overdose
	TRAINING
	RESPONSE TO SUSPECTED OVERDOSE
	Safety
	Reporting

	KIT MAINTENANCE

	Suicidal People
	Threat Only to Themselves
	Armed, Combative or a Threat to Others


	INVESTIGATIONS, INFORMATION AND EVIDENCE
	Evidence and Property
	BOOKING EVIDENCE AND PROPERTY
	PROPERTY CONTROL

	Sexual Assault Kits
	EVIDENCE COLLECTION
	Offenses Occurring in Another Jurisdiction

	TESTING
	RESULTS
	STORAGE

	Audio and Video Recordings
	WHEN TO RECORD
	WHEN NOT TO RECORD
	DOCUMENTATION AND STORAGE
	REVIEW OF RECORDINGS
	BEING RECORDED BY OTHERS

	ILETS - Idaho Public Safety and Security Information System
	USE OF INFORMATION
	Inquiry
	Entry
	NCIC Entry Clearance

	SECURITY AND INFORMATION SHARING

	Use of Artificial Intelligence
	Guidelines
	NOTE: You MUST confirm information provided as an output of these tools is correct before acting on information or finalizing investigative reports and forms for submission.
	Prohibitions

	Supervisory review

	Automated License Plate Readers
	Authorized Use
	Alerts

	Documentation and Storage

	Photo Line-ups
	PHOTO LINE-UP
	FIELD SHOW-UP
	DOCUMENTATION

	Confidential Informants
	Prohibited associations
	PAYMENT


	ADMINISTRATION
	Organization and Authority
	CHAIN OF COMMAND
	SUPERVISION

	Selection and Training
	PERSONNEL SELECTION
	Polygraph
	Drug screening
	Medical and psychological exams

	TRAINING

	Agency Vehicles
	VEHICLE COLLISION

	Non-Discrimination and Equal Opportunity
	EQUAL OPPORTUNITY EMPLOYER
	NON-DISCRIMINATION
	SEXUAL HARASSMENT
	Duty to report

	NON-RETALIATION
	WORKPLACE RELATIONSHIPS

	Overtime and Compensation
	COMPENSATORY TIME
	WORK HOUR LIMITATIONS

	Secondary Employment
	Workers’ Compensation
	EMPLOYEE REPORTING
	SUPERVISOR RESPONSIBILITIES

	Fitness for Duty
	RETURN TO WORK
	FITNESS FOR DUTY EXAMINATIONS
	PHYSICAL FITNESS STANDARDS

	Drug, Alcohol and Tobacco Use
	DRUGS AND ALCOHOL
	TOBACCO

	Infectious Disease Exposure
	PROCEDURE AFTER AN EXPOSURE
	WORKERS' COMPENSATION
	TESTING OF THE SOURCE OF THE EXPOSURE


	POLICY CHANGE RECORD
	July 2025
	July 2024
	July 2023
	July 2022
	August 2021
	July 2021
	June 2020
	June 2019
	July 2017
	January 2016

	INDEX

	August 19, 2025 Wastewater Project Update.pdf
	SKM_C450i25081821240.pdf
	Memo to CC re final budget.pdf
	Appropriations Ordinance FY26.pdf
	Resolution re Foregone FY26.pdf
	Resolution re Judgment Levy.pdf
	AJ Grey.pdf
	25-23 Contract Resolution.pdf
	Contract water AJ Gray.pdf
	Resolution 25-  Ian Blacker to BURA.pdf
	Memorandum Fee Waiver.pdf
	SKM_C450i25082022060.pdf
	08.20.2025 Special CC Meeting packet.pdf
	08.20.2025 Special CC Meeting Agenda.pdf
	08.20 Consejo Común.pdf
	Memorandum LOT.pdf
	lot ordinance including everything.pdf
	LOT Summary.pdf

	LOT ORDINANCE v.3.pdf
	2025 LOT Resolution.pdf
	2025-08-11 - Weed Control Memo.pdf
	Ordinance 2025-XX - Weed Control.pdf
	Ordinance 2025-XX - Weed Control - Clean.pdf
	Weed Control Ordinance Summary.pdf



